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Part I - Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except number of shares and par value data)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Right of use asset, net
Utility deposits
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Current portion of lease liability
Current portion of term loan
Customer deposits
Current deferred revenue
Sales and use tax payable
Total current liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Long-term portion of lease liability
Long-term term loan
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity (deficit):

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 166,666,667 shares authorized, 93,982,650 shares issued and 93,946,353 shares outstanding at
November 30, 2022, and 97,837,703 shares issued and 97,801,406 shares outstanding at May 31, 2022

Additional paid in capital
Treasury stock, 36,300 shares at November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, at cost
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity attributable to Applied Digital Corporation
Noncontrolling interest
Total Stockholders' equity (deficit) including noncontrolling interest
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

and use t

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

November 30, 2022 May 31, 2022
18,074 $ 46,299
276 227
2,397 1,336
20,747 47,862
132,893 64,260
12,353 6,408
1,450 1,450
167,443  § 119,980
7,472 $ 13,260
3,664 1,004
4,122 1,333
24,689 9,524
29,394 3,877
865 —
70,206 28,998
260 540
8,631 5,310
16,376 5,897
95473 § 40,745
9% $ 98
150,695 128,293
(62) (62)
(87,218) (56,070)
63,509 72,259
8,461 6,976
71,970 $ 79,235
167,443 $ 119,980




APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Hosting revenue

Cost of revenues
Gross profit

Costs and expenses:

Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total costs and expenses
Operating loss

Other income (expense):

Interest Expense

Loss on extinguishment of debt

Total other expense, net

Net loss from continuing operations before income tax expenses
Income tax benefit (expense)

Net loss from continuing operations

Net gain from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net loss including noncontrolling interests

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net loss attributable to Applied Digital Corporation

Basic and diluted net (loss) gain per share:
Continuing Operations
Discontinued Operations
Basic and diluted net loss per share
Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021 November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
$ 12,340  § — 19,264 § —
$ 11,812 § — 17,905 § —
528 — 1,359 —
$ 26,502 § 1,181 31,212 $ 14,216
703 174 1,001 177
$ 27,205 $ 1,355 32213 § 14,393
$ (26,677) $ (1,355) (30,854) $ (14,393)
$ (385) $ — (741) $ —
— — (94) (1,342)
(385) — (835) (1,342)
(27,062) (1,355) (31,689) (15,735)
312 (214) 280 (214)
(26,750) (1,569) (31,409) (15,949)
— 1,398 — 1,681
(26,750) (171) (31,409) (14,268)
(133) — (261) —
$ (26,617) $ (171) (31,148) $ (14,268)
$ 029) $ (0.03) 0.34) $ (0.32)
$ — 0.03 — 3 0.03
$ (029) § — 034) § (0.29)
93,422,427 53,396,920 93,263,266 49,143,981

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended November 30, 2022

Balance, August 31, 2022
Stock-based compensation
Net Loss

Balance, November 30, 2022

Three Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance, August 31, 2021
Issuance of Preferred Stock

Issuance Costs of Preferred
Stock

Net Loss
Balance, November 30,
2021

Common Stock A[ll):li:;.oizal Tget?)il;(ry A deficit T Equ;t‘y Mers N lnter‘:;:]ing Total Equity
Capital
Shares | Amount
92,872,271 $93 $128,877 $(62) $(60,601) $68,307 $8,594 $76,901
1,110,379 1 21,818 — — 21,819 — 21,819
— — — (26,617) (26,617) (133) (26,750)
93,982,650 $94 $150,695 $(62) $(87,218) $63,509 $8,461 $71,970
Redeemable Preferrod | Redeemable Prefrred | Mezzamine | Commonstock | Paidin | Tasury | Accumulated | Yotal Stockholders |y, gy
Stock Stock Equity Capital
Shares I Amount Shares I Amount Amount Shares I Amount
660,000 15,135,000 1,304,000 29,902 45,037 53,396,920 53 43,925 (62) (44,666) (750) 44,287
— 76,000 1,900 1,900 — — — — — 1,900
— — (228) (228) — — — — (228)
— — — — — — — (171) (171) (171)
660,000 15,135,000 1,380,000 31,574 46,709 53,396,920 $ 53 43,925 (62) (44,837) (921) 45,788

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements




APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended November 30, 2022

Balance, May 31, 2022
Stock-based compensation

Common Stock

Additional Paid in Capital

Treasury Stock

Accumulated deficit

Total Stockholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interest

Total Equity

Capital contribution to noncontrolling interest

Stock Cancellation
Net Loss

Balance, November 30, 2022

Six Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance, May 31, 2021
Extinguishment of Debt

Issuance of Dividends to
Preferred Stock

Conversion of Preferred
Stock

Service agreement stock
compensation

Issuance of Preferred Stock

Issuance Costs of Preferred
Stock

Net Loss
Balance, November 30, 2021

Shares Amount
97,837,703 $98 $128,293 $(62) $(56,070) $72,259 $6,976 $79,235
1,110,379 1 22,397 — — 22,398 — 22,398
— — — — — — 1,746 1,746
(4,965,432) (5) 5 — — — — —
— — — — (31,148) (31,148) (261) (31,409)
93,982,650 $94 $150,695 $(62) $(87.218) $63,509 $8.461 $71,970
Series C Convertible | Series D Convertible Total Series A Convertible | Series B Convertible Additional S
Redeemable Redeemable Preferred| Mezzanine Preferred Preferred Common Stock Paid in Tget?)i‘;(ry Accg:;-l“cli?md Total Sl)t:'cil:il:olders Total Equity
Preferred Stock Stock Equity Stock Stock Capital
Shares Amount Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
660,000 $ 15,135 — 3 — $15,135 27,195 $3,370 17,087 $1,849 1,511,061 $1 $13,882 $(62) $(21,623) $(2,583) $12,552
— — — — — — — — — 5,083,828 5 3,473 — — 3,478 3,478
— — — — — 60,822 6,082 29,772 2,979 — — — — (8,946) 115 115
— — — — — (88,017)  (9.452)  (46,859)  (4,828) 28,765,308 29 14,251 — — — -
— — — — — — — — — 18,036,723 18 12,319 — — 12,337 12,337
— — 1,380,000 34,500 34,500 — — — — — — — — — — 34,500
— — —  (2.926) (2,926) — — — — — — — — — — (2,926)
— — — — — — — — — — — — — (14,268) (14,268) (14,268)
660,000 $ 15,135 1,380,000 $31,574 $46,709 — 8 = — 8 = 53,396,920 $ 53 § 43925 8 (62) $ (44,837) $(921) $45,788

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements




APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)(In thousands of dollars)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss attributable to Applied Digital Corporation

Net loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes
Net Loss attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net Income (loss) from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and Amortization
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Stock-Based Compensation
Lease Expense
Deferred Tax
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Customer deposits
Deferred revenue
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Sales and use tax payable
Lease Assets and Liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment
Deposit on equipment
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of preferred stock
Repayment of finance leases
Preferred issuance costs
Term loan payoff
Proceeds from issuance of term loan
Term Loan Issuance Costs
Loan Payments
Payments of employee restricted stock tax withholdings
Equity contributions to subsidiaries
Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by financing activities of discontinued operations
CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET (DECREASE ) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD
Less: cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest Paid
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES
Right-of-use asset obtained by lease obligation
Fixed assets in accounts payable

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

Six Months Ended

November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
(31,148) $ (14,268)
— 1,681
(261) —
(31,409) (15,949)
2,704 177
94 1,342
22,398 12,337
97 28
(280) 214
(49) —
(1,061) (1,644)
15,165 —
25,517 —
(5,745) 5,254
865 —
(317) (25)
27,979 1,734
— 600
27,979 2,334
(70,305) (10,314)
— (23,230)
(70,305) (33,544)
— 1,931
(70,305) (31,613)
— 34,500
(778) —
— (2.926)
(7,056) —
21,711 —
(378) —
(1,102) —
(43) —
1,747 —
14,101 31,574
14,101 31,574
(28,225) 2,295
46,299 11,750
18,074 14,045
18,074 § 14,045
707 $ —
6,925 § 1,291
3466 $ 513
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APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
For the Three and Six Month Periods Ended November 30, 2022

1. BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
Applied Digital Corporation, f/k/a Applied Blockchain, Inc. (the “Company™), is a builder and operator of next-generation data centers across
North America, which provide substantial computing power to high power computing applications such as blockchain infrastructure, nature
language processing, and artificial intelligence. The Company has a colocation business model where customers place hardware they own into the
Company’s facilities and the Company provides full operational and maintenance services for a fixed fee. The Company typically enters into long
term fixed rate contracts with its customers.

On April 12, 2022, the Company effected a one-for-six (1:6) reverse split (the “Reverse Stock Split”) of shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”). All references to Common Stock, options to purchase common stock, restricted stock units,
share data, per share data and related information contained in the condensed consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted
to reflect the effect of the Reverse Stock Split for all periods presented. No fractional shares of the Company’s common stock were issued in
connection with the Reverse Stock Split. Any fractional share resulting from the Reverse Stock Split was rounded down to the nearest whole share
and the affected holder received cash in lieu of such fraction share.

On September 1, 2022, Company entered into a joint venture agreement with GMR Limited (“GMR”) to form Highland Digital Holdings, LLC
(“Highland Digital”), which may acquire mining hardware and digital infrastructure assets. The Company and GMR each have a 50% ownership
stake in Highland Digital. GMR is the controlling partner and will consolidate the results of Highland Digital in its financial statements. The
Company will not consolidate Highland Digital in its financial statements, but will account for the entity under the equity method. As of
November 30, 2022, the Company had a firm commitment of $0.6 million to Highland Digital.

On October 13, 2022, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Foundry Technologies, Inc. (“Foundry”) to form SAI Computing,
LLC (“SAI”). SAI will provide artificial intelligence and machine learning application customers with access to machines and a hosting
environment. The Company is currently expanding capacity at the Jamestown, North Dakota datacenter facility to provide access to SAI and its
customers. The Company has an 98% ownership interest in SAI and plans to consolidate the entity.

2. LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

As of November 30, 2022, the Company had approximate cash and cash equivalents of $ 18.1 million and negative working capital of $49.5
million. Historically the Company has incurred losses and has relied on equity financings to fund its operations. Based on an analysis of cash
flows, current net working capital, and expected operations revenue, the Company believes its current cash on hand is sufficient to meet its
operating and capital requirement for at least next twelve months from the date these financial statements are issued.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation:

The accompanying interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), including the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Certain information
and footnote disclosures normally included in the Company's annual consolidated financial statements on Form 10-K have been condensed or
omitted. The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of May 31,



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

2022 has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of that date, but does not include all disclosures required for audited
annual financial statements. For further information, please refer to and read these interim unaudited condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022 filed with the SEC on August 29, 2022.

Significant Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates:

There were no material changes in the Company’s significant accounting policies for the three and six months ended November 30, 2022 as
compared to the year ended May 31, 2022. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended May 31, 2022, as filed with the SEC, for additional information regarding the Company’s significant accounting policies
and use of estimates.

The preparation of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ significantly from those
estimates. The most significant accounting estimates inherent in the preparation of the Company’s financial statements include estimates the
valuation allowance associated with the Company’s deferred tax assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of acquisition to be cash
equivalents. The Company’s cash equivalents in excess of federally insured limits potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, although
the Company believes it is subject to minimal risk.

The Company has restricted cash related to its letter of credit. The Company is required to keep this balance in a separate account for the duration
of the letter of credit agreement, which lasts through January 2024. The Company also has restricted cash related to its Starion Term Loan buy-
down (as defined below). The following tables reconciles cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash to presentation on the balance sheet as of
November 30, 2022, and May 31, 2022.

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 May 31, 2022

Net Cash & Equivalents $ 10,512 $ 38,798
Restricted Cash $ 7,562 $ 7,501
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 18,074 $ 46,299

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company continually assesses any new accounting pronouncements to determine their applicability. When it is determined that a new
accounting pronouncement affects the Company’s financial reporting, the Company undertakes a study to determine the consequences of the
change to its consolidated financial statements and assures that there are proper controls in place to ascertain that the Company’s consolidated
financial statements properly reflect the change.



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of November 30, 2022, and May 31, 2022:

November 30, May 31,

(in thousands) Estimated Useful Life 2022 2022
Hosting Equipment

Electric Generation and Transformers 15 years $ 4519 §$ 4,338
Other Equipment and Fixtures 5 years-7 years 718 588
Construction in Progress 83,290 18,305
Information Systems and Software 5 years 11,116 9,608
Land & Building

Land 2,152 1,074

Land Improvements 15 years 1,259 1,180

Building 39 years 32,519 30,176
Total cost of property and equipment 135,572 65,269
Accumulated Depreciation (2,679) (1,009)
Property Plant and Equipment, Net $ 132,893 § 64,260

Depreciation expense from continuing operations totaled $0.8 million and $0.2 million and for the three months ended November 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively. Depreciation expense from continuing operations totaled $1.7 million and $0.2 million and for the six months ended
November 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

5. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
The Company recognizes revenue when promised services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be received in exchange for those services. The Company notes all revenue recognized from continuing operations during the
quarter was received through hosting revenue.

Below is a summary of the Company’s revenue concentration by major customer for the three and six months ended November 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively.
Three Months Ended November 30,

Customer 2022 2021

Customer A 32.6 % — %
Customer B 26.5 % — %
Customer C 16.2 % — %
Customer D 13.0 % — %
Customer E 11.8 % — %



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

Six Months Ended November 30,

Customer 2022 2021

Customer A 33.7 % — %
Customer B 21.5 % — %
Customer C 17.9 % — %
Customer D 14.2 % — %
Customer E 12.7 % — %

Remaining Performance Obligations
As of November 30, 2022, the Company had $ 29.4 million in deferred revenue, which represents the Company’s remaining performance
obligations. The Company expects to recognize $29.4 million within the next 12 months.

Deferred Revenue
Changes in the Company's deferred revenue balances from hosting operations for the three and six months ended November 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, are shown in the following table:

(in thousands) (in thousands)

Three Months Ended November 30, 2022 Three Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 19,193 Balance at May 31, 2021 $ —
Advance billings 22,406 Advance billings —
Revenue recognized (12,340) Revenue recognized =
Other adjustments $ 135 Other adjustments $ —
Balance at November 30, 2022 $ 29,394 Balance at November 30, 2021 $ =
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Six Months Ended November 30, 2022 Six Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance at May 31, 2022 3,877 Balance at May 31, 2021 $ =
Advance billings 44,646 Advance billings —
Revenue recognized (19,264) Revenue recognized —
Other adjustments $ 135 Other adjustments $ —
Balance at November 30, 2022 $ 29,394 Balance at November 30, 2021 $ —
Customer Deposits

Changes in the Company's customer deposits balances for the three and six months ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, are shown
in the following table:



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

(in thousands) (in thousands)

Three Months Ended November 30, 2022 Three Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 14,111 Balance at August 31, 2021 $ —
Customer deposits received 10,713 Customer deposits received —
Customer deposits refunded —  Customer deposits refunded —
Other adjustments $ (135)  Other adjustments $ —
Balance at November 30, 2022 $ 24,689 Balance at November 30, 2021 $ —
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Six Months Ended November 30, 2022 Six Months Ended November 30, 2021

Balance at May 31, 2022 $ 9,524  Balance at May 31, 2021 $ —
Customer deposits received 15,300  Customer deposits received —
Customer deposits refunded —  Customer deposits refunded —
Other adjustments $ (135)  Other adjustments $ —
Balance at November 30, 2022 $ 24,689  Balance at November 30, 2021 $ —

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related Party Policy

Parties are considered related to the Company if the parties, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control, are controlled by,
or are under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its management, members of the
immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal if one party
controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be
prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. The Company discloses all material related party transactions.

Related Party Note Payable

During the period ended November 30, 2021, a related party note payable was held by the CEO of the Company. During this period, the
outstanding debt principal of $0.5 million and accrued interest of $ 1.6 million were converted to 5.1 million shares of Common Stock with a fair
value of $0.75 per share which resulted in a loss on extinguishment of $ 1.3 million. Upon the consummation of an exchange agreement, the note
payable was surrendered and cancelled, and all rights including rights to accrued interest due were extinguished.

Related Party Revenue
The Company has material transactions with two related parties Company A is a customer and is also the parent company of the minority member
of the 1.21 Gigawatts joint venture.. Company B is a customer and is also the controlling member of the Highland Digital joint venture. Company

B became a related party during September 2022. The following tables illustrate related party revenue for the three and six months ended
November 30, 2022 and November 30, 2021.

10



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

Revenue for the Three Months ended

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
Customer A $ 4,016 $ —
Customer B $ 5,043 $ —

Revenue for the Six Months ended

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
Customer A $ 6,469 $ —
Customer B $ 8,622 $ —

The following tables illustrate related party deferred revenue and deposits balances as of November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022.

Customer A Balances as of

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 May 31, 2022
Deferred revenue $ 700 $ 1,721
Customer Deposits $ 1,584 $ 1,719

Customer B Balances as of

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 May 31, 2022
Deferred revenue $ 2,279 $ 888
Customer Deposits $ 7,024 $ 6,508

7. DEBT
Letter of Credit

As of November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, the Company had a letter of credit totaling $ 7.5 million. As discussed in Footnote 3, the Company is
required to maintain this amount in a separate cash balance, and therefore the cash is restricted. Further, the Company has no unused lines of credit
as of November 30, 2022 or May 31, 2022, respectively.

Starion Term Loan

On July 25, 2022, APLD Hosting, LLC (the “Borrower”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Applied Digital Corporation, entered into a Loan
Agreement with Starion Bank (“Starion Lender”) and the Company as Guarantor (the “Starion Loan Agreement”). The Starion Loan Agreement
provides for a term loan (the “Starion Term Loan”) in the principal amount of $15 million with a maturity date of July 25, 2027. The Starion Loan
Agreement provides for an interest rate of 6.50% per annum. The Starion Loan Agreement contains customary covenants, representations and
warranties and events of default. The Company is not subject to financial covenants until May 31, 2024. At that time, the Company will



APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Three and Six Month Period Ended November 30, 2022

be subject to a debt service coverage ratio. Deferred financing costs related to the Starion Term Loan total $ 0.1 million.

The City of Jamestown, North Dakota and Stutsman County’s Economic Development Fund provides a multimillion-dollar economic
development program, available to assist with expanding or relocating businesses. As part of financial packages, the Jamestown Stutsman
Development Corporation (JSDC) makes direct loans, equity investments, and interest buy-downs to businesses. The Company has entered into an
agreement with JDSC and Starion Bank which buys down the Company’s interest rate to 1.5% for a period of 13 months through a loan and
community bond. The loan totals $0.2 million and bears an interest rate of 2%, and the bond totals $0.5 million.

In connection with the Starion Loan Agreement, the Company repaid all of the outstanding balance on the March 11, 2022 agreement between the
Company and Vantage Bank Texas. This agreement included a promissory note agreement for $7.5 million for a five year term with an interest
rate of 5% per annum.

Vantage Garden City Loan

On November 7, 2022, APLD — Rattlesnake Den I, LLC (the “Borrower”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Loan
Agreement with Vantage Bank Texas (“Vantage Lender”) and the Company, as guarantor, which agreement provides for a term loan in the
principal amount of $15 million (the “Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement”). The Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement will be advanced in 16
installments for working capital needs for the Borrower’s datacenter in Garden City, Texas, with each installment not exceeding approximately
$0.9 million for the costs and expenses of a building at the Company’s hosting facility in Garden City, Texas (the “Garden City Facility”). The
unpaid principal amount of the Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement will bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.15% per annum, and the Borrower may
prepay the Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement, in whole or in part, without the payment of any fee or penalty. The Vantage Garden City Loan
Agreement matures April 26, 2028. The Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, covenants and
events of default. As of the date of this report, an aggregate amount of $6.6 million has been advanced under the Vantage Garden City Loan
Agreement. Total deferred costs related to the issuance of this loan total are $0.2 million.

Below is a summary of the remaining principal payments due over the life of the Starion Loan Agreement and Vantage Garden City Loan
Agreement notes as of November 30, 2022.

Principal Payments (in

Year thousands)
FY23 $ 1,537
FY24 5,415
FY25 5,783
FY26 4,033
FY27 3,373
Thereafter 526
Total Term Loan Remaining Payments $ 20,667
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Below is a summary of Starion Loan Agreement Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement term loan balances, including current debt and deferred
financing fees as of November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022.

(in thousands) November 30, 2022 May 31, 2022
Term Loan Balance $20,667 $7,324
Less: Deferred Issuance Costs (240) 94)
Less: Current portion of Term Loan (4,076) (1,333)
Long-term Portion of Term Loan $16,351 $5,897

8. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Common Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 166,666,667 shares of Common Stock at $0.001 par value per share. As of November 30, 2022, 93,982,650
shares of Common Stock were issued and 93,946,353 shares were outstanding and as of May 31, 2022, 97,837,703 shares of Common Stock were
issued and 97,801,406 shares were outstanding. All shares of Common Stock in this report reflect the one-for-six reverse stock split disclosed in
Note 1 - Business and Organization.

Restricted Stock Awards

The Company has granted restricted stock awards to officers and directors. Each of the awards vests upon the completion of service conditions for
specified times and a performance condition for the occurrence of an effective registration statement covering the resale of the shares of Common
Stock comprising the stock award with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The Company will recognize the cost of the
restricted stock-based on the grant date fair value of the awards over the related vesting terms using a straight-line method when it is probable that
the performance condition for the reserved underlying shares will be met.

The following is a summary of the activity and balances for unvested restricted stock awards granted for the six months ended November 30,

2022:
Weighted Average Grant

Number of Shares Date Fair Value Per Share
Outstanding as of May 31, 2022 $ 1,366,666 $ 8.04
Granted 77,500 $ 2.04
Vested (952,500) $ 7.55
Forfeited — $ —
Outstanding as of November 30, 2022 491,666 $ 8.04

As of November 30, 2022, total expense to be recognized related to these awards was $ 0.9 million and the weighted average remaining
recognition period for the unvested awards was 3 months.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock unit awards (“RSUs”) to certain consultants, in all cases as compensatory grants for consulting services
rendered to the Company, which contain performance conditions that affect vesting. The Company will recognize the cost of these RSUs based on
the grant date fair value of the awards when it is probable that the performance conditions will be achieved over the related vesting terms.
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9.

10.

Equity Plans

On October 9, 2021, the Company’s board of directors approved two equity incentive plans, which the Company’s stockholders approved on

January 20, 2022. The two plans consist of the 2022 Incentive Plan, previously referred to in the Company’s SEC filings as the 2021 Incentive

Plan (the “Incentive Plan”), which provides for grants of various equity awards to the Company’s employees and consultants, and the 2022 Non-

Employee Director Stock Plan previously referred to in the Company’s SEC filings as the 2021 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan (the “Director

Plan” and, together with the Incentive Plan, the “Plans™), which provides for grants of restricted stock to non-employee directors and for deferral of
cash and stock compensation if such deferral provisions are activated at a future date. As of November 30, 2022, the Company had issued

approximately 8.0 million awards under the plans.

The following is a summary of the activity and balances for unvested restricted stock units granted for the six months ended November 30, 2022:

Weighted Average Grant Date

Number of Shares Fair Value Per Share
Outstanding as of May 31, 2022 1,791,666 $ 8.04
Granted 7,897,907 $ 2.32
Vested (179,166) $ 8.04
Forfeited (445,749) $ 7.65
Outstanding as of November 30, 2022 9,064,658 $ 3.07

As of November 30, 2022, total expense to be recognized related to these awards was $ 17.7 million and the weighted average remaining
recognition period for the unvested awards was 23 months.

Share Forfeiture

On June 6, 2022, through an agreement between the Company and Sparkpool, Sparkpool agreed to forfeit shares of Common Stock that had been
issued pursuant to the service agreement executed on March 19, 2021. Sparkpool ceased providing the contracted services for the Company, and
agreed to forfeit shares to compensate for future services that will not be rendered. As a result of this agreement, 4,965,432 shares of Common
Stock were forfeited and canceled by the Company.

LEASES
During the six months ended November 30, 2022, the Company entered into 18 new leases, bringing the total number of leases to 39. The
Company considered the nature of the leases under ASC 842 Leases and determined each of these leases represent finance leases. The weighted
average term of the leases is 31 months and the weighted average discount rate of the leases is 7.50%. Total ROU assets entered into during the
six months ended November 30, 2022 totaled $6.9 million.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

As of November 30, 2022, the Company has commitments related to its term loan and lease agreements , which have been disclosed in Note 7 -
Debt and Note 9 - Leases, respectively.
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Energy Commitment

The Company also has a commitment of approximately $24.2 million related to the energy services agreement for its Jamestown, North Dakota
cohosting facility as of November 30, 2022. The minimum term of this agreement is five years, and will remain in effect on a year-to-year basis
unless terminated by either party by notice given at least 365 calendar days in advance of termination. The commitment is fully due within the
next year, as the Company commits to specific power consumption on an annual basis as part of the energy services agreement. The Company
purchased approximately $10.3 million and zero in power under the energy services agreement during the three months ended November 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively. The Company purchased approximately $15.1 million and zero in power under the energy services agreement during the
six months ended November 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Claims and Litigation

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal course of business. As of
November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the results of the Company’s consolidated operations. There are also no legal proceedings in which any of the Company’s management or
affiliates is an adverse party or has a material interest adverse to the Company’s interest.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic net income (loss) per share (“EPS”) of Common Stock is computed by dividing the Company’s net earnings (loss) by the weighted average
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if the securities or
other contracts to issue Common Stock were exercised or converted into Common Stock or resulted in the issuance of Common Stock that then
shared in the earnings of the entity.

Potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. The table
below shows the calculation for this quarter’s earnings per share:

Basic and diluted loss per share: Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

November 30,2022 November 30,2021 November 30,2022 November 30, 2021
Net loss from continuing operations $ (26,750) $ (1,569) $ (31,409) $ (15,949)
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes — 1,398 — 1,681
Net loss including noncontrolling interests (26,750) (171) (31,409) (14,268)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (133) — (261) —
Net loss attributable to Applied Digital Corporation $ (26,617) § 171) § (31,148) § (14,268)

Basic and diluted net (loss) gain per share:

Continuing Operations $ 0.29) $ (0.03) $ 0.34) $ (0.32)
Discontinued Operations $ — § 0.03 $ — § 0.03
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 0.29) $ — § 0.34) $ (0.29)

Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 93,422,427 53,396,920 93,263,266 49,143,981
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. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During February 2022, the Company implemented plans to cease all cryptomining operations and start the sale process of all cryptomining
equipment. The Company ceased all crypto mining operations and completed the sale of the assets during the year ended May 31, 2022. The
Company has no plans to return to crypto mining operations in the future as the Company grows. The results of these operations have been

displayed as discontinued operations.Operating results of discontinued operations are summarized below:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,

in thousands 2022 2021 2022 2021
Cryptoasset mining revenue, net $ — $ 1,426 — 2,038

Cost of sales — 433 — 782
Gross profit — 993 — 1,256
Impairment of cryptocurrency assets — (145) — (165)
Gain on Extinguishment of Accounts Payable — 285 — 325
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets 265 265
Net gain from discontinued operations $ — $ 1,398 — 1,681

As of November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, the Company did not hold any cryptoassets.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that involve substantial risks and uncertainties. In some cases you can identify these statements
by forward-looking words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “seek,” “should,” “will,” and “would,”
or similar words. Statements that contain these words and other statements that are forward-looking in nature should be read carefully because they
discuss future expectations, contain projections of future results of operations or of financial positions or state other “forward-looking” information.

99 ¢ 2 ¢

Forward-looking statements involve inherent uncertainty and may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false. These statements are based on our
management’s beliefs and assumptions, which are based on currently available information. These assumptions could prove inaccurate. You are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Except as otherwise may be required by law, we undertake no obligation to update
or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or actual operating results. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, but not limited to:

» labor and other workforce shortages and challenges;

» our dependence on principal customers;

» the addition or loss of significant customers or material changes to our relationships with these customers;

* our ability to timely and successfully build new hosting facilities with the appropriate contractual margins and efficiencies;

* our ability to continue to grow sales in our hosting business;

* concentration of customers in the crypto mining industry, which customer base may decline due to price volatility and uncertainties around
regulation policy of cryptoasset prices;

* equipment failures, power or other supply disruptions; and

You should carefully review the risks described in Item 1A of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2022, which
was filed on August 29, 2022, as well as any other cautionary language in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as the occurrence of any of these events
could have an adverse effect, which may be material, on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Executive Overview

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the related
notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Business Overview

We design, build, and operate Next-Gen datacenters which are designed to provide massive computing power and support high-compute applications.
Our first facility was constructed in Jamestown, North Dakota with 100 Megawatts (“MW”) of capacity. We signed an energy services agreement with a
utility to power this facility. We provide energized space for customers to host computing equipment. Initially, these datacenters primarily hosted
servers serving the Bitcoin network, but these facilities can also host hardware for other applications such as artificial intelligence, protein sequencing,
drug discovery, machine learning and additional blockchain networks and applications. During the quarter ended November 30, 2022, we began tests for
hosting other high-compute applications at our first facility. In addition to this facility, we have substantially completed construction on our second
facility in Garden City, Texas, and are mid-construction on our third facility, which is located in Ellendale, North Dakota. We have a colocation business
model where our customers place

13



Table of Contents

hardware they own into our facilities and we provide full operational and maintenance services for a fixed fee. We typically enter into long-term fixed
rate contracts with our customers.

Trends and Other Factors Affecting Our Business

Regulatory Environment

We have a material concentration of customers in the crypto mining industry. Our customers’ businesses are subject to extensive laws, rules, regulations,
policies and legal and regulatory guidance, including those governing securities, commodities, cryptoasset custody, exchange and transfer, data
governance, data protection, cybersecurity and tax. Many of these legal and regulatory regimes were adopted prior to the advent of the Internet, mobile
technologies, cryptoassets and related technologies. As a result, they do not contemplate or address unique issues associated with the crypto economy,
are subject to significant uncertainty, and vary widely across U.S. federal, state and local and international jurisdictions. These legal and regulatory
regimes, including the laws, rules and regulations thereunder, evolve frequently and may be modified, interpreted and applied in an inconsistent manner
from one jurisdiction to another, and may conflict with one another. Moreover, the complexity and evolving nature of our business and the significant
uncertainty surrounding the regulation of the crypto economy requires us to exercise our judgement as to whether certain laws, rules and regulations
apply to us or our customers, and it is possible that governmental bodies and regulators may disagree with our or our customers’ conclusions. To the
extent we or our customers have not complied with such laws, rules and regulations, we could be subject to significant fines and other regulatory
consequences, which could adversely affect our business, prospects or operations. As cryptoassets have grown in popularity and in market size, the
Federal Reserve Board, U.S. Congress and certain U.S. agencies (e.g., the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, the SEC, the Financial Crimes
Enforcement Network and the Federal Bureau of Investigation) have begun to examine the operations of cryptoasset networks, cryptoasset users and
cryptoasset exchange markets. Other countries around the world are likewise reviewing and, in some cases, increasing regulation of the cryptoasset
industry. For instance, on September 24, 2021, China imposed a ban on all crypto transactions and mining.

Ongoing and future regulatory actions could effectively prevent our customers’ mining operations and our ongoing or planned co-hosting operations,
limiting or preventing future revenue generation by us or rendering our operations and crypto mining equipment obsolete. Such actions could severely
impact our ability to continue to operate and our ability to continue as a going concern or to pursue our strategy at all, which would have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects or operations.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”). In connection with the preparation of our financial statements, we are required to make assumptions and estimates about
future events and apply judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and the related disclosures. We base our
assumptions, estimates and judgments on historical experience, current trends and other factors that management believes to be relevant at the time our
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared. On a regular basis, management reviews the accounting policies, assumptions,
estimates and judgments to ensure that our financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance with GAAP. However, because future events and
their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be material.

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 3 — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022 filed with the SEC on August 29, 2022.

Hosting Operation Highlights
Applied Digital’s first facility is in Jamestown, North Dakota with capacity of 100 MW. The entire 100 MW of capacity has been fully contracted on

multi-year contracts with our customers, providing revenue visibility for the Company. Additionally, the facility is powered through a five-year energy
services agreement with a local
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utility, providing visibility into the cost structure as a stable pricing mechanism for energy costs has been negotiated.

The facility began energizing in late January 2022 and has over 90 MW online as of November 30, 2022. As previously reported in a Current Report on
Form 8-K filed by the Company on July 18, 2022, there was an unexpected equipment failure at the substation powering the facility, resulting in a
partial outage of approximately 50%. The power provider completed the required repairs in mid-August, fully restoring power capacity to Jamestown
ahead of the schedule for early September. The Jamestown facility was not damaged and remains fully operational and capable of hosting the entire 100
MW of capacity. There were no reductions or interruptions in service for the three months ended November 30, 2022.

On July 12, 2022, the Company entered into a five-year hosting contract with Marathon Digital Holdings, Inc. ("Marathon") for 270 MW of mining
capacity. As a result of this arrangement, the Company will supply Marathon with 90 MW of hosting capacity at its facility in Texas and 180 MW of
hosting capacity at its second facility in North Dakota.

Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of our last fiscal year, the Company ceased all crypto mining operations and completed the sale of all crypto mining equipment.
The results of the crypto mining operations are accounted for as discontinued operations in our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Expansion Opportunities

On November 24, 2021, we entered into a letter of intent to develop a facility in Texas using 200 MW of wind power. On April 13, 2022, the Company
entered into a 99-year ground lease in Garden City, Texas, with the intent to build our second datacenter facility on this site. On April 25, 2022 the
Company began construction on this site. This facility is collocated with a wind farm and upon completion is expected to provide 200 MW of power to
hosting customers. The facility is nearing completion and is expected to begin operating in the first calendar quarter of 2023. The 200 MW capacity is
fully contracted with customers.

On August 8, 2022, the Company completed the purchase of 40 acres of land ("the Land") in Ellendale, North Dakota, for a total cost of $1 million. The
Company took possession of the Land on August 15, 2022, and is process of building a 180 MW datacenter on the Land, with completion scheduled for
the first calendar quarter of 2023.

As our hosting operations expand, we believe our business structure will become conducive to a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) structure,
comparable to Digital Realty Trust (NYSE: DLR) and Equinix, Inc. (NASDAQ: EQIX), each of which is a traditional datacenter operator and Innovative
Industrial Properties, Inc. (NYSE: IIPR), a specialty REIT that similarly services a new growth industry. We have begun to investigate the possibility,
costs and benefits of converting to a REIT structure.

On September 1, 2022, Company entered into a joint-venture agreement with GMR Limited (“GMR”) to form Highland Digital Holdings, LLC
(“Highland Digital”), which may acquire mining hardware and digital infrastructure assets. Both the Company and GMR have a 50% ownership stake in
Highland Digital. GMR is the controlling partner and will consolidate the results of Highland Digital. Therefore, the Company will not consolidate the
Highland in their financial statements, but will report results based on the Company’s ownership percentage in Highland Digital.

On October 13, 2022, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Foundry Technologies, Inc. (“Foundry”) to form SAI Computing, LLC
(“SATI”). SAI will provide artificial intelligence and machine learning application customers with access to machines and a hosting environment. The
Company is currently expanding capacity at the Jamestown, North Dakota datacenter facility to provide access to SAI and its customers. The Company
has an 98% ownership interest in SAI and plans to consolidate the entity.
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On December 14, 2022, the Company began construction of its latest specialized processing center, a 5 MW facility next to the Company’s currently
operating 100-MW hosting facility in Jamestown, North Dakota. This separate and unique building, designed and purpose-built for Graphics Processing
Units (“GPUs”), will sit separate from the Company’s current buildings and plans to host more traditional high performance computing (“HPC”)
applications, such as natural language processing, machine learning, and additional HPC developments.

Changes to Equity

On April 12, 2022, the Company effected a one-for-six (1:6) reverse split (the “Reverse Stock Split”) of shares of the Company’s common stock, par
value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock™). All references to Common Stock, options to purchase common stock, restricted stock units, share data,
per share data and related information contained in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted to
reflect the effect of the Reverse Stock Split for all periods presented. No fractional shares of the Company’s common stock were issued in connection
with the Reverse Stock Split. Any fractional share resulting from the Reverse Stock Split was rounded down to the nearest whole share and the affected
holder received cash in lieu of such fraction share.

On January 14, 2022, the Company granted restricted stock awards to directors and officers and restricted stock units to certain consultants. Each of
these awards and units contained a vesting condition of an effective registration statement covering the resale of the Common Stock underlying these
awards. On October 11, 2022, the Securities and Exchange Commission declared the Company’s registration statement covering these awards to be
effective. In conjunction with this registration statement being declared effective, awards for approximately 1.1 million shares of Common Stock vested.
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Results of Operations Comparative Results for the Three and Six Months Ended November 30, 2022 and 2021:

The following table sets forth key components of the results of operations (in thousands) of Applied Digital during the three and six months ended
November 30, 2022 and 2021.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021 November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021

Revenues:
Hosting revenue $ 12,340 $ — $ 19,264 $ —
Cost of revenues $ 11,812 $ — $ 17,905 $ —
Gross profit 528 — 1,359 —
Costs and expenses:
Selling, general and administrative $ 26,502 $ 1,181 $ 31,212 $ 14,216
Depreciation and amortization 703 174 1,001 177
Total costs and expenses $ 27,205 $ 1,355 $ 32,213 $ 14,393
Operating loss $ (26,677) $ (1,355) $ (30,854) $ (14,393)
Other income (expense):
Interest Expense $ (385) § — $ (741) S —
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — 94) (1,342)
Total other expense, net (385) — (835) (1,342)
Net loss from continuing operations before income tax expenses (27,062) (1,355) (31,689) (15,735)
Income tax benefit (expense) 312 (214) 280 (214)
Net loss from continuing operations (26,750) (1,569) (31,409) (15,949)
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes — 1,398 — 1,681
Net loss including noncontrolling interests (26,750) (171) (31,409) (14,268)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (133) — (261) —
Net loss attributable to Applied Digital Corporation $ (26,617) $ (171) $ (31,148) $ (14,268)
Basic and diluted net (loss) gain per share:

Continuing Operations $ 029 § (0.03) $ 034) § (0.32)

Discontinued Operations $ — 0.03 $ — 8 0.03
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 029 $ — $ 034) § (0.29)
Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares outstanding 93,422,427 53,396,920 93,263,266 49,143,981
Adjusted Amounts (a)
Adjusted Operating Loss from Continuing Operations (3,700) (1,004) (6,596) (403)
Adjusted Operating Margin from Continuing Operations (30)% —% (34)% —%
Adjusted Net Loss from Continuing Operations (3,773) (1,218) (7,151) (1,959)
Other Financial Data (a)
EBITDA (25,109) (1,181) (28,244) (15,558)
as a percentage of revenues (203)% —% (147)% —%
Adjusted EBITDA (2,132) (830) (3,986) (1,568)
as a percentage of revenues AA7)% —% 21H)% —%
Adjusted Gross Profit 1,509 — 3,176 —
as a percentage of revenues 12 % — % 16 % —%
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(a) Adjusted Amounts and Other Financial Data are non-GAAP performance measures. A reconciliation of reported amounts to adjusted amounts
can be found in the "Non-GAAP Measures and Reconciliation" section of the MD&A.

Commentary on Results of Operations Comparative Results for the Three and Six Months Ended November 30, 2022 and 2021

Revenues

Hosting revenues increased by $12.3 million, or 100%, from zero for the three months ended November 30, 2021 to $12.3 million for the three months
ended November 30, 2022. Hosting revenues increased by $19.3 million, or 100%, from zero for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to

$19.3 million for the six months ended November 30, 2022. The increase in hosting revenues was driven by our completion of our first hosting facility
in Jamestown, North Dakota, which was brought online in phases during the final six months of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues increased by $11.8 million, or 100%, from zero for the three months ended November 30, 2021 to $11.8 million for the three months
ended November 30, 2022. Cost of revenues increased by $17.9 million, or 100%, from zero for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to $17.9
million for the six months ended November 30, 2022. The increase in cost of revenues was primarily driven by the initiation of our co-hosting business
in late fiscal year ended May 31, 2022, which represents all of our continuing operations.

Cost of revenues for the three months ended November 30, 2022 consists of $0.9 million of depreciation and amortization expense attributable to the
property, plant and equipment at our Jamestown, North Dakota hosting facility, $10.3 million of energy costs used to generate our hosting revenues, and
$0.7 million of personnel expenses for employees directly working at the hosting facility.

Cost of revenues for the six months ended November 30, 2022 consists of $1.7 million of depreciation and amortization expense attributable to the
property, plant and equipment at our Jamestown, North Dakota hosting facility, $15.1 million of energy costs used to generate our hosting revenues, and
$1.1 million of personnel expenses for employees directly working at the hosting facility.

Operating Expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $25.3 million, or 2,142%, from $1.2 million for the three months ended November 30, 2021 to

$26.5 million for the three months ended November 30, 2022. The three primary drivers of selling, general and administrative expense for the three
months ended November 30, 2022 were $1.5 million of employee salaries and benefits expense not directly attributable to revenues, $1.2 million of
professional service expenses incurred to support the growth of the business, and stock-based compensation expense of $21.8 million. The stock-based
compensation expense is primarily driven by restricted stock award and restricted stock unit grants made to directors, officers, and consultants in January
2022 that contained a vesting condition related to an effective registration statement of shares covering the resale of the shares of Common Stock
underlying the awards. The registration statement covering the resale of these shares was deemed effective during the three months ended November 30,
2022, leading to a catch-up of expense as required by ASC 718. There was no stock-based compensation expense recognized during the three months
ended November 30, 2021.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $17.0 million, or 120%, from $14.2 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to
$31.2 million for the six months ended November 30, 2022. The three primary drivers of selling, general and administrative expense for the six months
ended November 30, 2022 were $2.8 million of employee salaries and benefits expense not directly attributable to revenues, $2.3 million of professional
service expenses incurred to support the growth of the business, and stock-based compensation expense of $22.4 million. The stock-based compensation
expense is primarily driven by restricted stock award
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and restricted stock unit grants made to directors, officers, and consultants in January 2022 that contained a vesting condition related to an effective
registration statement of shares covering the resale of the shares of Common Stock underlying the awards. The registration statement covering the resale
of these shares was deemed effective during the six months ended November 30, 2022, leading to a catch-up of expense as required by ASC 718. During
the six months ended November 30, 2021, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense related to our service agreements with strategic
partners, who provided advisory and consulting services in exchange for shares of common stock we issued to them. The awards were granted in June
2021 and vested immediately, as the services were fully rendered during the month of June 2021.

Depreciation and amortization expense not attributable to costs of sales increased $0.5 million, or 304%, from $0.2 million for the three months ended
November 30, 2021 to $0.7 million for the three months ended November 30, 2022. Depreciation and amortization expense not attributable to costs of
sales increased $0.8 million or 304%, from $0.2 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to $1.0 million for the six months ended
November 30, 2022. Both changes were driven by a significant increase in assets placed in service between periods to support the growth of the
business.

Other Expense
Interest expense increased $0.4 million, or 100% , from zero for the three months ended November 30, 2021 to $0.4 million for the three months ended

November 30, 2022.

Interest expense increased $0.7 million, or 100% , from zero for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to $0.7 million for the six months ended
November 30, 2022.

Both increases were driven by the increase in finance leases and change in the company’s debt obligations between periods, as APLD Hosting, LLC
(“Hosting™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Applied Digital Corporation, entered into the Loan Agreement with Starion Bank (“Starion Lender”) and the
Company as Guarantor (the “Starion Loan Agreement”) for a term loan (the “Starion Term Loan”) in the three months ended November 30, 2022, and
had previously entered into a term loan agreement with Vantage Bank, which was subsequently extinguished. The Starion Loan Agreement provides for
an interest rate of 6.50% per annum. The Starion Term Loan is secured by a mortgage on the Company’s Jamestown, North Dakota property, and a
security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Company as set forth in the Security Agreement dated as of July 25, 2022 by and between Hosting
and the Starion Lender and a security interest in the form of a collateral assignment of the Company’s rights and interests in a master hosting agreement
related to the Company’s Jamestown, North Dakota property and records and data relating thereto as set forth in the Security Agreement dated as of July
25, 2022 by and among Hosting, the Company as Grantor and the Starion Lender. In addition, the Company unconditionally guaranteed the Company’s
obligations to the Starion Lender, including under the Starion Term Loan, pursuant to an Unlimited Commercial Corporate Guaranty of the Company
dated as of July 25, 2022.

The City of Jamestown, North Dakota and Stutsman County’s Economic Development Fund provides a multimillion-dollar economic development
program, available to assist with expanding or relocating businesses. As part of financial packages, the Jamestown Stutsman Development Corporation
(JSDC) makes direct loans, equity investments, and interest buy-downs to businesses. The Company has entered into an agreement with JDSC and
Starion Bank which which buys down the Company’s interest rate to 1.5% for a period of 13 months through a loan and community bond. The loan
totals $0.2 million and bears an interest rate of 2%, and the bond totals $0.5 million.

On November 7, 2022, APLD — Rattlesnake Den I, LLC (the “Borrower”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Loan Agreement
with Vantage Bank Texas (“Vantage Lender”) and the Company, as guarantor, which provides for a term loan in the principal amount of $15 million (the
“Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement”). The Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement will be advanced in 16 installments for working capital needs for

the Borrower’s datacenter in Garden City, Texas (the “Garden City Facility”), with each installment not exceeding $0.9 million for the costs and
expenses of a building at the Garden City Facility. The



Table of Contents

unpaid principal amount of the Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement will bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.15% per annum, and the Borrower may
prepay the Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement, in whole or in part, without the payment of any fee or penalty. The Vantage Garden City Loan
Agreement matures April 26, 2028. The Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement contains customary representations, warranties, covenants and events of
default. As of the date of this report, an aggregate amount of $6.6 million has been advanced under the Vantage Garden City Loan Agreement.

Loss on extinguishment of debt for the three months ended November 30, 2021 and for the three months ended November 30, 2022 was zero for both
periods.

Loss on extinguishment of debt decreased $1.2 million, or 93%, from $1.3 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 to $0.1 million for the
six months ended November 30, 2022. This decrease was driven by the extinguishment of our related party notes payable by conversion to common
stock during the six months ended November 30, 2021, compared to a smaller extinguishment of term debt that was recognized in the six months ended
November 30, 2022.

Income tax benefit (expense)

The income tax benefit increased $0.5 million or 246% from a $0.2 million expense for the three months ended November 30, 2021 to a $0.3 million
benefit for the three months ended November 30, 2022. Income tax benefit increased $0.5 million or 231% from a $0.2 million expense for the six
months ended November 30, 2021 to approximately $0.3 million benefit for the six months ended November 30, 2022. This change was driven by a
change in valuation allowance for the periods ended November 30, 2022 compared to the periods ended November 30, 2021.

Gain from Discontinued Operations

Beginning in the quarter ended August 31, 2021 (the first quarter of the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022), we began cryptoasset mining operations, using
Nvidia GPU miners which we hosted at a facility operated by Coinmint. In the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022, we made the strategic decision to
discontinue our mining operations and focus on hosting operations in the future. As a result of this strategic shift, our mining operations were reclassified
as discontinued operations.

Gain from discontinued operations decreased $1.4 million, or 100%, from the three months ended November 30, 2021 to zero for the three months
ended November 30, 2022. Gain from discontinued operations decreased $1.7 million, or 100%, from the six months ended November 30, 2021 to zero
the six months ended November 30, 2022. The decrease was due to the fact that the Company no longer generates revenues from mining operations.

Non-GAAP Measures

Adjusted Operating Loss and Adjusted Net Loss

“Adjusted Operating Loss” and “Adjusted Net Loss” are non-GAAP measures that represents operating loss and net loss, respectively, from continuing
operations excluding stock-based compensation and nonrecurring expenses. We believe these are useful metrics as they provide additional information
regarding factors and trends affecting our business and provide perspective on results absent one-time or significant non-cash items. However, Applied
Digital’s presentation of these measures should not be construed as an inference that its future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring
items. Applied Digital’s computation of Adjusted Operating Loss and Adjusted Net Loss may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures
computed by other companies, because all companies may not calculate Adjusted Operating Loss and Adjusted Net Loss in the same fashion.
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Because of these limitations, Adjusted Operating Loss and Adjusted Net Loss should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for performance
measures calculated in accordance with GAAP. Applied Digital compensates for these limitations by relying primarily on its GAAP results and using
Adjusted Operating Loss and Adjusted Net Loss on a supplemental basis. You should review the reconciliation of operating loss to Adjusted Operating
Loss and net loss to Adjusted Net Loss above and not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate Applied Digital’s business.

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

“EBITDA” is defined as earnings before interest, taxes, and depreciation and amortization. “Adjusted EBITDA” is defined as EBITDA adjusted for
stock-based compensation, gain on extinguishment of accounts payable, loss on extinguishment of debt, and one-time professional service costs not
directly related to the company’s offering and therefore not deferred under the guidance in ASC 340 and SAB Topic 5A. These costs have been adjusted
as they are not indicative of business operations. Adjusted EBITDA is intended as a supplemental measure of Applied Digital’s performance that is

neither required by, nor presented in accordance with, GAAP. Applied Digital believes that the use of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provides an

additional tool for investors to use in evaluating ongoing operating results and trends and in comparing its financial measures with those of comparable
companies, which may present similar non-GAAP financial measures to investors. We also believe EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are useful metrics

to investors because they provide additional information regarding factors and trends affecting our business, which are used in the business planning
process to understand expected operating performance, to evaluate results against those expectations, and because of their importance as measures of
underlying operating performance, as the primary compensation performance measure under certain programs and plans. However, you should be aware
that when evaluating EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, Applied Digital may incur future expenses similar to those excluded when calculating these
measures. In addition, Applied Digital’s presentation of these measures should not be construed as an inference that its future results will be unaffected
by unusual or non-recurring items. Applied Digital’s computation of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures

computed by other companies, because all companies may not calculate Adjusted EBITDA in the same fashion.

Because of these limitations, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for performance measures
calculated in accordance with GAAP. Applied Digital compensates for these limitations by relying primarily on its GAAP results and using EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA on a supplemental basis. You should review the reconciliation of net loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA above and not rely
on any single financial measure to evaluate Applied Digital’s business.

Adjusted Gross Profit

“Adjusted Gross Profit” is a non-GAAP measure that represents gross profit adjusted for depreciation expense within cost of revenues. We believe this
is a useful metric as it provides additional information regarding gross profit aside from significant non-cash expense in depreciation. However, Applied
Digital’s presentation of this measure should not be construed as an inference that its future results will be unaffected by other factors within cost of
revenues. Applied Digital’s computation of Adjusted Gross Profit may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by other
companies, because all companies may not calculate Adjusted Gross Profit in the same fashion.

Because of these limitations, Adjusted Gross Profit should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for performance measures calculated in
accordance with GAAP. Applied Digital compensates for these limitations by relying primarily on its GAAP results and using Adjusted Gross Profit on
a supplemental basis. You should review the reconciliation of gross profit to Adjusted Gross Profit above and not rely on any single financial measure to
evaluate Applied Digital’s business.
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Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Measures

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
$ in thousands November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021 November 30, 2022 November 30, 2021
Adjusted operating loss
Operating Loss from Continuing Operations (GAAP) $ (26,677) $ (1,355) $ (30,854) $ (14,393)
Add: Stock-based compensation 21,819 — 22,398 12,337
Add: Gain on Extinguishment of Accounts Payable — (285) — (325)
Add: Loss on Extinguishment of Debt — — 94 1,342
Add: Non-recurring professional service costs 664 636 1,072 636
Add: One-time electricity charges 114 — 114 —
Add: Other non-recurring expenses 380 — 580 —
Adjusted Operating Loss from Continuing Operations (Non-GAAP) $ (3,700) $ (1,004) $ (6,596) § (403)
Adjusted operating margin from Continuing Operations (30.0)% — % (34.2)% —%
Adjusted net income (loss)
Net Loss from Continuing Operations (GAAP) $ (26,750)  $ (1,569) $ (31,409) $ (15,949)
Add: Stock-based compensation 21,819 — 22,398 12,337
Add: Gain on Extinguishment of Accounts Payable — (285) — (325)
Add: Loss on Extinguishment of Debt — — 94 1,342
Add: Non-recurring professional service costs 664 636 1,072 636
Add: One-time electricity charges 114 — 114 —
Add: Other non-recurring expenses 380 — 580 —
Adjusted net loss from Continuing Operations (Non-GAAP) $ (3,773)  § (1,218)  § (7,151) 8§ (1,959)
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
Net Loss from Continuing Operations (GAAP) $ (26,750)  $ (1,569) $ (31,409) $ (15,949)
Add: Interest Expense 385 — 741 —
Add: Income Tax Benefit (Expense) (312) 214 (280) 214
Add: Depreciation and Amortization 1,568 174 2,704 177
EBITDA (Non-GAAP) $ (25,109) $ 1,181) $ (28,244)  $ (15,558)
Add: Stock-based compensation 21,819 — 22,398 12,337
Add: Gain on Extinguishment of Accounts Payable — (285) — (325)
Add: Loss on Extinguishment of Debt — — 94 1,342
Add: Non-recurring professional service costs 664 636 1,072 636
Add: One-time electricity charges 114 — 114 —
Add: Other non-recurring expenses 380 — 580 =
Adjusted EBITDA (Non-GAAP) $ (2,132) 8 (830) § (3,986) 8 (1,568)
Adjusted Gross Profit
Gross profit (GAAP) $ 528 $ — $ 1,359 $ —
Add: Depreciation and amortization in cost of revenues 867 — 1,703 —
Add: One-time electricity charges 114 — 114 —
Adjusted Gross Profit (Non-GAAP) $ 1,509 $ — $ 3,176 $ —

The Sources of Liquidity

We have primarily generated cash in the last 12 months from the proceeds of our term loans, proceeds from our initial public offering, and the receipt of
contractual deposits and revenue prepayments from hosting customers. On April 18, 2022, we received approximately $36 million in net proceeds from
the issuance of 8 million shares of Common Stock in conjunction with the closing of our initial public offering. On July 25, 2022, the Company entered
into the Starion Loan Agreement. The Starion Loan Agreement provides for the Starion Term Loan. A portion of the proceeds were used to pay down the
Vantage term loan that was entered into on March 11, 2022.
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The remaining proceeds of the term loan will be used for working capital needs for the operation of Phase I of the hosting facility in Jamestown, North
Dakota.

On November 7, 2022, APLD — Rattlesnake Den I, LLC (the “Borrower”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Vantage Garden
City Loan Agreement. As of the date of this report, an aggregate amount of $6.6 million has been advanced under the Vantage Garden City Loan
Agreement. The proceeds of the Vantage Garden City Loan will be used for the costs and expenses of a building at the Garden City Facility.

See Note 7 - Debt to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for more information on
the Starion Term Loan and Vantage Garden City Loan.

During the three and six months ended November 30, 2022, we received $22.4 million and $44.6 million, respectively, in payments for future hosting
services. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2022, we generated revenue from crypto mining and co-hosting, but we have incurred net losses from
operations. During the three and six months ended November 30, 2022, we have generated revenue from co-hosting, but have incurred net losses from
operations. As of November 30, 2022 and May 31, 2022, we had cash of $18.1 million and $46.3 million, respectively, and an accumulated deficit of
$87.2 million and $56.1 million, respectively.

Funding Requirements

We have experienced net losses through the periods ended November 30, 2022. Our transition to profitability is dependent on the successful operation of
our co-hosting facilities. We believe that amounts we received from proceeds from our term loans, proceeds from our initial public offering, and revenue
payments we have begun to achieve in our co-hosting operations since our first co-hosting facility was brought online in February 2022, after planned
expenditures with respect to the items described in the section titled “Expansion Opportunities” above, will be sufficient to meet our working capital
needs for at least the next 12 months and all of the Company’s known requirements and plans for cash.

We expect that our general and administrative expenses and our operating expenditures will continue to increase as we continue to expand our operations
and as we bear the costs of being a public company. We believe that the significant investments in property and equipment will begin to decrease into
calendar 2023 as we complete construction of additional capacity. We also expect that our revenues will increase as we continue to bring online
additional capacity at our Jamestown, North Dakota, Garden City, Texas, and Ellendale, North Dakota locations.

We believe that our existing cash, together with the anticipated revenues from current operations and debt funding opportunities, will enable us to fund
our operating expense requirements through at least 12 months as well as all of the Company’s known requirements and plans for cash. We have based
our estimates as to how long we expect we will be able to fund our operations on assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our
available capital resources sooner than we currently expect, in which case, we would be required to obtain additional financing sooner than currently
projected, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. Our failure to raise capital as and when needed would have a negative impact
on our financial condition and our ability to pursue our business strategy.
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Summary of Cash Flows

The following table provides information about Applied Digital’s net cash flow (in thousands) for the six months ended November 30, 2022 and 2021.

Six Months Ended
$ in thousands November 30,2022  November 30, 2021
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 27,979 $ 2,334
Net cash used in investing activities (70,305) $ (31,613)
Net cash provided by financing activities 14,101 $ 31,574
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (28,225) $ 2,295
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 46,299 $ 11,750
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 18,074 § 14,045

The net cash generated by operating activities of $28.0 million for the six months ended November 30, 2022 consisted primarily of the non-cash expense
adjustment for stock-based compensation totaling $22.4 million, and changes in customer deposits of $15.2 million and deferred revenue of

$25.5 million, offset by a loss from continuing operations of $31.4 million and a decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $5.7 million.
Both customer deposits and deferred revenue increased during the six months ended November 30, 2022 due to prepayments from new contracts as well
as more cash being received than revenue recognized during the period.

The net cash generated by operating activities of $2.3 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 consisted primarily of non-cash expense
adjustment for stock-based compensation totaling $12.3 million, increase of accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $5.3 million, and loss on
extinguishment of debt of $1.3 million, partially offset by an increase to prepaid expense and other current assets of $1.6 million, losses from continuing
operations of $15.9 million and net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operations of $0.6 million.

The net cash used in investing activities of $70.3 million for the six months ended November 30, 2022 represents purchases of property and equipment.
The net cash used in investing activities of $31.6 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 consists of purchases of property and equipment
of $10.3 million and deposits on equipment of $23.2 million, partially offset by net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued operations of
$1.9 million.

The net cash provided by financing activities of $14.1 million for the six months ended November 30, 2022 is primarily driven by the proceeds from the
Starion Term Loan and the Vantage Garden City Loan, which total $21.7 million, as well as by equity contributions to 1.21 Gigawatts, a subsidiary of
the Company, by noncontrolling interest of $1.7 million , partially offset by the extinguishment of the Vantage term loan totaling $7.1 million.

The net cash provided by financing activities of $31.6 million for the six months ended November 30, 2021 represents proceeds from the issuance of
preferred stock $34.5 million, partially offset by issuance costs of $2.9 million.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not Applicable
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Management’s Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated, as of the end of the period covered by this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation, and as a result of the material weaknesses described below, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that, as of November 30, 2022, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of a company’s annual and interim financial statements will not be detected or prevented on a timely basis.

In connection with our initial public offering, we identified the following material weaknesses in the design of our internal controls, which could
adversely affect:

*  Qur ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data.

*  We have not yet designed and implemented user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties that would adequately restrict user and
privileged access to the financially relevant systems and data to appropriate personnel.

*  We also do not have a properly designed internal control system that identifies critical processes and key controls.

In order to remediate these material weaknesses, we are taking the following steps, among others:
1. continued hiring of additional qualified accounting and financial reporting personnel to support division of responsibilities;
2. improving and updating our systems;

3. developing IT general controls to manage access and program changes across our key systems and the execution of improvements to application
controls within our systems; and

4. implementing processes and controls to better identify and manage segregation of duties.

We will not be able to fully remediate the material weaknesses until these steps have been completed and have been operating effectively for a sufficient
period of time.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in internal control over financial reporting, other than the remediation steps described above that are in process, that occurred

during the three months ended November 30, 2022, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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Part II - Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
None
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
On June 6, 2022, through an agreement between the Company and Sparkpool, Sparkpool agreed to forfeit to the Company shares of Common Stock that
had been issued pursuant to the service agreement executed on March 19, 2021. Sparkpool ceased providing the contracted services for the Company,

and agreed to forfeit shares to compensate for future services that will not be rendered. As a result of this agreement, 4,965,432 shares of Common Stock
were forfeited and canceled by the Company.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits [EXHIBIT LIST IS BEING CHECKED]

Exhibit Number
3.1*
31.1%*

31.2%
32.1%%*
B

101.INS*
101.SCH*
101.CAL*
101.DEF*
101.LAB*
101.PRE*
104*

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Document
Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended to date.

Chief Executive Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Chief Financial Officer’s Certificate Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002.

Inline XBRL Instance Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).
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Signatures
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

APPLIED DIGITAL CORPORATION

Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ Wesley Cummins

Wesley Cummins Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board of Directors (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ David Rench

David Rench Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)
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reverse split will be paid out in cash.

6. Provisions: The required approval of the stockholders has been obtained,

7. Effective date and Dater  april 12, 2022 Time: 115 pM Pacific Time

time: (Optional) X ~  (mustnot be later than 90 days afler the certificate is filed)

8. Signature: |

(Required) X { Chief Executive Officer 2 |- 26272,

Signture of Title Date

This form must be accompanied by appropriate




If necessary, additional pages may be attached o this form, - N“:_'f;"‘:g‘;
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STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE SRR
Secretary of Sate

Commercial Recordings Division
202 N, Carson Sreet
Carson City, NV 89701
Telephone (775) 684-5708

Fax (775) 684-7138
KIMBERLEY PERONDI . - LN;I\:ILas;Bﬁing‘HST w
mﬁmﬁ@ OFFICE OF THE ool o
SECRETARY OF STATE Telephone (702) 486-2880
Fax (702) 496-2888
Certified Copy
01/05/2022 12:23:57 PM
Work Order Number: W2022010501262 - 1823582
Reference Number: 20222004999
Through Date: 01/05/2022 12:23:57 PM
Corporate Name: Applied Blockchain, Inc.

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are true and exact
copies of al requested statements and related subsequent documentation filed with the
Secretary of State's Office, Commercia Recordings Divison listed on the attached report.

Document Number ~ [Description Number of Pages
20211673333 |Cenificae of Correction - 07/28/2021 2
20211638120 |Amendment After |ssuance of Stock - 07/28/2021 1
20211638141 |Certificate of Designation - 07/28/2021 19
20211631740 [Certificate of Correction - 07/23/2021

20211631749 [Amendment After |ssuance of Stock - 07/23/2021 1
20211631763 | Certificate of Designation - 07/23/2021 19
20211566343 | Certificate of Acceptance by Registered Agent - 06292021 |1
20211502899 Annual Ligt - 06/02/2021 2
20211456018 | Certificate of Correction - 05/13/2021 2
20211387751 Amended and Restated Articles - 04/15/2021 71
20211386244 |Certificate of Correction - 04/15/2021 2
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STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE Commercial Recordings Division
Secretary of Sate Cﬁ‘ggyﬂ%‘%
£ Telephone (775) 6845708
X s Fax (775) 684-7138
KIMBERLEY PERONDI Qi mﬂ?ﬁﬁ@ﬁ”ﬂm
Deputy Sacretary for OFFICE OF THE e e
Commedal Recordings — GECRETARY OF STATE T 5750

Respectfully,

fwux%

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Nevada Secretary of State

Certified By: Electronicaly Certified
Certificate Number: B202201052285184
You may verify this cartificate

onlinea http://www.nvsos gov
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Filed in the Office of Business Number
DocuSign Envelope ID: 7A838493-EDCD-4BF7-8493-F8194D250CCF MK g: :’"i‘lm
znzuﬂ\m
Filed On
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE g 7282021 10:57:00 AM
Secretary of State ! i Number of Pages
202 North Carson Street 2
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 6B4-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate of Correction
NRS 78, 78A, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86, 87, 87A, 88, 88A, 89 and 92A

(Only one document may be corrected per certificate.)

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Enter the current name as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State and enter the Entity or Nevada Business
Identification Number (NVID).

2. Name of document with inaccuracy or defect,

3. Filing dale of document with inaccuracy or defect.
4, Brief description of inaccuracy or defect.

5. Correction of inaccuracy or defect,

6. Must be signed by Authorized Signer. Form will be returned if unsigned.

1. Entity Information: Name of entity as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State:

Applied Blockchain, Inc.

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): C13283-2001

2. Document: Name of document with inaccuracy or defect:

Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation

3. Filing Date: Filing date of document which correction is being made: April 15, 2021

4. Description: Description of inaccuracy or defect;

Section 1.1(c)(ii)(B) of Exhibit C to the Second Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation contains an incorrect reference in the first sentence
of the paragraph.

5. Correction: Correction of inaccuracy or defect:

Section 1.1(c)(ii)(B) of Exhibit C to the Second Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation is corrected to remove the reference (12) twelve
months and change it to (8) eight months.

6. Signature: Doculignad by:

(Required) X@Mi fude 07/28/2021
Slgna{ure i

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.

Pana 1 nf 1




Revised: 1112018
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Filed in the Office of Business Number
DocuSign Envalope ID: SABBIGFE-BBF5-4751.6563-30FBBBRGI2FC ‘fh&au.ﬁ E::""r"':&
' 3" M 021163120
Secretary of State Filed On S
BARBARA K, CEGAVSKE Siste Of Nevada ::m :r’r::e:n o
Secretary of State :
202 North Carson Street
Carson Clty, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 684.5708
Website: www.nvsos.gov
Certificate of Amendment
(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.385 AND 78.380)
UBE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT ABOVE SPACE I3 FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation

For Nevada Profit Corporations
(Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock)

1. Name of corporation:
/APPLIED BLOCKCHAIN, INC,

2, The articles have been amended as follows: (provide articie numbers, if available)

;rTHIRD. The total number of shares of capital stock which this corporation shall have authority to issue is |
lone billion, five million (1,005,000,000) with a par value of $0.001 per share amounting to $1,005,000.00. |
iOne billion (1,000,000,000) of those shares are Common Stock and five million (5,000,000) of those '
shares are Preferred Stock. Each share of Common Stock shall entitle the holder thereof to one vote, in
person or by proxy, on any matter on which action of the stockholders of this corporation is sought. The
lholders of shares of Preferred Stock shall have no right to vote such shares, except (i) as determined by the
Board of Dircctors of this corporation in accordance with the provisions of Section (3) of Article FOURTH
of these Articles of Incorporation, or (ii) as otherwise provided by the Nevada General Corporation Law, as |
:amended from time to time. '

3. The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise
al least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be
required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the
articles of incorporation* have voted in favor of the amendment is:| 52.1% '

4. Effective date and time of filing: (optional) Date: = July 28, 2021 | Time:
{must not be later than 90 days after the certificate Is filed)

5. Signature: (required)

Bnailiged by
Signature of Officer
*If any proposed amendment would aller or change any prefarence or any relative or other right given lo any class or series of
outstanding sharas, then the amandment mus! be approved by the vola, in addllion to the affirmalive vole otherwise required, of

the holders of shares represenling a majarity of the voting power of each class or series affected by the amendment regardless to
limilations or restrictions on the voling power thareof,

IMPORTANT: Fallure lo include any of the above Information and submit with the proper fees may causa this filing to be rejected.

Secielary Proft-Aftsr
This form mus! be accompanied by appropriale foes. e = m%: 1818
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DocuSign Envelope ID: FBCT3E1-58F5-4BUE-0B2D-BABATO2532A4

Business Mumber
C13183-2001

Filed in the Office of

Mﬁ% Filing Number
10211638141

Filed On
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE g:':&";:ﬁ" 2812021 9:49:00 AM
Socretary of State Number of Pages
202 North Carson Stroet o
Carson City, Nevada B8701-4201
(775) 684.5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate, Amendment or Withdrawal of Designation

NRS 78.1955, 78.1955(6)
(%] Certificate of Designation

[] Certificate of Amendment to Designation - Before Issuance of Class or Serles
[] Certificate of Amendment to Deslgnation - After Issuance of Class or Serles

[]] Certificate of Withdrawal of Certificate of Designation

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity Information:

Name of antily:
|Applied Blockchain, Inc. L_J

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): [C13283~2Ud:I ]

2. Effective date and |For Cerlificale of Designation or Date: Time:
time: Amendment to Designation Only ! i - I
(Optional): (must not be later than 90 days afier the certificate is filed)

3. Class or series of | The class or series of stock being designated within this filing;

stock: (Certificate of

Designation oniy) Series D Preferred Stock

4. Information for | 1ig original class o series of stock being amended within this fiing:

amendment of class

or serias of stock:

5. Amendment of | Certificate of Amendment to Designation- Before Issuance of Class or Series

class or serles of As of the date of this cerlificale no shares of the class or series of stock have been issued.

stock: [] Certificate of Amendment lo Designation- After Issuance of Class or Series
Tha amendment has baen approved by the vote of stockholders holding shares in the corporation
entiting them to exercise & majority of the voling power, or such groater proportion of the voting
power as may ba required by the arlicles of incorparation o the cerificate of designation.

6. Resolution: By resolution of the board of directors pursuant to a provision in the articles of incorporation this

Cortlficate of Designation | certificate establishes OR amends the following regarding the voting powers, designations,

and Amendment lo preferences, limitations, restrictions and relative rights of the following class or series of stock *

Designation only) See Exhibit A attached hereto for Certificate of Designations for Series D

Preferred Stock.
7. Withdrawal: Designation being—— Dateof ~—————
Withdrawn: Deslgnation:; .

No shares of the class or series of stock baing withdrawn are oulstanding.

The resolution of the board of directors authorizing the withdrawal of the certificate of
designation establishing the class or series of stock: *

8. Signature; (Required) X (s M"«‘ - 'Eg-rz_m 1_
Signature of Officer o
* Atiach addltional page(s) If necessary : "'“',LE”
avaed: 11172019

This form mus! be accompanied by appropriate fees.
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
OF THE POWERS, PREFERENCES AND
RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL AND OTHER RESTRICTIONS

OF SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK
OF APPLIED BLOCKCHAIN, INC,

Applied Blockehain, Inc. (the “Corporation”), pursuant to the provisions of Sections
78.195 and 78,1955 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Nevada, does hereby make
this Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional
and Other Restrictions, does hereby state and certify that pursuant to the authority expressly
vested in the Board of Directors of the Corporation by the provisions of Article FOURTH of the
Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation (the “Articles"), the
Board of Directors of the Corporation duly adopted resolutions authorizing the issuance of
1,380,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, and fixing the designation and
preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and qualifications,
limitations and restrictions, of a series of preferred stock to be designated “Series D Convertible
Redeemable Preferred Stock,” as further described below (the “Series D Designation”). The
Series D Designation shall be in full force and effect as of the date hereof,

Section 1.1 Designation. As of the effective date of this Certificate, there is hereby
created out of the authorized preferred stock of the Corporation a series of preferred stock designated
as “Series D Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock™ (the “Series D Preferred Stock”™), par value
$0.001 per share. The Series D Preferred Stock shall, with respect to dividend rights or rights upon
a liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, rank pari passu with the Series C
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Serles C Preferred Stock”, and together with the
Series D Preferred Stock, the “Preferred Stock”). The following rights, powers and privileges, and
restrictions, qualifications and limitations, shall apply to the Series D Preferred Stock.

()  Payments to Holders of Series D Preferred Stock. In the event of any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or any Deemed
Liquidation Event (as defined below), before any payment shall be made to the holders of the
Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, the holders of shares of Series D Preferred
Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the funds and assets available for
distribution to the stockholders of the Corporation, an amount per share equal to the Stated Value
(as defined below) for such share of Series D Preferred Stock, plus an amount per share equal to
the Stated Value of any shares of Series D Preferred Stock that are issuable as the result of accrued,
but unpaid, PIK Dividends (as defined below). If upon any such liquidation, dissolution or winding
up or Deemed Liquidation Event of the Corporation, the funds and assets available for distribution
to the stockholders of the Corporation shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of Series D
Preferred Stock the full amount to which they are entitled under this Section 1.1(a)(i) and the holders
of Series C Preferred Stock the full amount to which they are entitled under the Certificate of
Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other

4822-7687-2944v.12
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Restrictions of Series C Preferred Stock, the holders of shares of Series D Preferred Stock and Series
C Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the funds and assets available for
distribution in proportion to the respective amounts that would otherwise be payable in respect of
the shares of Series D Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock held by them upon such
distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Stated
Value" shall mean Twenty-Five United States Dollars and No Cents (825.00) per share, subject to
an equitable adjustment for stock splits, stock combinations, recapitalizations and similar
transactions.

(i)  Payments to Holders of Common Stock. In the event of any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up or Deemed Liquidation Event of
the Corporation, after the payment of all preferential amounts required to be paid to the holders of
shares of Series D Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock as provided in Section 1.1(a)(1),
the remaining funds and assets available for distribution to the stockholders of the Corporation
shall be distributed among the holders of shares of Common Stock, pro rata based on the number
of shares of Common Stock held by each such holder.

(i)  Deemed Liquidation Events.

(A)  Definition. Each of the following events shall be considered
a “Deemed Liquidation Event” unless the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares
of Series D Preferred Stock (voting as a single class on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis)
(the “Regquisite Holders™) elect otherwise by written notice sent to the Corporation at least five (5)
days prior to the effective date of any such event:

(I) a merger or consolidation in which (I) the
Corporation is a constituent party or (II) a subsidiary of the Corporation is a constituent party and
the Corporation issues shares of its capital stock pursuant to such merger or consolidation, except
any such merger or consolidation involving the Corporation or a subsidiary in which the shares of
capital stock of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation
continue to represent, or are converted into or exchanged for equity securities that represent,
immediately following such merger or consolidation, at least a majority, by voting power, of the
equity securities of (x) the surviving or resulting party or (y) if the surviving or resulting party is
a wholly owned subsidiary of another party immediately following such merger or consolidation,
the parent of such surviving or resulting party; provided that, for the purpose of this Section
L.1(a)(iii)A), all shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of options outstanding
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation or upon conversion of Convertible Securities
(as defined below) outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation shall be deemed
to be outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation and, if applicable, deemed to
be converted or exchanged in such merger or consolidation on the same terms as the actual
outstanding shares of Common Stock are converted or exchanged; or

(2)  the sale, lease, transfer or other disposition, in a
single transaction or series of related transactions, by the Corporation or any subsidiary of the
Corporation of all or substantially all the assets of the Corporation nd its subsidiaries taken as a
whole, or, if substantially all of the assets of the Corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole
are held by such subsidiary or subsidiaries, the sale or disposition (whether by merger or otherwise)

4822-1687.294v.12
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of one or more subsidiaries of the Corporation, except where such sale, lease, transfer or other
disposition is to the Corporation or one or more wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Significant Transaction Event (as defined below) shall not be
considered a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or
a Deemed Liquidation Event. A “Significant Transaction Event” means (i) a merger or other
business combination designed to increase the number of stockholders of the Corporation in order
to facilitate a listing on a Trading Market (as such term is defined in that certain Registration Rights
Agreement, dated as of July 28, 2021, by and between the Corporation and B. Riley Securities,
Inc,, as the placement agent (“B. Riley”), for the benefit of B. Riley and the holders of Series D
Preferred Stock (the “Registration Rights Agreement”), (ii) a business combination with a special
purpose acquisition company that results in the Corporation’s securities being listed for trading on a
Trading Market, or (iii) a business combination with a company that is listed on a Trading Market
that results in the Corporation's securities being listed for trading on a Trading Market.

(B)  Public Offering or Listing Facilitation Transaction. Under
no circumstances shall a public offering of the Corporation’s securities, including a public offering
that results in a change of control of the Corporation, designed to increase the number of
stockholders of the Corporation in order to facilitate a listing on a Trading Market (as such term is
defined in the Registration Rights Agreement) be considered a voluntary or involuntary
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or a Deemed Liquidation Event,

(C)  Allocation of Escrow. In the event of a Deemed Liquidation
Event pursuant to Section L I(a)(iii)(A)1)(D), if any portion of the consideration payable to the
stockholders of the Corporation is placed into escrow, the definitive agreement for such transaction
shall provide that the portion of such consideration that is placed in escrow shall be allocated
among the holders of capital stock of the Corporation pro rata based on the amount of such
consideration otherwise payable to each stockholder (such that each stockholder has placed in
escrow the same percentage of the total consideration payable to such stockholder as every other
stockholder),

(D)  Amount Deemed Paid or Distributed. The funds and assets
deemed paid or distributed to the holders of capital stock of the Corporation upon any such merger,

consolidation, sale, transfer or other disposition described in this Section 1.1(a)iii) shall be the
cash or the value of the property, rights or securities paid or distributed to such holders by the
Corporation or the acquiring person, firm or other entity, The value of such property, rights or
securities shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation,

(b)  Voting. Holders of shares of Series D Preferred Stock shall vote together
with holder of Series C Preferred Stock and holders of Commen Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis on any matters coming before the stockholders of the Corporation for a vote,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall not, either directly or indirectly by amendment,
merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reclassification, or otherwise, do any of the following
without (in addition to any other vote required by law or this Certificate) the written consent or
affirmative vote of the Requisite Holders given in writing or by vote at a meeting, consenting or
voting (as the case may be) separately as a class, and any such act or transaction entered into without
such consent or vote shall be null and void ab initio, and of no force or effect;

4822-7687-2944v.12
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()  materially change the principal business of the Corporation unless
in connection with a Significant Transaction Event; or

(ii)  except in connection with a Significant Transaction Event, sell,
lease, transfer, exclusively license or otherwise dispose (in a single transaction or series of related
transactions) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or permit any direct or
indirect subsidiary to do so; provided, however, that no consent or vote of the Requisite Holders
shall be required in connection with sales of mining equipment in the ordinary course of the
Corporation's business and in a manner consistent with the principal business of the Corporation.

(c)  Dividends.

()  Dividends Generally. The holders of shares of Series D Preferred
Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation shall pay, dividends on shares of Series D
Preferred Stock equal (on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis) to and in the same form as
dividends actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such dividends are paid
on shares of the Common Stock. Except as set forth in this Section |.1(c)(i) and for PIK Dividends
(as defined below), no other dividends shall be paid on shares of Series D Preferred Stock.

(i)  PIK Dividends. The Corporation shall be required to pay a dividend
in fully paid and non-assessable shares of Series D Preferred Stock (each a “PIK Dividend" and,
collectively, the “PIK Dividends™) equal to the percentage of Stated Value set forth below upon
the occurrence of each of the following events:

(A) Failure to File. If the Corporation has not filed or
confidentially submitted a registration statement (the “Registration Statement") to register the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock (the
“Registrable Securities™) on or before August 15, 2021, the Corporation shall accrue daily a PIK
Dividend equal to ten percent (10%) per annum of Stated Value;

(B)  Failure to be Declared Effective and to List. If the
Registration Statement has not been declared effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC™) on or before December 15, 2021 and/or the Registrable Securities are
not listed on a Trading Market on or before December 15, 2021, the Corporation shall accrue daily
a PIK Dividend of twelve percent (12%) per annum of Stated Value, or fifteen percent (15%) per
annum of Stated Value for each day such failure continues after October 15, 2022, Such PIK
Dividend shall be instead of, and not in addition to, any PIK Dividend also accruing under

Section 1. 1(c)(ii)(A); and
(C)  Mandatory Redemption Failure. If the Corporation fails to

complete a Mandatory Redemption (as defined below) when required to do so, it shall continue to
pay a PIK Dividend in accordance with Section 1.1(c)(ii)(B).

The PIK Dividends shall be paid by delivering to each record holder of Series D Preferred Stock
a number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate
dollar amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series D Preferred Stock owned by
such record holder (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (y) the Stated Value.

4822-7687-2944v.12
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, PIK Dividends shall cease cumulating and accruing upon the
earl:cst to oceur of (1) the date of the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Jle

and Section 1.1(c)(ii)(C) that gave rise to such PIK Dividend (any such date,
a “PIK Dividend Satisfaction Date"), and (2) any Conversion Date (as defined below) or Optional
Conversion Date (as defined below). Upon a simultaneous or consecutive occurrence of two or
more events that trigger the accrual of PIK Dividends on one or more days, PIK Dividends shall
accrue on each issued and outstanding share of Series D Preferred Stock as if only one triggering
event had occurred, such that the accrual of PIK Dividends in accordance with this Section
1.1{¢)(ii) shall not be doubled, tripled or otherwise multiplied due to the existence of multiple
events causing the accrual of PIK Dividends.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (1) if on or prior to October 15, 2021, the Corporation enters into a
binding definitive agreement or binding instrument relating to 2 Significant Transaction Event (a
“Definitive Instrument”), then the Corporation shall have no obligation to pay any PIK Dividends
accrued or payable through such date, and (1) if the Corporation has entered into a Definitive
Instrument on or prior to October 15, 2021 and has consummated the Significant Transaction Event
on or prior to February 15, 2022, then the Corporation shall have no obligation to pay any PIK
Dividends accrued or payable through such date.

(d)  Automatic Conversion.

(i)  Trigger Event. On the Conversion Date (as defined below), each
share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be automatically converted (without the payment of
additional consideration by the holder thereof), into such number of fully paid and non-assessable
shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Stated Value by the Conversion Price
in effect on the Conversion Date. The “Conversion Price” shall be a price per share equal to the
least of: (w) $0.44 per share, (x) 75% of the price per share to be sold in the Corporation’s Qualified
Offering, (y) 75% of the opening public price per share in a direct listing of the Corporation’s
Common Stock on a Trading Market (a “Direct Listing™) or (2) 75% of the per share amount to be
paid for each share of the Cotporation’s Common Stock in a sale of all or substantially all of the
stock or assets of the Company (a “Merger”), in each case subject to adjustment as provided
herein. For purposes hereof, “Conversion Date” means (A) the date that the Registration Statement
is declared effective by the SEC, (B) the date on which the Corporation consummates a Direct
Listing or Qualified Offering or (C) the date on which a Merger is consummated. For purposes
hereof, “Qualified Offering” means the first underwritten public offering of Common Stock by
the Corporation to occur after the initial issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (the “Original Issue
Date").

(i)  Mechanics of Conversion. All holders of record of Series D Preferred
Stock shall be sent written notice of the Conversion Date and the place designated for conversion of
all such shares of Series D Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(d). Such notice need not be
sent in advance of the occurrence of the Conversion Date. Upon receipt of such notice, each holder
of Series D Preferred Stock shall, if such holder's shares are certificated, surrender his, her or ils
certificate or certificates for all such shares (or, if such holder of Series D Preferred Stock alleges
that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement
reasonably acceptable to the Corporation and its transfer agent to indemnify the Corporation and/or
its transfer agent against any claim that may be made against the Corporation and/or its transfer agent

4522-T687-2044v.12
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on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to the Corporation at the place
designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation or its transfer agent, any certificates
surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied by written instrument or instruments
of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation or its transfer agent, duly executed by the
registered holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock or by his, her or its attomey duly authorized
in writing. All rights with respect to the Series D Preferred Stock converted pursuant to this Section
1.1(d) will terminate at the Conversion Date (notwithstanding the failure of the holder or holders of
Series D Preferred Stock to surrender any certificates at or prior to such time), except only for the
rights of the holders of Series I} Preferred Stock, upon surrender, if applicable, of their certificate or
certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement), to receive the items provided for in the next
sentence of this Section 11(d)(ii). As soon as practicable after the Conversion Date and, if
applicable, the surrender of the certificate or certificates (o lost certificate affidavit and agreement)
for Series D Preferred Stock, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder of Series D
Preferred Stock, or to his, her or its nominees, a notice of issuance of uncertificated shares and, may,
upon written request, issuc and deliver a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of
Common Stock issuable on such conversion in accordance with the provisions hereof. Such
converled Series D Preferred Stock shall be retired and cancelled and may not be reissued as shares
of such series, and the Corporation may thereafter take such appropriate action (without the need for
stockholder action) as may be necessary to reduce the authorized number of shares of its Preferred
Stock accordingly.

(i)  Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation
covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued
shares of Common Stock for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of the Series D
Preferred Stock as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or any other actual contingent
purchasc rights of persons other than the holders of Series D Preferred Stock, not less than such
aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock as shall be issuable (taking into account the
adjustments and restrictions of Section 1.1(d)) upon the conversion of the then outstanding shares
of Series D Preferred Stock. The Corporation covenants that all shares of Common Stock that shall
be so issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(iv)  Eractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional
shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock. As to any fraction of a
share which the holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock would otherwise be entitled to purchase
upon such conversion, the Corporation shall round up to the next whole share.

(v)  Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of shares of Common
Stock on conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock shall be made without charge to any holder of

Series D Preferred Stock for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in respect
of the issue or delivery of such shares of Common Stock, provided that the Corporation shall not be
required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and
delivery of any such shares of Common Stock upon conversion in a name other than that of the
holders of the Series D Preferred Stock of such shares of Series D Preferred Stock and the
Corporation shall not be required to issue or deliver such shares of Common Stock unless or until
the person or persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Corporation the amount
of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Corporation that such tax has been paid.
The Corporation shall pay all transfer agent fees required for same-day processing and all fees to the
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Depository Trust Company (or another established clearing corporation performing similar
functions) required for same-day electronic delivery of the shares of Common Stock,

(vi) i ts to Conversi ice for Diluting Issues.

(A)  Special Definitions. For purposes of this Section L.1(d), the
following definitions shall apply:

(1)  “Additional Shares of Common Stock” shall mean
all shares of Common Stock issued (or, pursuant to Section 1.1(d)}(vi)(C) below, deemed to be
issued) by the Corporation after the Original Issue Date, other than (x) the following shares of
Common Stock and (y) shares of Common Stock deemed issued pursuant to the following Options
(as defined below) and Convertible Securities (as defined below) (clauses (x) and (y), collectively,
“Exempted Securities™).

a as to any series of Preferred Stock, shares of
Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities issued as a dividend or distribution on such
series of Preferred Stock; or

b.  shares of Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities issued by reason of a dividend, stock split, split-up or other distribution on
shares of Common Stock that is covered by Section 1. 1{d)(vii); or

¢.  shares of Common Stock, Options or other
equity-linked securities or awards issued to employees or directors of, or consultants or advisors
to, the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries pursuant to a plan, agreement or arrangement
approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; or

d.  shares of Common Stock or Convertible
Securities actually issued upon the exercise of Options or shares of Common Stock actually issued
upon the conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities, in each case provided such issuance is
pursuant to the terms of such Option or Convertible Security; or

e.  shares of Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities issued to banks, equipment lessors or other financial institutions, or to real
property lessors, pursuant to a debt financing, equipment leasing or real property leasing
transaction; or

f. shares of Common Stock, Options,
Convertible Securities or other equity or equity-linked securities issued as acquisition
consideration pursuant to the acquisition of another corporation by the Corporation by merger,
purchase of substantially all of the assets or other reorganization or to & joint venture agreement;
or

g.  shares of Common Stock, Options,
Convertible Securities or other equity or equity-linked issued in connection with a Significant
Transaction Event; or

4822-7687-2944v 2
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(2)  “Convertible Securities" shall mean any evidences
of indebtedness, shares or other securities directly or indirectly convertible into or exchangeable
for Common Stock, but excluding Options.

(3)  “Option” shall mean rights, options or warrants to
subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire Common Stock or Convertible Securities.

(B)  No Adjustment of Conversion Price. No adjustment in the
Conversion Price shall be made as the result of the issuance or deemed issuance of Additional
Shares of Common Stock if the Corporation receives written notice from the Requisite Holders
agreeing that no such adjustment shall be made as the result of the issuance or deemed issuance of
such Additional Shares of Common Stock.

(C)  Deemed Issue of Additional Shares of Common Stock.

(1)  If the Corporation at any time or from time to time
after the Original Issue Date shall issue any Options or Convertible Securities (excluding Options
or Convertible Securities which are themselves Exempted Securities) or shall fix a record date for
the determination of holders of any class of securities entitled to receive any such Options or
Convertible Securities, then the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the
instrument relating thercto, assuming the satisfaction of any conditions to exercisability,
convertibility or exchangeability but without regard to any provision contained therein for a
subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such Options or, in the case
of Convertible Securities and Options thergfor, the conversion or exchange of such Convertible
Securities, shall be deemed to be Additional Shares of Common Stock issued as of the time of such
issue or, in case such a record date shall have been fixed, as of the close of business on such record
date.

(2)  If the terms of any Option or Convertible Security,
the issuance of which resulted in an adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of
Section 1.1(d)(vi¥D), are revised as a result of an amendment to such terms or any other
adjustment pursuant to the provisions of such Option or Convertible Security (but excluding
automatic adjustments to such terms pursuant to anti-dilution or similar provisions of such Option
or Convertible Security) to provide for either (I) any increase or decrease in the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion and/or exchange of any such Option or
Convertible Security or (II) any increase or decrease in the consideration payable to the
Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, then, effective upon such increase
or decrease becoming effective, the Conversion Price computed upon the original issue of such
Option or Convertible Security (or upon the occurrence of a record date with respect thereto) shall
be readjusted to such Conversion Price as would have cbtained had such revised terms been in
effect upon the original date of issuance of such Option or Convertible Security. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, no readjustment pursuant to this clause (2) shall have the effect of increasing the
Conversion Price to an amount which exceeds the lower of (x) the Conversion Price in effect
immediately prior to the original adjustment made as a result of the issuance of such Option or
Convertible Security, or (y) the Conversion Price that would have resulted from any issuances of
Additional Shares of Common Stock (other than deemed issuances of Additional Shares of
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Common Stock as a result of the issuance of such Option or Convertible Security) between the
original adjustment date and such readjustment date.

(3)  If the terms of any Option or Convertible Security
(excluding Options or Convertible Securities which are themselves Exempted Securities), the
issuance of which did not result in an adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of
Section 1.1(d)(vi)(D) (either because the consideration per share (determined pursuant to Section
L1(d)vi)(E)) of the Additional Shares of Common Stock subject thereto was equal to or greater
than the Conversion Price then in effect, or because such Option or Convertible Security was issued
before the Original Issue Date), are revised after the Original Issue Date as a result of an
amendment to such terms or any other adjustment pursuant to the provisions of such Option or
I Convertible Security (but excluding automatic adjustments to such terms pursuant to anti-dilution
or similar provisions of such Option or Convertible Security) to provide for either (I) any increase
in the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of
any such Option or Convertible Security or (II) any decrease in the consideration payable to the
Corporation upon such exercise, conversion or exchange, then such Option or Convertible
Security, as so amended or adjusted, and the Additional Shares of Common Stock subject thereto
(determined in the manner provided in Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C)(1}) shall be deemed to have been
issued effective upon such increase or decrease becoming effective.

(4)  Upon the expiration or termination of any
unexercised Option or unconverted or unexchanged Convertible Security (or portion thereof)
which resulted (cither upon its original issuance or upon a revision of its terms) in an adjustment
to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of Section 1.1(d)(vi}(D), the Conversion Price shall
be readjusted to such Conversion Price as would have obtained had such Option or Convertible
Security (or portion thereof) never been issued.

(5)  If the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon the exercise, conversion and/or exchange of any Option or Convertible Security, or the
consideration payable to the Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, is
calculable at the time such Option or Convertible Security is issued or amended but is subject to
adjustment based upon subsequent events, any adjustment to the Conversion Price provided for in
this Section 1.1{d)(vi}C) shall be effected at the time of such issuance or amendment based on
such number of shares or amount of consideration without regard to any provisions for subsequent
adjustments (and any subsequent adjustments shall be treated as provided in clauses (2) and (3) of
this Section 1. 1{d)}(vi)(C}). If the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise,
conversion and/or exchange of any Option or Convertible Security, or the consideration payable
to the Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, cannot be calculated at all at
the time such Option or Convertible Security is issued or amended, any adjustment to the
Conversion Price that would result under the terms of this Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C) at the time of such
issuance or amendment shall instead be effected at the time such number of shares and/or amount b
of consideration is first calculable (even if subject to subsequent adjustments), assuming for
purposes of calculating such adjustment to the Conversion Price that such issuance or amendment
took place at the time such calculation can first be made.

(D)  Adjustment of Conversion Price Upon Issuance of
Additional Shares of Common Stock. In the event the Corporation shall at any time after the
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Original Issue Date issue Additional Shares of Common Stock (including Additional Shares of
Common Stock deemed to be issued pursuant to Section 1. 1(d)(vi)(C)), without consideration or
for a consideration per share less than the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to such
issuance or deemed issuance, then the Conversion Price shall be reduced, concurrently with such
issue, to a price (calculated to the nearest one-hundredth of a cent) determined in accordance with
the following formula;

CP2=CP1*(A+B)+(A+C).
For purposes of the foregoing formula, the following definitions shall apply:

(1)  “CP2" shall mean the Conversion Price in effect
immediately after such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of Common Stock;

(2)  “CP1" shall mean the Conversion Price in effect
immediately prior to such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of Common Stock;

(3)  “A" shall mean the number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding immediately prior to such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of
Common Stock (treating for this purpose as outstanding all shares of Common Stock, other than
Exempted Securities, issuable upon exercise of Options outstanding immediately prior to such
issuance or deemed issuance or upon conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities (including
the Preferred Stock) outstanding (assuming exercise of any outstanding Options therefor)
immediately prior to such issue);

(4)  “B" shall mean the number of shares of Common
Stock, excluding Exempted Securities, that would have been issued if such Additional Shares of
Common Stock had been issued or deemed issued at a price per share equal to CP1 (determined by
dividing the aggregate consideration received by the Corporation in respect of such issue by CP1);
and

(5)  “C"shall mean the number of such Additional Shares
of Common Stock issued in such transaction,

(E)  Determination of Consideration. For purposes of this
Section 1.1(d)(vi), the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance or deemed

issuance of any Additional Shares of Common Stock shall be computed as follows:
(1)  Cash and Property. Such consideration shall;

a, insofar as it consists of cash, be computed at
the aggregate amount of cash received by the Corporation, excluding amounts paid or payable for
accrued interest;

b, insofar as it consists of property other than

cash, be computed at the fair market value thereof at the time of such issue, as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; and
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¢.  in the event Additional Shares of Commeon
Stock are issued together with other shares or securities, excluding Exempted Securities, or other
assets of the Corporation for consideration which covers both, be the proportion of such
consideration so received, computed as provided in glauses 3. and b. above, as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

(2) Options and Convertible  Securities. The
consideration per share received by the Corporation for Additional Shares of Common Stock
deemed to have been issued pursuant to Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C), relating to Options and Convertible
Securities, shall be determined by dividing:

a.  Thetotalamount, if any, received or receivable
by the Corporation as consideration for the issue of such Options or Convertible Securities, plus the
minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in the instruments relating
thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such
consideration) payable to the Corporation upon the exercise of such Options or the conversion or
exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the case of Options for Convertible Securities, the
exercise of such Options for Convertible Securities and the conversion or exchange of such
Convertible Securities, by

b.  the maximum number of shares of Common
Stock (as set forth in the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained
therein for a subsequent adjustment of such number), excluding Exempted Securities, issuable upon
the exercise of such Options or the conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the
case of Options for Convertible Securities, the exercise of such Options for Convertible Securities
and the conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities.

(F)  Multiple Closing Dates. In the event the Corporation shall
issue on more than one date Additional Shares of Common Stock that are a part of one transaction
or a series of related transactions and that would result in an adjustment to the Conversion Price
pursuant to the terms of Section 1,1(d}vi)(D) then, upon the final such issuance, the Conversion
Price shall be readjusted to give effect to all such issuances as if they occurred on the date of the
first such issuance (and without giving effect to any additional adjustments as a result of any such
subsequent issuances within such period).

(vii)  Certain Other Adjustments.

(A)  Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Corporation, ot any
time while the Series D Preferred Stock is outstanding: (1) pays a stock dividend or otherwise
makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of Common Stock on shares of Common
Stock or any other common stock equivalents (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any
PIK Dividends or shares of Common Stock issued by the Corporation upon conversion of, or
payment of a dividend on, the Series D Preferred Stock or the Series C Preferred Stock), (2)
subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (3) combines
(including by way of a reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller
number of shares, or (4) issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the Common Stock,
any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, then the Conversion Price shall be multiplied by a
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fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any
treasury shares of the Corporation) outstanding immediately before such event, and of which the
denominator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such
event. Any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 1.1(d)(viiX(A) shall become effective
immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive such
dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case
of a subdivision, combination or re-classification.

(B)  Subsequent Rights Offerings. In addition to any adjustments
pursuant to Section 1.1(d)(vii)(A) above, if at any time the Corporation grants, issues or sells any
common stock equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro
rata to the record holders of any class of shares of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights"), then
the holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock thereof will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms
applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the holder of shares of
Series D Preferred Stock could have acquired if the holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock
had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of such
holder’s Series D Preferred Stock immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the
grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which
the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of
such purchase.

(C)  Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while the Series D
Preferred Stock is outstanding, (1) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related
transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into another person,
other than a Significant Transaction Event, (2) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, effects any
sale, lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all
of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, other than a Significant Transaction Event, (3)
any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Corporation
or another person) is completed pursuant to which holders of Common Stock are permitted fo sell,
tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the
holders of 50% or more of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation, other than a Significant
Transaction Event, (4) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions
effects any reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any
compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively converted into or
exchanged for other securities, cash or property, other than a Significant Transaction Event, or (5)
the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock or
share purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a
reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with another person whereby
such other person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not
including any shares of Common Stock held by the other person or other persons making or party
to, or associated or affiliated with the other persons making or party to, such stock or share purchase
agreement or other business combination), other than a Significant Transaction Event (each a
“Fundamental Transaction”), then, upon any subsequent conversion of the Series D Preferred
Stock, the holders of shares of Series D Preferred Stock shall have the right to receive, for each
share of Common Stock that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior
to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction, the number of shares of Common Stock of the
successor or acquiring corporation or of the Corporation, if it is the surviving corporation, and any
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additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration™) receivable as a result of such
Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which the
Series D Preferred Stock is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction. For
purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the Conversion Price shall be appropriately
adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Altemate Consideration
issuable in respect of one share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the
Corporation shall apportion the Conversion Price among the Alternate Consideration in a
reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate
Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or
property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the holder of shares of Series D
Preferred Stock shall be given the same choice s to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon
any conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock following such Fundamental Transaction. To the
extent necessary to effectuate the foregoing provisions, any successor to the Corporation or
surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall file an amended and restated Articles of
Incorporation or Certificate of Designation with the same terms and conditions and issue to the
holders of shares of Series D Preferred Stock new preferred stock consistent with the foregoing
provisions and evidencing the holders’ right to convert such preferred stock into Alternate
Consideration. The Corporation shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in
which the Corporation is not the survivor (the “Swecessor Entity”) to assume in writing all of the
obligations of the Corporation under this Certificate in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 1.1(d)(vii}(C) pursuant to written agreements entered into prior to such Fundamental
Transaction and shall deliver to the holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock in exchange for
the Series D Preferred Stock a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument
substantially similar in form and substance to the Series D Preferred Stock which is convertible
for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such Successor Entity (or its parent entity)
equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion of the Series
D Preferred Stock prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a conversion price which
applies the conversion price hercunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the
relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the
value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion
price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of the Series D Preferred Stock
immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction). Upon the occurrence
of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be substituted for
(so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Certificate
referring to the “Corporation” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every
right and power of the Corporation and shall assume all of the obligations of the Corporation under
this Certificate with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Corporation
herein,

(viil) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 1.1(d) shall be
made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be, For purposes of this

Section 1.1(d), the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of
a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury
shares of the Corporation) issued and outstanding,

(ix) Notice to the Holders. Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted
pursuant to any provision of this Section 1.1(d), the Corporation shall promptly deliver to each holder
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of shares of Series D Preferred Stock a notice setting forth the Conversion Price after such adjustment
and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment, If (A) the Corporation shall
declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock, (B) the
Corporation shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common
Stock, (C) the Corporation shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights
or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D)
the approval of any stockholders of the Corporation shall be required in connection with any
reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Corporation is a
party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, or any compulsory
share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property or
(E) the Corporation shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding
up of the affairs of the Corporation, then, in each case, the Corporation shall cause to be filed at each
office or agency maintained for the purpose of conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock, and shall
cause to be delivered to each holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock at its last address as it shall
appear upaon the stack books of the Corporation, at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the applicable
record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (1) the date on which a record is to be
taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if & record is
not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to
such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are o be determined or (2) the date on
which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to
become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock
of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other
property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery
thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.

(¢)  Qptional Conversion.
(i)  Optional Conversion Rights. At any time or times on or after the

Original Issue Date, each holder of Series D Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert any portion
of the outstanding Series D Preferred Stock held by such holder and any PIK Dividends (without
the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof) into such number of fully paid and
non-assessable shares of Common Stock as determined for any such holder by dividing (A) the
sum of (I) the aggregate Stated Value of all outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock being
converted by such holder, (1I) the aggregate Stated Value of all shares of Series D Preferred Stock
due and owing to such holder as PIK Dividends which such holder is converting, and (III) the
aggregate amount of cash dividends due and owing to such holder that such holder is converting
by (B) the Conversion Price in effect on the Optional Conversion Date (as defined below), as
adjusted in accordance with Section 1.1(d).

(i)  Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional
shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Series D Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section
L1(¢). As to any fraction of a share which the holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock would
otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Corporation shall round up to the next
whole share,

(iii)  Mechanics of Conversion.
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(A)  To convert a share of Series D Preferred Stock and/or PIK
Dividends into shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(¢) on any date (an “Optional
Conversion Date”), the holder of such shares of Series D Preferred Stock and/or PIK Dividends
shall deliver to the Corporation (whether via facsimile, electronic mail or otherwise), for receipt
on or prior to 11:59 p.m., New York time, on such date, a copy of an executed notice of such
conversion in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Optional Conversion Notice”), Within
three (3) Trading Days (as defined below) of the Optional Conversion Date such holder that
delivered the Optional Conversion Notice shall, if such holder’s shares of Series D Preferred Stock
are certificated, surrender his, her or its certificate or certificates for all such shares (or, if such holder
of Series D Preferred Stock alleges that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost
certificate affidavit and agreement reasonably acceptable to the Corporation and its transfer agent to
indemnify the Corporation and/or its transfer agent against any claim that may be made against the
Corporation and/or its transfer agent on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such
certificate) to the Corporation at the place designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation
or its transfer agent, any certificates surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied
by written instrument or instruments of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation or its transfer
agent, duly executed by the registered holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock or by his, her or
its attorney duly authorized in writing, All rights with respect to the Series D Preferred Stock
converted pursuant to this Section 1.1(e) will terminate at the Optional Conversion Date
(notwithstanding the failure of the holder or holders of Series D Preferred Stock to surrender any
certificates at or prior to such time), except only for the rights of the holders of Series D Preferred
Stock, upon surrender, if applicable, of their certificate or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and
agreement), to receive the items provided for in the next sentence of this Section 1. 1(e)(jii). As soon
as practicable after the Optional Conversion Date and, if applicable, the surrender of the certificate
or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement) for Series D Preferred Stock, the
Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder of Series D Preferred Stock, or to his, her or its
nominees, a notice of issuance of uncertificated shares and, may, upon written request, issue and
deliver a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of Common Stock issuable on such
conversion in accordance with the provisions hereof. Such converted Series D Preferred Stock shall
be retired and cancelled and may not be reissued as shares of such series, and the Corporation may
thereafter take such appropriate action (without the need for stockholder action) as may be necessary
to reduce the authorized number of shares of its Preferred Stock accordingly.

(B)  On or before the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date
of receipt of a Conversion Notice (or such carlier date as required pursuant to the 1934 Act or other
applicable law, rule or regulation for the settlement of a trade initiated on the applicable
Conversion Date of such shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to such Optional Conversion
Notice) (the “Share Delivery Deadline"), the Corporation shall (1) provided that its then current
transfer agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company's (“DTC") Fast Automated
Securities Transfer Program, credit such aggregate number of shares of Common Stock to which
such converting holder shall be entitled to such holder’s or its designee’s balance account with
DTC through its Deposit/Withdrawal at Custodian system, or (2) if the Transfer Agent is not
participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and deliver (via
reputable overnight courier) to the address as specified in such Conversion Notice, a certificate,
registered in the name of such holder or its designee, for the number of shares of Common Stock
to which such holder shall be entitled. If the number of shares of Secries D Preferred Stock
represented by the Series D Preferred Stock Certificate(s) submitted for conversion pursuant to

4822-7687-2944v.12
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Section L1(e)M3)(A) is greater than the number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock being
converted, then the Corporation shall, as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3)
Trading Days after receipt of the Series D Preferred Stock Certificate(s) and at its own expense,
issue and deliver to such holder (or its designee) a new Series D Preferred Stock Certificate
representing the number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock not so converted. The person or
entity entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon an optional conversion of
Series D Preferred Stock shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such
shares of Common Stock on the Conversion Date,

(iv) “Trading Day" means any day on which the Common Stock is
traded on the principal securities exchange securities market on which the Common Stock is then
traded, provided that “Trading Day” shall not include any day on which the Common Stock is
scheduled 10 trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5 hours or any day that the Common
Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange or market (or if
such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day
is otherwise designated as a Trading Day in writing by the holder converting the relevant shares
of Series D Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(¢).

(v)  Corporation’s Failure to Timely Convert. If the Corporation shall

fail, for any reason or for no reason, on or prior to the applicable Share Delivery Deadline, to issue
to a holder a certificate for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled
and register such shares of Common Stock on the Corporation's share register or to credit such
holder’s or its designee's balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock
to which such holder is entitled upon such holder's conversion pursuant to this Section 1.1(e) (a
""Conversion Failure”), and if on or after such Share Delivery Deadline such holder purchases (in
an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a
sale by such holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a
number of shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common
Stock, issuable upon such conversion that such holder so anticipated receiving from the
Corporation, then, in addition to all other remedies available to such holder, the Corporation shall,
within three (3) Trading Days after receipt of such holder's request and in such holder's discretion,
cither: (I) pay cash to such holder in an amount equal to such holder's total purchase price
(including brokerage commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of
Common Stock so purchased (including, without limitation, by any other individual or entity in
respect, or on behalf, of such holder) (the “Buy-In Price"), at which point the Corporation’s
abligation to so issue and deliver such certificate or credit such holder’s balance account with DTC
for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder would have been entitled upon
such holder’s conversion hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common
Stock) shall terminate, or (II) promptly honor its obligation to so issue and deliver to such holder
a certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common Stock or credit such holder's
balance account with DTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder is
cntitled upon such holder’s conversion hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to such holder
in an amount equal to the excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (x) such number
of shares of Common Stock multiplied by (y) the lowest closing sale price of the Common Stock
onany Trading Day during the period commencing on the date of the applicable Conversion Notice
and ending on the date of such issuance and payment under this clause (II).

4822-7687-2044v 12
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()  Redemption.

()  Mandatory Redemption. Unless prohibited by Nevada law goveming
distributions to stockholders of a corporation, the Series D Preferred Stock shall be redeemed (a
“Mandatory Redemption™) by the Corporation at a price equal to the Stated Value for such share of
Series D Preferred Stock, plus an amount per share equal to the Stated Value of any shares of Series
D Preferred Stock that are issuable as the result of accrued, but unpaid, PIK Dividends (the
“Redemption Price"), if the Requisite Holders provide written notice of redemption to the
Corporation on or after October 15, 2022, which notice may only be so provided if on or after such
date the Common Stock of the Corporation is not listed on a Trading Market (the date selected by
the Corporation that is within thirty (30) days following the date that the Corporation receives such
notice is referred to as the “Redemption Date”). If on the Redemption Date Nevada law governing
distributions to stockholders of a corporation prevents the Corporation from redeeming all
outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock to be redeemed, the Corporation shall ratably
redeem the maximum number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock that it may redeem consistent
with such law, and shall redeem the remaining shares as soon as it may lawfully do so under such
law. If the Corporation fails to pay the Redemption Price in full and redeem all outstanding shares
of Series D Preferred Stock on the Redemption Date, then PIK Dividends shall accrue as specified

in Section 1.1(c)(ii) hereof,

(i)  Redemption Notice. The Corporation shall send written notice of the
Mandatory Redemption (the “Redemption Notice”) to each holder of record of Series D Preferred
Stock nol less than ten (10) days prior to the Redemption Date. The Redemption Notice shall
state:

(A)  the number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock held by the
holder that the Corporation shall redeem on the Redemption Date specified in the Redemption
Notice;

(B) the Redemption Date and the Redemption Price; and

(C)  for holders of shares in certificated form, that the holder is
to surrender to the Corporation, in the manner and at the place designated, his, her or its certificate
or certificates representing the shares of Series D Preferred Stock to be redeemed.

(i)  Surrender of Certificates; Payment. On or before the Redemption
Date, each holder of shares of Series D Preferred Stock to be redeemed on the Redemption Date,
shall, if a holder of shares in certificated form, surrender the certificate or certificates representing
such shares (or, if such registered holder alleges that such certificate has been lost, stolen or
destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement reasonably acceptable to the Corporation to
indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be made against the Corporation on account
of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to the Corporation, in the manner and
at the place designated in the Redemption Notice, and thereupon the Redemption Price for such
shares shall be payable to the order of the person whose name appears on such certificate or
certificates as the owner thereof.

4822-7687-2944v.12
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(iv)  Redeemed or Otherwise Acquired Shares. Any shares of Series D
Preferred Stock that are redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any of its

subsidiaries shall be automatically and immediately cancelled and retired and shall not be reissued,
sold or transferred.

(g)  Waiver; Amendment. Any of the rights, powers, privileges and other terms
of the Series D Preferred Stock set forth herein may be waived or amended on behalf of all holders
of Series D Preferred Stock by the affirmative written consent or vote of the Requisite Holders.

(h)  Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, any notice required or
permitted by the provisions of this Section 1.] to be given to a holder of shares of Series D
Preferred Stock shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to the post office address last shown on the
records of the Corporation, or given by electronic communication in compliance with Section 78
of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and shall be deemed sent upon such mailing or electronic
transmission,

Section 1.2 Withholding. The Corporation agrees that, provided that a holder of the
Corporation’s capital stock delivers to the Corporation a properly executed IRS Form W-9
certifying as 1o such holder's complete exemption from backup withholding (or, if such holder is
a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, its regarded owner's complete
exemption from backup withholding), under current law the Corporation (including any paying
agent of the Corporation) shall not be required to, and shall not, withhold on any payments or
deemed payments to any such holder. In the event that any holder of the Corporation’s capital
stock fails to deliver to the Corporation such properly executed RS Form W-9, the Corporation
reasonably believes that a previously delivered IRS W-9 is no longer accurate and/or valid, or there
is a change in law that affects the withholding obligations of the Corporation, the Corporation and
its paying agent shall be entitled to withhold taxes on all payments made to the relevant holder in
the form of cash or to request that the relevant holder promptly pay the Corporation in cash any
amounts required to satisfy any withholding tax obligations. In the event that the Corporation does
not have sufficient cash with respect to any such holder from withholding on cash payments
otherwise payable to such holder and cash paid to the Corporation by such holder to the
Corporation pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, the Corporation and its paying agent
shall be entitled to withhold taxes on deemed payments, including PIK Dividends and constructive
distributions, on the Series D Preferred Stock to the extent required by law, and the Corporation
and its paying agent shall be entitled to satisfy any required withholding tax on non-cash payments
(including deemed payments) through a sale of a portion of the Series D Preferred Stock received
as a PIK Dividend or from cash dividends or sales proceeds subsequently paid or credited on the
Series D Preferred Stock.
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BARBARA K, CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 6B4-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov
www.nysilverflume.gov
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Secretary of State
State Of Nevada

Filed in the Office of

C13263-2001
'f&ﬁm Kﬁzmh_ Filing Number

Business Number

20211566343

Filed On

06/28/2021 07:54:31 AM
Number of Pages

1

Registered Agent Acceptance/Statement of Change

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity information:

Name of represented entity;

Applied Blockehain, Inc.

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID):

(for entities currently on file)

NV20011309405

2. Registered Agent
Acceptance:

M Registered Agent Acceptance

3. Information Being
Changed:

Statement of Change takes the following effect: (select only one)
¢ Appoints New Agent (complete section 4)
O Update Represented Entity Acting as Registered Agent (complete sections 5)

¥ Update Registered Agent Name (complete sections 4 & 5)

¥ Update Registered Agent Address (complete sections 4 & 5)

4. Registered Agent
Information Before

he Ch N Name Telephone
the ange: (iNon-
g6: (¥ Nevada 0
commercial registered
agents ONLY) Street Address City Zip Code
Nevada
Mailing Address (only if different from above) City Zip Code
5. Newly Appointed [B Commercial Registered D Moncommercial Registered D Office or position with Entity
Registered Agent Agent (name only below) Agent (name and address below) {title and address below)
or Registered CAPITOL CORPORATE SERVICES, INC.
Agent Information | yame of Registered Agent OR Title of Office or Position with Entity
After the Change: :
202 SOUTH MINNESOTA STREET Carson City Nevada 89703
Street Address City Zip Code
Nevada
Mailing Address (only if different fram above) City Zip Code
6. Electronic Email address for electronic notifications for "Non-Commercial” or "Office or Positions with Entity” registered agents only:

Notification: (Optional)

7. Certificate of

| hereby accept appointment as Registered Agent for the above named Entity.

Acceptance of

Appointment of

Registered Agent: | S

(Ref?quired) ? x DELANIE CASE 06/29/2021
Authorized Signature of Registered Agent or On Behalf of Registered Agent Entity Data

8. Signature of

Represented : .

Entity: x DAVID RENCH 06/29/2021 |
Authorized Signature On Behall of the Enlity Date

(Required)




This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.
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BARBARA K. CROAVEKE Annual or Amended List

Secretary of State

202 Horth Carson Sireet and State Business

st ol License Application
Website: www.nvsos.gov
www.nvsilverflume.gov

[V ANNUAL[ ] AMENDED (checkone
List of Officers, Managers, Members, General Partners, Managing Partners, Trustees or Subscribers:

Applied Blockchain, Inc. NV20011309405
NAME OF ENTITY Entity or Nevada Business
Identification Number (NVID)

TYPE OR PRINT ONLY - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

IMPORTANT:; Read instructions before completing and ralurning this form.
Please indicale the enlity typa (check only one):

B Corporation Filed inthe Officcof | Business Number
[y This corporation is publicly traded, the Central Index Key numberis: g Aps € (ias oy Fig Narber
0001144879 20211502899
[T] Nonprofit Corporation (see nonprofit sections below) SN oo 5"'3’:3'321 1412401 PM
pro Stae Of Nevada s
(0 vimited-Liability Company 3

[] Limited Partnership

[ Limited-Liability Partnership

[ Umited-Liability Limited Partnership

[:I Business Trust

[} Corporation Sole

Additional Officers, Managers, Members, General Partners, Managing Partners, Trustees or Subscribers, may be listed on a supplemental page.

_CHECK ONLY IF APPLICABLE

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 76, this entity is exempt from the business license fee,

[[] 001 - Goveramental Enity

D 008 - NRS 6808.020 Insurance Co, provide license or cerificale of authority number

For nonprofit entlties formed under NRS chapter 80: entities without 50 1(c) nonprofil designation are required to mainlain a slate business license,
the fee is $200.00. Those claiming an exemption under 501(c) designation must indicate by checking box below.

[:| Pursuant to NRS Chapler 76, this entity is a 501(c) nonprofit enlity and is exempt from the business licansa fee.
Exemption Code 002

For nonprofit entities formad under NRS Chapler B1: entities which are Unil-owners' associalion or Religious, Charitable, fratemnal or other
organization that qualifies asa lax-exempt Tnlzntiun pursuant to 26 U.5.C § 501(c) are excluded from the requirement to obtain a state business
licanse. Please indicate balow if this entity falls under one of these calegories by marking the appropriate box. If the entity does not fall under either of
these categories please submit $200.00 for the state business license.

p ! Religious, charitable, fraternal or other organization that qualifies as a tax-exempl organization
[0] unitowners' Association  [[] SR E8h TRPSE $B01(c) ' i

For nonprofit entities formed under NRS Chapter 82 and 80; able Solicitation Informatios
Does the Organization intend to solicil charitable or lax deduclible conlributions

[] e -no additional form is required
[} Yes - the "Charitable Solicitation Regisiration Statement” is required.

D The Organization claims exemption pursuant to NRS B2A 210 - the "Exemplion From Charitable Solicitation Registration Statement” is
required

**Fallure to Include the required statement form will result in rejection of the filing and could result in late fees.**
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BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Secretary of State

202 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 897014201

(775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov
www.nvsilverflume.gov
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Annual or Amended List
and State Business License
Application - Continued

Officers, Managers, Members, General Partners, Managing Partners, Trustees or Subscribers:

CORPORATION, INDICATE THE SECRETARY:
[Wesley Cummins | [usA |
Name Cauntry

(3811 Turtle Creek Blvd Suite 2100 | [Dallas | x] (75219 ]
Address City State Zip/Postal Code
CORPORATION, INDICATE THE TREASURER:

[David Rench | |usA |
Name Country

(3811 Turtle Creek Bivd Suite 2100 | [Dallas | mx] [75219 |
Address City State Zip/Postal Code
CORPORATION, INDICATE THE DIRECTOR:

|Wesley Cummins | |USA |
Name Counlry

(3811 Turtle Creek Bivd Suite 2100 | [Dallas | ix] 75219 ]
Address City Stale Zip/Postal Code
CORPORATION, INDICATE THE PRESIDENT:

|Wesley Cummins | |usa |
Name Couniry

[3811 Turtle Creek Bivd Suite 2100 | [Dallas | ] [15219 ]
Address City State Zip/Postal Code

None of the officers and direciors identified in the list of officers has been identified with the fraudulent intent of concealing
the identity of any person or persons exercising the power or autherity of an officer or director in furtherance of any

unlawful conduct.

| declare, to the bast of my knowledge under penalty of perjury, that the information contained herein Is correct and
acknowledge that pursuant to NRS 238,330, it is a category C felony to knowingly offer any false or forged instrument for filing

in the Office of tha Secretary of State.
X Wesley Cummins [President | |06/02/2021
Signature of Officer, Manager, Managing Member, Title Date

General Partner, Managing Partner, Trustee,
Subscriber, Member, Owner of Business,

Partner or Authorized Signer rorm wiLL 8e RETURNED IF

UNSIGNED
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Filed in the Office of Business Number

C13263-2001
MK% Filing Number

20211456018
Secretary of State Filed On
5/1372021 3:41:00 PM
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE 2
Secretary of State
202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate of Correction
NRS 78, 78A, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86, 87, 87A, 88, 88A, 89 and 92A

(Only one document may be corrected per certificate.)

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. Enter the current name as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State and enter the Entity or Nevada Business
Identification Number (NVID),

2, Name of document with inaccuracy or defect

3, Filing date of document with inaccuracy or defect

4, Brief description of inaccuracy or defect.

5. Correction of inaccuracy or defect.

6. Must be signed by Authorized Signer. Form will be returned if unsigned.

1. Entity Information: | 2 of entity as on fle with the Nevada Secretary of State:

Applied Blockchain, Inc.

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): C13283-2001

2. Document: Name of document with inaccuracy or defect:
Second Amended and Restated Arlicles of Incorporation

3. Filing Date: Filing date of document which correction is being made: April 15, 2021

4. Description: Description of inaccuracy or defect:
Number of shares and par value for Series C Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock should have been specified.

5. Correction:

Correction of inaccuracy or defect.

The Fourteenth Article is hereby replaced and corrected to specify that
Series C preferred stock shall consist of 660,000 shares, par value $0.001
per share, as further detailed in Exhibit A hereto.

6. Signature: — —_—
Required .
Sl j)“'/ /é““/ Z\ 05/13/2021

Signature Date
This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees

Fage 1 of 1
Revised 112018
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EXHIBIT A

The Fourteenth Article is hereby replaced and corrected to read as follows:

FOURTEENTH. Applied Blockehain, Inc., pursuant fo the provisions of Sections
78.195 and 78.1955 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Nevada, does
hereby make that certain Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences
and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Restrictions of Series C Preferred
Stock of Applied Blockchain, Inc.. a copy of which has been attached hereto as
Exhibit C (the “Series C Designation”). Applied Blockchain, Inc.. does hereby state
and certify that pursuant to the authority expressly vested in the Board of Directors
of the corporation by the provisions of Article FOURTH hereof. the Board of
Directors duly adopted resolutions authorizing the issuance of 660,000 shares, par
value $0.001 per share, and fixing the designation and preferences
and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and qualifications.
limitations and restrictions, of a series of preferred stock to be
designated “Series C Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock”, as further
described in and pursuant to the terms of Exhibit C hereto. The Series C
Designation is incorporated herein and shall be in full force and effect as of the
effective date hereof.
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Filed i the Office of Business Number

2102111386144
Filed On
m&y 4152021 $:47:00 AM
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE Number of Pages
Secretary of State :
202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 897014201

NRS 78, 78A, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86, 87, 87A, 88, 88A, 89 and 92A

Certificate of Correction

(Only one document may be corrected per certificate.)

TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

INSTRUCTIONS:

1, Enter the current name as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State and enter the Entity or Nevada Business
|dentification Number (NVID).

2, Name of document with inaccuracy or defect.

3. Filing date of document with Inaccuracy or defect,

4, Brief description of Inaccuracy or defect,

B. Correction of inaccuracy or defect.

6. Must be signed by Authorized Signer. Form will be returned if unsigned,

1.Entity Information: | 2o of entity as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State:
[Applied Blockchain, Inc. ]
Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): C13283-2001 i
2. Document: Name of document with inaccuracy or defect:
(Certificate of Amendment |
3. Filing Date: Filing date of document which correction is being mede: (03/26/2021 |
4. Description: Description of inaccurecy or defect
'Par value should have remained unchanged. Authorized common stock was
increased without a corresponding Increase to authorized capital stock.
8. Correction: Correction of inaccuracy or defect;
|Tha Third ARTICLE is hereby replaced and comected to increase the
‘authorized capltal stock to 505,000,000, par value $0.001, 500,000,000 are
‘common stock and 5,000,000 are preferred stock [see attachment hereto]
6. Signature:
o X 220:»/ %— oS0z

Signature Dats

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.
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SUPPLEMENT TO ITEM &
Correction of inaccuracy or defect:

The Third Article is hereby replaced and corrected to read as follows:

THIRD. The total number of shares of capital stock which this corporation shall
have authority to Issue Is five hundred five million (505,000,000) with a par value
of $0.001 per share amounting to $505,000.00. Five hundred million (500,000,000)
of those shares are Common Stock and five million (5,000,000) of those shares
are Preferred Stock. Each share of Common Stock shall entitie the holder thereof
to one volte, in person or by proxy, on any matter on which action of the
stockholders of this corporation is sought. The holders of shares of Preferred Stock
shall have no right to vote such shares, except (i) as determined by the Board of
Directors of this corporation in accordance with the provisions of Section (3) of
Aricle FOURTH of these Articles of Incorporation, or (if) as otherwise provided by
the Mevada General Corporation Law, as amended from time to time.




hitps:/iwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1144879/000162828022023816/a04-12x2022appliedamende.htm

32




12/27/22, 11:40 AM a04-12x2022appliedamende

Filed in the Office of Business Number

m K qudh_ EI}?ZE-ZWI

20211387751

Filed On

BARBARA K, CEGAVSKE Swcrtiey of St 41152021 2:18:00 PM
Secretary of State o OF Hovace “Nurmber of Pages
202 North Carson Street 71
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 684-5708
Website: www.nvsos.gov

Profit Corporation:

Certificate of Amendment (PURSUANT TO NRS 78.380 & 76.385/78.390)
Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and
Restated Articles pursuant o nrs 78.403)

Officer's Statement ursuan ronrs s0.030)
TYPE OR PRINT - USE DARK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT

1. Entity information: | Name of entity as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State:
lAppI ied Blockchain, Inc. =i |

Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID): [91 525512'9{_31'

2. Restated or X Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and Restaled Articles
Amended and L Restated Articles - No amendments; articles are restated only and are signed by an
Restated Articles: officer of the corporation who has been authorized lo execute the oerhficate by
{Select cne) resolution of the board of directors adopted on; |
(If amending and The certificate correctly sets forth the text of the articles or cerli ﬁcate as amended
restating only, complete to the date of the certificate.
section 1,2 3, 5 and 6) ¥| Amended and Restated Arlicles

* Restated or Amended and Restated Articles must be included with this filing type.
3. Type of N Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.380 - Before
Amendment Filing Issuance of Stock)
Being Completed: The undersigned declare that they constitute at least two-thirds of the
(Select only one box) following:
[ o, oovicials (Check only one box) []  incorporators [] board of directors
section 1, 3, 5 and 6.) The undersigned affirmatively declare that to the date of this certificate, no stock

of the corporation has been issued

X Certificate of Amendment lo Articles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and

~ 78.390 - After Issuance of Stock)
The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise
at least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may
be required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions
of the articles of incorporation* have voted in favor of the amendment is: (78 5%

[ Officer's Statement (foreign qualified entities only) -
Name in home state, if using a modified name in Nevada:

L |

Jurisdiction of formation: [ e
Changes to takes the following effect:
["] The entity name has been amended. [ IDissolution
["] The purpase of the entity has been amended., [IMerger
["] The authorized shares have been amended. [ IConversion

[ Other: (specify changes)

* Officer's Statement rnuﬁ be submitted with either a certified copy of or a certificate eviéancﬁg-!'he filing
of any document, amendatory or otherwise, relating to the original articles in the place of the corporations
creation.

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. Page 1 012
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BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Profit Corporation:

Certificate of Amendment pursuant 1o nrs 78.380 & 78 38578.390)
Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and

Restated Articles ursuanr Tonrs 78.403)

Officer's Statement pursuant 10 nrs s0030)

4. Effective Date and Date: | | Time:
Time: (Optional) (must not be later than 90 days after the certficate is filed)
[ §. Information Being | Changes to lakes the following effect:
' gmg;fm“m The entity name has been amended.
The registered agent has been changed. (attach Certificate of Acceptance from new
registered agent)
| | The purpose of the entity has been amended.
Ix The authorized shares have been amended.
| The directors, managers or general pariners have been amended.
| IRS tax language has been added.
% Articles have been added.
| Articles have been deleted.
X Other,
The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article numbers, if available)
Articles 13 and 14 have been added; Article 14 adds new series of Preferred
(attach additional page(s) if necessary)
'-l'-
6. Signature: y —— o
(Required) K_MZ\__ CFO [Y —
Signature of Officer or Authorized Signer Title
Signature of Officer or Authorized Signer Title
*|f any proposed amendment would alter or change any preference or any relative or other right given to
any class or series of outstanding shares, then the amendment must be approved by the vote, in addition lo
the affirmative vole otherwise required, of the holders of shares representing a majority of the vating power
of each class or series affected by the amendment regardless to limitations or restrictions on the voting
power thereol.
Please include any required or optional information in space below:
(attach additional page(s) if necessary)
This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. Page2cf2
Revised: 1/1/2018
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SUPPLEMENT TO ITEM 5
The articles have been amended as follows:

1. The Thirteenth Article is hereby added to incorporate, restate and affirm:

() That certain Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations of the Powers,
Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of
Preferred Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock for Flight Safety Technologies, Inc. n/k/a Applied
Blockchain, Inc., which was filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on

September 9, 2009 (the “Series A Designation”); and

(i) Thatcertain Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative,
Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of Preferred Stock and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock for Flight Safety Technologies, Inc. n/k/a Applied Blockchain, Inc.,
which was filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on September 9, 2009 (the
"Series B Designation").

The Series A Designation and the Series B Designation shall remain in full force and effect
notwithstanding the filing of the Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation
of Applied Blockchain, Inc,

2. The Fourteenth Article is hereby added to adopt and incorporate that certain Certificate of
Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other
Restrictions of Series C Preferred Stock of Applied Blockchain, Inc. (the “Series C
Designation”). The adoption of the Series C Designation constitutes an amendment to the
Articles of Incorporation of Applied Blockchain, Inc.
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SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
APPLIED BLOCKCHAIN, INC.

Pursuant to the provisions of Title 7, Chapter 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, the
Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation are hereby amended and restated to read in their
entirety as follows:

FIRST. The name of this corporation is Applied Blockchain, Inc,

SECOND. The purpose of this corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for
which corporations may be organized pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of
Nevada.

THIRD. The total number of shares of capital stock which this corporation shall have
authority to issue is five hundred five million (505,000,000) with a par value of $0.001 per share
amounting to $505,000.00. Five hundred million (500,000,000) of those shares are Common Stock
and five million (5,000,000) of those shares are Preferred Stock. Each share of Common Stock
shall entitle the holder thereof to one vote, in person or by proxy, on any matter on which action
of the stockholders of this corporation is sought. The holders of shares of Preferred Stock shall
have no right to vote such shares, except (i) as determined by the Board of Directors of this
corporation in accordance with the provisions of Section (3) of Article FOURTH of these Articles
of Incorporation, or (i) as otherwise provided by the Nevada General Corporation Law, as
amended from time to time,

FOURTH. The Board of Directors of this corporation shall be, and hereby is, authorized
and empowered, subject to such limitations prescribed by law and the provisions of Article THIRD
of these Articles of Incorporation, to provide for the issuance of the shares of Preferred Stock in
series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the State of Nevada, to establish
from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the
designations, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions of each such serics. The authority of the Board of
Directors with respect to each series shall include, but not be limited to, determination of the
following:

(1) The number of shares constituting such series and the distinctive designation of such series;
(2) The dividend rate on the shares of such series, whether dividends shall be cumulative and,

if so, from which date or dates, and the relative rights of priority, if any, of payment of
dividends on shares of such series;

449505
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(3) Whether such series shall have voting rights, in addition to the voting rights provided by
law, and, if so, the terms of such voting rights;

(4) Whether such series shall have conversion privileges, and, if so, the terms and conditions
of such conversion privileges, including provision for the adjustment of the conversation
rate, in such events as the Board of Directors shall determine;

(5) Whether or not the shares of such series shall be redeemable, and, if so, the terms and
conditions of such redemption, including the date or date upon or after which those shares
shall be redeemable, and the amount per share payable in the event of redemption, which
amount may vary in different circumstances and at different redemption dates;

(6) Whether that series shall have a sinking fund for the redemption or purchase of shares of
such series, and, if so, the terms and amount of such sinking fund;

(7) The rights of the shares of such series in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of this corporation, and the relative rights of priority, if any, of
payment of shares of such series; and

(8) Any other relative rights, preferences and limitation of such series.

Dividends on issued and outstanding shares of Preferred Stock shall be paid or declared
and set apart for payment prior to any dividends being paid or declared and sct apart for payment
on the shares of Common Stock with respect to the same dividend period.

If, upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of this
corporation, the assets of this corporation available for distribution to holders of shares of Preferred
Stock of all series shall be insufficient to pay such holders the full and complete preferential
amount to which such holders are entitled, then such assets shall be distributed ratably among the
shares of all series of Preferred Stock in accordance with the respective preferential amounts,
including unpaid cumulative dividends, if any, payable with respect thereto.

FIFTH. No director or officer of this corporation shall have any personal liability to this
corporation or its stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer,
except that this Article FIFTH shall not eliminate or limit the liability of a director or officer for
(i) acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law,
or (i) the payment of dividends in violation of the Nevada General Corporation Law, Any repeal
or modification of this article by the stockholders of this corporation shall not adversely affect any
right or protection of any director of this corporation existing at the time of such repeal or
modification.

SIXTH. This corporation reserves the right at any time, and from time to time, to amend.

alter, change or repeal any provision specified in the Articles of Incorporation, and other provisions
authorized by the laws of the State of Nevada at any such time then in force may be added or
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hitps:/fwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/1144879/000162828022023816/a04-12x2022appliedamende.htm

37




12/27/22, 11:40 AM

a04-12x2022appliedamende

inserted, in the manner now or hercafter prescribed by law; and all rights, preferences and
privileges of whatsoever nature conferred upon stockholders, directors or any other persons
whomsoever by and pursuant to these Articles of Incorporation in their present form or as hereafter
amended are granted subject to the rights reserved in this article.

SEVENTH. Capital stock issued by this corporation after the amount of the subscription
price or par value therefor has been paid in full shall not be subject to pay debis of this corporation,
and no capital stock issued by this corporation and for which payment has been made shall ever
be assessable or assessed.

EIGHTH. (a) The affairs of this corporation shall be governed by a Board of Directors of
not more than fifteen (15) persons nor less than one (1) person, as determined from time to time
by vote of a majority of the Board of Directors of this corporation; provided, however, that the
number of directors shall not be reduced so as to reduce the term of any director at the time in
office.

(b)  The directors shall be elected by the holders of shares entitled to vote thereon at the
annual meeting of shareholders and until their respective successor has been elected and qualified.

(¢)  Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Articles of Incorporation or the
bylaws of this corporation (and notwithstanding the fact that some lesser percentage may be
specified by law, these Articles of Incorporation or the bylaws of this corporation), any director or
the entire Board of Directors of this corporation may be removed at any time, but only for cause
and only by the affirmative vote of the holders of seventy-five percent (75%) or more of the
outstanding shares of capital stock of this corporation entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors (considered for this purpose as one class) cast at a meeting of the stockholders of this
corporation called for that purpose. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and except as otherwise
required by law, whenever the holders of any one or more series of Preferred Stock shall have the
right, voting separately as a class, to elect one or more directors of this corporation, the provisions
of section (c) of this article shall not apply with respect to the director or directors elected by such
holders of Preferred Stock.

NINTH. The period of existence of this corporation shall be perpetual,

TENTH. No contract or other transaction between this corporation and any other
corporation, whether or not a majority of the shares of the capital stock of such other corporation
1s owned by this corporation, and no act of this corporation shall in any way be affected or
invalidated by the fact that any of the directors of this corporation are pecuniarily or otherwise
interested in, or are directors or officers of such other corporation. Any director of this corporation,
individually, or any firm of which such director may be a member, may be a party to, or may be
pecuniarily or otherwise interested in any contract or transaction of this corporation; provided,
however, that the fact that he or such firm is so interested shall be disclosed or shall have been
known to the Board of Directors of this corporation, or a majority thereof; and any director of this
corporation who is also a director or officer of such other corporation, or who is so interested, may
be counted in determining the existence of a quorum at any meeting of the Board of Directors of
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this corporation that shall authorize such contract or transaction, and may vote thereat to authorize
such contract or transaction, with the same force and effect as if he or she were not such director
or officer of such other corporation or not so interested.

ELEVENTH. Subject to the provisions of any series of Preferred Stock of this corporation
which may at the time be issued and outstanding and convertible into shares of Common Stock of
this corporation, the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock held by stockholders of this corporation other than the “related person” (as defined
later in these Articles of Incorporation), shall be required for the approval or authorization of any
“business combination” (as defined later in these Articles of Incorporation) of this corporation
with any related person; provided, however, that such voting requirement shall not be applicable
if;

(1) The business combination was approved by the Board of Directors of this corporation
cither (A) prior to the acquisition by such related person of the beneficial ownership of
twenty percent (20%) or requisition the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of
this corporation, or (B) after such acquisition, but only during such time as such related
person has sought and obtained the unanimous approval by the Board of Directors of
this corporation of such acquisition of more than 20% of the Common Stock prior to
such acquisition being consummated; or

(2) The business combination is solely between this corporation and another corporation,
fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting stock of which is owned by a related person.
provided, however, that each stockholder of this corporation receives the same type of
consideration in such transaction in proportion to his or her stockholdings; or

(3) All of the following conditions are satisfied; (A) The cash or fair market value of the
property, securities or other consideration to be received per share by holders of
Common Stock of this corporation in the business combination is not less than the
higher of (i) the highest per share price (including brokerage commissions, soliciting
dealers fees, dealer-management compensation, and other expenses, including, but not
limited to, costs of newspaper advertisements, printing expenses and attorneys’ fees)
paid by such related person in acquiring any of its holdings of this corporation’s
Common Stock or (i) an amount which has the same or a greater percentage
relationship to the market price of this corporation’s Common Stock immediately prior
to the commencement of acquisition of this corporation’s Common Stock by such
related person, but in no event in excess of two (2) times the highest per share price
determined in clause (i), above; and

(B) After becoming a related person and prior to the consummation of such business
combination, (i) such related person shall not have acquired any newly issued shares of
capital stock, directly or indirectly, from this corporation (except upon conversion of
convertible securities acquired by it prior to becoming a related person or upon
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compliance with the provision of this article or as a result of a pro rata stock dividend
or stock split) and (ii) such related person shall not have received the benefit, directly
or indirectly, (except proportionately as a stockholder) of any loans, advances,
guarantees, pledges or other financial assistance or tax credits provided by this
corporation, or made any major changes in this corporation’s business or equity capital
structure; and

(C) A proxy statement complying with the requirements of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, whether or not this corporation is then subject to such requirements, shall
be mailed 1o the public stockholders of this corporation for the purpose of soliciting
stockholder approval of such business combination and shall contain at the front
thereof, in a prominent place (i) any recommendations as to the advisability (or
inadvisability) of the business combination which the continuing directors, or any
outside directors, may determine to specify, and (ii) the opinion of a reputable national
investment banking firm as to the fairess (or not) of the terms of such business
combination, from the point of view of the remaining public stockholders of this
corporation (such investment banking firm to be engaged solely on behalf of the
remaining public stockholders, to be paid a reasonable fee for its services by this
corporation upon receipt of such opinion, to be a reputable national investment bankin g
firm which has not previously been associated with such related person and, if there
are at the time any such directors, to be selected by a majority of the continuing
directors and outside directors).

For purposes of this article:

(1) The term “business combination” shall be defined as and mean (a) any merger or

consolidation of this corporation with or into a related person; (b) any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer or other disposition, including, without limitation, a mortgage or any
other security device, of all or any substantial part of the assets of this corporation,
including, without limitation, any voting securities of a subsidiary, or of a subsidiary,
to a related person; (c) any merger or consolidation of a related person with or into this
corporation or a subsidiary of this corporation; (d) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer
or other disposition of all or any substantial part of the assets of a related person fo this
corporation or a subsidiary of this corporation; (e) the issuance of any securities of this
corporation or a subsidiary of this corporation to a related person; (f) the acquisition by
this corporation or a subsidiary of this corporation of any securities of a related person;
(g) any reclassification of Common Stock of this corporation, or any recapitalization
involving Common Stock of this corporation, consummated within five (5) years after
a related person becomes a related person, and (h) any agreement, contract or other
arrangement providing for any of the transactions described in this definition of
business combination,

(2) The term “related person” shall be defined as and mean and include any individual,

corporation, trust, association, partnership or other person or entity which, together
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with their “affiliates” and “associates” (defined later in these Articles of Incorporation),
“beneficially” owns (as this term is defined in Rule 13d-3 of the General Rules and
Regulations pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), in the aggregate 20% or
more of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of this corporation, and any
“affiliate™ or “associate” (as those terms are defined in Rule 12b-2 pursuant to the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) of any such individual, corporation, trust,
association, partnership or other person or entity;

(3) The term “substantial part” shall be defined as and mean more than ten percent (10%)
of the total assets of the corporation in question, as of the end of its most recent fiscal
year ending prior to the time the determination is being made;

(4) Without limitation, any shares of Common Stock of this corporation which any related
person has the right to acquire pursuant to any agreement, or upon exercise of
conversion rights, warrants or options, or otherwise, shall be deemed beneficially
owned by such related person;

(5) For the purposes of this article, the term “other consideration to be received” shall
include, without limitation, Common Stock of this corporation retained by its existing
public stockholders in the event of a business combination with such related person
pursuant to which this corporation is the surviving corporation; and

(6) With respect to any proposed business combination, the term “continuing director”
shall be defined as and mean a director who was a member of the Board of Directors
of this corporation immediately prior to the time that any related person involved in the
proposed business combination acquired twenty percent (20%) or more of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock of this corporation, and the term “outside
director” shall be defined as and mean a director who is not (a) an officer or employee
of this corporation or any relative of an officer or employee, (b) a related person or an
officer, director employee. associate or affiliate of a related person, or a relative of any
of the foregoing, or (c¢) a person having a direct or indirect material business
relationship with this corporation.

TWELFTH. All of the powers of this corporation, insofar as the same may be lawfully
vested by these Articles of Incorporation in the Board of Directors, are hereby conferred upon the
Board of Directors of this corporation, In furtherance and not in limitation of that power, the Board
of Directors shall have the power to make, adopt, alter, amend and repeal from time to time bylaws
of this corporation, subject to the right of the shareholders entitled to vote with respect thereto to
adopt, alter, amend and repeal bylaws made by the Board of Directors; provided, however, that
bylaws shall not be adopted, altered, amended or repealed by the stockholders of this corporation,
except by the vote of the holders of not less than two thirds (2/3) of the outstanding shares of stock
entitled to vote upon the election of directors.
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THIRTEENTH. Notwithstanding the execution and filing of these Second Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation of Applied Blockchain, Inc., the following Series A Designation
and Series B Designation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State are incorporated herein and shall
remain in full force and effect as of the effective date hereof:

(1) That certain Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations of the Powers,
Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of Preferred
Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock for Flight Safety Technologies, Inc. n/k/a Applied Blockchain, Inc.,
which was filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on September 9, 2009, a copy of
which has been attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Series A Designation™); and

(2) That certain Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative,
Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of Preferred Stock and Qualifications,
Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock for Flight
Safety Technologies, Inc. n/k/a Applied Blockchain, Inc., which was filed with the
Nevada Secretary of State on September 9, 2009, a copy of which has been attached

hereto as Exhibit B (the “Series B Designation”).

FOURTEENTH. Applied Blockchain, Inc., pursuant to the provisions of Sections 78.195
and 78.1955 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Nevada, does hereby make that certain
Certificate of Designations of the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and
Other Restrictions of Series C Preferred Stock of Applied Blockchain, Inc., a copy of which has
been attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Series C Designation”), Applied Blockchain, Inc., does
hereby state and certify that pursuant to the authority expressly vested in the Board of Directors of
the corporation by the provisions of Article FOURTH hereof, the Board of Directors duly adopted
resolutions authorizing the issuance of, and fixing the designation and preferences and relative,
participating, optional and other special rights, and qualifications, limitations and restrictions, of a
series of preferred stock to be designated “Series C Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock”, as
further described in and pursuant to the terms of Exhibit C hereto. The Series C Designation is
corporated herein and shall be in full force and effect as of the effective date hereof.
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IN WITNESSS WHEREOF, the undersigned officer, for and on behalf of the Corporation
has signed these Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation this 15th day of April,
2021.

\ E\E\‘ﬁ\ i

Wesley Cumr\%ns, CEO

[Signature Page to Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation)
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EXHIBIT A
SERIES A DESIGNATION
[See attached.]

[Exhibit A]
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AMENDED AND RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS OF THE POWERS, PREFERENCES AND
RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL AND OTHER SPECIAL RIGHTS OF
PREFERRED STOCK AND QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
THEREOF

of
SERIES A
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
for
FLIGHT SAFETY TECHNOLOGIES, INC,

FLIGHT SAFETY TECHNOLOGIES, INC, a Nevada corporation  (the
“Corporation”), pursuant to the provisions of Section 78.1955 of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Nevada, does hereby make this Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations

Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of Preferred Stock
and Quahﬂcmnm, Limitations and Rnstriﬂim.s Thereof of Scries A Convertible Preferred Stock

December 17, 2008 as Document Nurmber 2008-0816678-56, to read in its entirety as set forth

herein, and adopts the following resolutions, which resolutions remain in full forca and effect as
of the date hereof:

RESOLVED, that, pursuant to Article Fourth of the Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation, the Board of Directors hereby authorizes the issuance of, and fixes the designation
and preferences and relative, perticipating, optional and other special rights, and qualifications,
limitations and restrictions, of a series of preferred stock consisting of 70,000 shares, par value
$.001 per share, to be designated “Series A Convertible Preferred Stock” (the “Series A
Preferred Shares”); and

RESOLV!D.tha;tcachofﬁmSu{mAPrcfcmdShmﬂshallnnkcqusllyinnllm
with the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, par value $.001 per share (the
“Series B Preferred Shares,” and together with the Series A Preferred Shares, the “Preferred
Shm:e:"),mdthnlthaiesAPnfemdShmshaﬂbetuhimtwthefoﬂowingmamd
provisions:

LHUTI5072.8 - 3191
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08/08/2008 16:48 FAX 860 4423488 TCORS @oz4

serics shall be 70,000 shares.

& Dividends.

(8) Dividend Rate. For 30 long as any Serics A Preferred Shares are
oumding,thn(lorponﬁmshxﬂm,uiudimﬁundthmﬁ)adi\’idmdpuyablelnmhltl
pu-mnmmeofs%oftha()riuimlhuchml’ﬁce(ud:ﬁmdbelmw)pwslmv;or(ii)a
d{videndpayableinnddiﬁomlshmofSuiasAP:dmedShmainpurmmmof!mof
the Original Purchase Price per share; provided, however, that if the VWAP (as such term is
defined below) for the common stock, par value $.001 of the Corporation (“Common Stock™)
mmds?omumCmts(SD.M)pmhmwithmpectwanyﬁmlqmm,nodividmduhnﬂbe
due with respect to such fiscal quarter. Dividanduhallbnmlculatedontlwbasisofaiﬁ-dly
month and a 360-day year. For purposes of calculating the number of Series A Preferred Shares
to be issued as a dividend under Section 2(a)(ii) hereof, the Series A Preferred Shares to be
issucd shall be valued at a price per share equal to the Original Purchase Price. For purposes of
this Certificate, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

“un'mmmequmdywium-weighudsmmlcmmrahmofﬂmu
Stackuutheprincipalmnkﬂformypuﬁmﬂuﬁwdqumumpumd.umhﬂmmbc
adjusted for stock splits and combinations of the Common Stock.

(®)  Dividend Pavment Dates The dividend payment dates for the Series A
memedShmsmtheﬁmdaysomeh,Jmn,Scmmbﬂ.mdDewnbﬁmmmmdng
March 1, 2009; provided that if any such payment date is not a Business Day (as defined below)
then such dividend shall be payable on the next Business Day. The initial dividend period for
any Serics A Preferred Shares shall commence on the day when such shares are issued. The term
“Business Day" means adnycthummasmmdny,sm”rdayon which banking institutions
in New York are authorized or required to remain closed.

(©) Consent FormlongumyScriaAmehmdShammmﬁn;
the Corporation shall not pay any dividends on any shares of Common Stock (except for
dividends payable in Common Stock) or any shares of any other capital stock other than on
Series B Preferred Shares in accordance with the provisions of the Certificate of Designations of
the Powers, Preferences and Relative, Participating, Optional and Other Special Rights of
Preferred Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company, as in effect from time to time (the “Series B Certificate of
Designations”), or repurchase any shares of Common Stock (other than the repurchase of shares
ofConunonStmkimuodpmwnwcmploymmtmmmmgwmtswhhthc
Cmpornﬁmgwhi&mmpmhmdupmﬁmimionofmploymmorsmimfm
oonaidmﬁm:mmmmhﬁﬁwumpﬁw)ormmmahMMmed
written consent of a majority of the votes attributable to the outstanding Preferred Shares (the
“Requived Holders”), voting separately from the holders of Common Stock.

3. Liquidation Events.

(a)  Liquidation Preference. Upon (i) any liquidation, dissolution or winding
up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, or (ii) unless otherwise agreed by the
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Required Holders, (A) a merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into another entity
(excoptforumergerorcnmoiidnﬁoninwhichﬂmhuldmofupita!mkufm&rpm&m
imnwdiatdypﬁormmhmuxexormnsoﬁduionoonﬁnucmholdatlmsn%ofﬂw
outstanding voting power of such surviving Corporation), (B) the sale or transfer of all or
mbstl.utin.l]ya!lofﬂmuntsofthsCmpmuﬁon(forthispmpm“mhamﬂidlyaH“ahﬂlmun
properties or assets with a fair market value equal to 60% or more of the fair market value of the
Cm‘pomtion’swznlproperﬁuormﬂaunf&nmdofﬂnmmﬁxﬂmmw
shallmtinnludeabonaﬁdepledaeol'm).(C)anyissmmcofﬂnmofupinlmckbyﬂn
Cmﬁmmmmmmmmmommmfor(x)misnmofshworupital
stock in which the holders of capital stock of the Corporation immediatzly prior to such issuance
ofstuckcontinunoholdnlmSD%ofthomundimwﬁngpowwofﬂmCorpmﬁmaﬁa
such issuance of shares of capital stock, (y) the issuance of Series B Preferred Shares on the
“Original ImeDm"(ummhmisdﬁadinﬂuSuieaBCcrﬁﬁcﬂofDesimﬁun),m(z)
ﬂ:e]mmnuofScﬁuAmemedSbmsmtheOﬁglmIMDm{assmhmisdcﬁmd
below),m(D)thcmpmhmbymeComﬁunnfshmofupitdmknﬂthmﬁm
(othe:thmﬂnS::iesBPm&mdShminmormmewimmepmﬁsimnfttheﬁuB
Cerﬁﬁcatuot'nesigmliomorﬂuSe:iasAmemudShmsinmmmwi:hthghmhmn
mhlhmhcholdersufcapitnlstwkofﬂmCmpomﬁaninmadintclypﬁormmhmpumhmdo
not hold at least 50% of the outstanding voting power of the Corporation after such

(mhafthstrmm&umoremudmibedin&cﬁonsﬁ)m(ii)(A)-(D)ofthisSecdunS{a)
is referred to as a “Liquidation Event” herein), each holder of outstanding Serics A Preferred
Sham.-.hallbaﬁﬂadmhtpaidou:ofﬂuconsidmﬁmpuylblntothcswckhnldmofths
Carporation (in the case of a merger or consolidation, for example) or of the consideration
pi)'lbiubotheCorpomim(nctofobl.igaﬁonscmdbyt}m(:omonﬁon)togcthuwithallothu
auilablaasmafﬂ:ecnrponﬁm(inﬂwcaseofmmmle,fnrmlﬂe),nsthemsemuybc,
whether such assets are capital, surplus or capital eamnings, on the same priority as other holders
ofPrefenadShma,banﬁwndinprmuwmpaymmbuingpﬁdwboldmof
Ccmmm:Mof&sﬁmoﬂﬁmmo&uahmumﬁngjuﬂorhmsmam

not paid in full, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall share ratably in any distribution of
asscts in proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled, For the
avoidance of doubt, a sale of shares of capital stock of the Corporation by anyone other then the
Corporation (for example a sale of shares of capital stock on the open market) shall not result in

a Liquidation Event, notwithstanding a change of control of the Corporation, so long as such
transaction does notodxmisefallundutbepm\dsiomof(m-(n)ofthis Section 3(a).

(b)  Participation. After payment in the full of the Preferred Share Liquidation
Preference, the holders ofoumdingPrcfemdShmdeummnnSmckMshminmy

mlc.fwmpla)mm(uifthel’mfumdShnmlndbwmmvu'tedintnCommonStocku
ofthedneimmedialelypﬁarmthedmﬂxedfordemhuﬁunofmﬂhomﬂrlillﬂlw
receive such distribution), Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the amount which would be

3
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receivable if the Preferred Shares had been converted into Common Stock Immediately prior to
the Liquidation Event is greater than the amount which would be paid under the foregoing
provisions of Section 3(a) and this Section 3(b), then the holders of the Preferred Shares shall be
entitled to receive such greater amount,

() Sumender of Certificates. Ou the effective date of any Liquidation Event,
the Corporation shall pay all consideration to which the holders of Series A Preferred Shares
shaﬂbnmﬁdedmduﬂﬁsSecﬁonB.Upmmdmofgmhpnymm cach holder of Series A

powers relating thereto), at the principal executive office of the Corporution or the offices of the
transfer agent for the Corporation, or shall notify the Corporation or any fransfer agent that such

mﬁﬁmnhmbamlnm,stolenmdwﬁoyaiwhmunmhwmdmﬁﬁmmu
canceled and refired.

(d)  Notice. Prior to the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, the Corporation
wﬂlﬂnnishmchholdmofSuiwAhefmachmnoﬁuwmhholduniuaddruushown
on the records of the Corporation, together with & certificate prepared by the chief financial
officer of the Corporation describing in reasonable detail the facts of such Liquidation Event,
stating in reasonable detail the amount(s) per share of Series A Preferred Shares each holder of
Series A Preferred Shares would receive pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3(a) and 3(b)
lmmfmdmﬁnghrmoubledmﬂmcfammnwhichmhmmmdﬂﬂmimdmd

4. Conversion. The holders of the Series A Preferred Shares shall have optional
conversion rights as follows (the “Conversion Rights™):

(@  Right to Convert. Each share of Series A Preferred Shares shall be
mnvertiblc,inwtOIeormpm't,umzopﬁonofthcholdﬂﬂmwﬁalanyﬁmemdﬁnmﬁmcm
time, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof, into such
number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing (i)
tlu:Oﬁginalhnnhasnﬁuby{ﬁ)ihcﬂmvwﬁonPdoc(udcﬁnedbalow)ineﬂ’ectalﬂwtime
of conversion; provided, however, that such conversion shall be mandatory in the event the
Required Holders vote to convert all of the Preferred Shares The “Conversion Price” for the

()  Special Definitions. For purposes of this Section 4, the following
definitions shall apply:

(@) “Additional Shares of Common Stock” shall mean all shares of
Common SmckimndardncmedmhemmwmnCmpmﬂionaﬂﬂtmm upon
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whichaslmreufthtSericsAmeermdShmmﬁmissuad(thn"ﬁﬂgiulhm
Date™), other than;

(A)ahumofCommcnSmckissuedoriamhlubymonofl
dividend or other distribution on (x) thc Series B Preferred Shares
pursuart to the Serics B Certificate of Designations, (y) the Series A
Preferred Shares pursuant to Section 2(a) above or () shares of Common
Stock that is covered by Section 4(f) or Section 4(g) below;

(B) shares of Commeon Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of
shares of Preferred Shares;

(C)aluresofComonSmckanyimnd(uoppoudw
deemed issued under Section 4(d)(ill)) upon exercise of any Option or
Convertible Security outstanding on the Original Issuc Date;

(D) shares of Common Stock issued or decmed issued upon the
exercise of any warrants (the “Credit Agreoment Warrants™) issued or
issuable pursuant to the Credit Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2009 (as in
eﬁbuﬁomﬁmcmﬁme,thc“cmnmmﬂbylndmmm
Compmy,thnsuhsiﬂinrhsoftheCompmyﬁ'omﬁmloﬁmepmythm
and Cummins Family Holdings, LLC;

(E) shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to employees,
directors or consultants pursuant to equity incentive plans approved by the
bontdofdﬁmtmoftb:Corpumﬁunmdldeudbytheahudnld!!uf
the Carporation; or

[I-‘)almofCamnmStockdmigmudmnxmp!ﬁumthc
dnﬂniﬁmofAddiﬁmulShmomemnSmkby&eRqﬁmd
Holders.

(it) “Appraisal Procedure” shall be the procedure to determine fair
mmkatwlwofmyswurityornﬂ:rpmpaty(ineiﬁume.tim“vnluntimmnm").lf
tth&qui:edHoldmandﬂnBoudofDirwmmnmublcwagmanﬂuva
mumwiminnmsoqablepuiodofﬂmc(nottommd20d.n¥8).1hen1mﬁ¢nnmm
shall be determined by an investment bauking firm, which firm shall be unaffiliated with
ﬂ:eCnrpmﬁonmdahnchrcmmblymxpublcwﬂqudofDimumdthe
Required Holders, If the Board of Directors and the Required Holders are unable to agree
upon an acceptable investment banking firm within 10 days after the date either party
promﬂd&mombculmd,ﬂminvmmlbmkingﬂrmﬁllbculcmdbym
arbitrator located in New York, New York selected by the American Arbitration
Assoni:tion(orifmchorgmiuﬁonmcstoeﬁst,ﬂnarbimuhﬂlbuhombya
court of competent jurisdiction). The arbitrator shall select the investment banking firm
{wiﬂiinIOd.aysofhiuppoimncnt}ﬁmalisl,joimlypmdbyﬂnkeqnimdﬂnldm
mdtthomdofDirmmormtmmthmfourinmmbmkingﬂminﬂnUniwd
Slates,ufwlﬁchnnmonthmtwomyhenmcdbythcBw&oﬂ)irm:undmmum
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thantwomaybcnmadbythechui:odHoldm.Th:ubimormaywnsidw,vdﬂﬁnlhe
ten-day period allotted, arguments from the parties regarding which investment banking
firm to choose, but the selection by the arbitrator shall be made in its sole discretion from
the list of four. The Board of Directors and the Required Holders shall submit their
mpecﬁvcvduaﬁommdothwmlmdmmﬁmiummmbmﬁngﬁm,m&
investment banking firm shall as soon as practicable thereafter make its own
dctcmimﬁonof&wm]wimnmmmmmmmomtforpupomhnmf
Mhhmofhmﬂmmmdmnmm.ummwm
hvmmbmﬁngﬁmmmmevﬂmﬁonmumhnﬁndbylhu
Corporation and the Required Holders and the valuation amount caloulated by the
investment banking firm. The determination of the final valuation smount by such
investment banking firm shall be final and binding upon the parties. The Corporation
shﬂlpaythefeuamdaxpmsmoflhehwemmtbmkingﬁmmdublmdifmﬂ
used to determine the valuation amount. If required by any such investment banking firm
orubMM.theComonﬁonshﬂlnMamﬁwmdmmlm=mnﬁm
reasonable lerms and conditions, including, without limitation, customary provisions
concerning the rights of indemnification and contribution by the Corporation in favor of
such investment banking firm or arbitrator and its officers, directors, partners, employees,
Wm;ﬁlﬁmﬂmwuﬁmwiswaomSm&ofmeCmnﬁm
thwaluaﬁonunmahallmtincludeudiscountfornﬁnorityownmhiporiﬂiq\ﬁdi’ryor
a control premium,

(i)  “As-Converted Basis” shall mean, for the purpose of determining
the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, & basis of caleulation which takes
into account (A) the number of shares of Common Stock actually issued and outstanding
at the time of such determination, and (B) the mumber of sharcs of Common Stock that is
(hen issuable upon the conversion of all outstanding Convertible Securities (as defined
below), including without limitation, the Preferred Shares,

(iv)  “Convertible Securitics” shall mean any evidences of
indebtedness, shares (other than Common Stock) or other securities directly or indirectly
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock.

(v)  “Option” shall mean rights, options or warants to subscribe for,
purchase or otherwise acquire Common Stock or Convertible Securities.,

() Mechanics of Copversion.

)] In order for a holder of Preferred Shares to convert shares of
meen'cdShamintoshm;ofﬂommunSmck,suchholduﬂ:a.llpfovidn,mheoﬁceof
ﬂumfeuacntﬁ:rthoSmmAmemndShm(ornthpﬁndpdofﬁuohhe
Corpomﬁunifﬁcﬂorpomﬁonlmuiummmfulgm).uﬂmmﬁuﬁnmh
holduulectstoconvmal]ormynmnbu-oﬂhnshmsnfﬁn.?miunl’mhmdsms
represented by the certificate or certificates held by such holder. Such notice shall state
such holder's name or the names of the nominees in which such holder wishes the
certificate or certificates for shares of Common Stock to be issued; provided, that in the
casethcnminaeisdiﬂ%rmthmmhholdq,thcholdushnllnlwpmvidcmh
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additional documentation as the Corporation shall reasonably request to establish that
such transfer is in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The date of
receipt of such certificates and notice by the transfer agent (or by the Corporation if the
Corporation serves as its own transfer agent) shall be the conversion date (“Conversion
Date”). The Corporation shall, as soon as practicable after the Conversion Date, but in
any event within 3 business days after the later of (A) the Conversion Date or (B) in the
event the holder hes requested that the shares be issued in the name of a nominee
different than such holder, the date on which the holder provides such additional
documentation 2s the Corporation shall reasonably request to establish that such transfer
i¢ in compliance with the Sceurities Act of 1933, as amended, issve and deliver at such
office to such holder of Series A Preferred Shares, or to his or its nominees, a certificate
or certificates for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder shall be
entitled, together with cash in licu of any fraction of a share, On the Conversion Date,
cach holder of record of shares of Series A Preferrcd Shares to be surrendered for
conversion shall be deemed 1o be the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Shares, notwithstanding that the certificates
representing such shares of Series A Preferred Shares shall not have been surrendered at
the office of the Corporation, that notice from the Corporation shall not have been
received by any holder of record of shares of such Preferred Shares, or that the
certificates evidencing such shares of Common Stock shall not then be sctually delivered
to such holder.

(i) AtallﬁmeswbcnanmefmedShmnmomding.h
Cmpamﬁunshﬂlmmmdimcpavﬁhblaoutoﬁumﬂwﬁzndhnwmk.for
th:mlrpmofeﬂ‘ectingthzmnmsimofthe?refmodsham.mhumberoﬁudnly
authorized shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the
conversion of all outstanding Preferred Shares. The Corporation promptly will take such
corporale action as may be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of
CommonSmckwsud:numbuofﬂmuushﬂlbcsuﬁciam&rmhpmpose,
including without limitation engaging in best efforts to obtain the requisite stockholder
approval. Before taking any action which would cause an edjustment teducing any
Conversion Price below the then par value of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of the applicable Preferred Shares, the Corporation will take any corporate
action which may be necessary in order that the Corporation may validly and legally
issue fully paid and nonassesseble shares of Common Stock at such adjusted Conversion
Price.

(ii1) All shares of Series A Preferred Shares which shall have been
surrendercd for conversion as hercin provided shall no longer be deemed to be
mmdingmdaﬂﬁghtswi&mped:umhshwu,includingmnﬁzm,ifmy.m
receive notices and to votc, shall immediately ccase and terminate on the Conversion
Date, except only the right of the holders thereof to reccive shares of Common Stock in
cxnhmgemmfmandpaymmofmydivldmdsdmhndbmmpﬁdd\mmm
of Series A Preferrcd Shares so converted shall be retired and cancelled and shall not be
missmd.andtheCutponﬁon(withomthnueodfmmockholduacﬁmnmuyﬁbmﬁmﬂo
time take such appropriatc action as may be necessary to reduce the authorized nuruber of
shares of Series A Preferred Shares accordingly.
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(iv)  The Corporation shall pay any and all issue, transfer, stamp and
other taxes that may be payable in respect of any issuance or delivery of shares of
Common Stock upon conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Shares pursuant to this
Section 4. The Corporation shall not, however, be required to pay any tax which may be
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of shares of
Commmﬂmkinanmothcrmmthxinwhinhtheslmvsomniﬁﬁ?rdumdsm
so converted were registered, and no such issuance or delivery shall be made unless and
mﬁlﬁcpemnorenﬁtyraqnesﬂngmmmmhupddmﬂucmnﬂmﬂrmm
of any such tax or has established, to the satisfaction of the Corporation, that such tax has
been paid,

M No Adjustment of Conversion Price. No adjustment in the
Conversion Price of the Series A Preferred Shares shall be made unless the consideration
perahmform&ddiﬁomlShmofCommSmckimedordmedmbeimedbyﬂu
Corporation is less than the applicable Conversion Price in effect on the date of, and
immediately prior to, the issuance or deemed issuance of such Additional Shares,

()  Full Ratchet; Weighted Average.

(A)Full Ratchet, If the Corporation at any time or from time to
timepﬁorhthem(l)ywmnivmyofthﬂ)ﬂginﬂ Issue Date shall
issue any Additional Shares of Common Stock (including Additional
ShamofCommmStmkdmﬁmbciﬂuadpmmwaﬁd)(ﬁi)
below but excluding shares issued es stock split ar combination as
provided in Section 4(f) below, issued upon a dividend or distribution as
provided in Section 4(g) below or deemed to be issued upon a dividend of
SuiasBmee‘rmdShmuprwidcdinttheﬁesBCmiﬁmtcof
DcﬁgnnﬂummupmndiﬂdmﬂofScﬁaAﬁefnmdSMwupmﬁded
in Section 2(a) sbove) without consideration or for consideration per share
Iowertbanmcﬂunversionﬁoeineﬁ”ectmthcdmofmdimmﬁndy
prior to such issue, the Conversion Price for the Series A Preferred Shares
shﬂlbelowmdtoequdmhwnsiduaﬁmpuM. For purposes of
this Scetion 4(d)(ii), any Additional Shares of Common Stock issued for
noconsidquﬁonslnﬂbcdemnedtobefsmdfmamnﬁdmﬂmpmhm
nrs.ool,wlﬁmmadjummforCommonswckmﬁm.diﬁdmds.m
combinations.

(B) Weighted Average. If the Corporation at any time or from time
mﬁmnunuruﬁutheonc(l)ywmnivmuyuf&umghlllwnbm
shall issue any Additional Shares of Common Stock (including Additional
ShlmofCommonSmckdmedwbciss\wdpmanmSwﬁnn%d)ﬁm
below but excluding shares issued as stock split or combination as
provided in Section 4(f) below, issved upon & dividend or distribution as
pmvidedinScctiond(g)belowardemdtobcimwdupunadividmdof
S:rieaBmeomdShuminthc&rie:BCcrﬁﬁuuufDesigmﬁmm
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upon & dividend of Series A Preferred Shares as provided in Section 2(a)
above) without consideratian or for consideration per share lower than the
Conversion Price in effect on the date of and immediately prior to such
issue, then in such event the Conversion Price for the Series A Preferred
Sharcs shall be Jowersd to an amount determined by multiplying the
Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to such issue by a fraction,
(x) the numerator of which shall be the sum of (1) the number of shares of
Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such issue (on an As-
Converted Basis) plus (2) the number of shares of Common Stock which
!huggregutemsidmﬁonmaivedortnbvmeiwdbythccumpmyfm
such Additional Shares of Common Stock would purchasc st such
Conversion Price, and (y) the denominator of which shall be the sum of
(1) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immedistely prior
to such issue (on an As-Converted Basis) plus (2) the number of such
Additional Shares of Common Stock so issued and/or dcemed to be
issued.  For purposes of this Section 4(d)(ii), any Additional Shares of
Common Stock issued for no consideration shall be deemed to be issued
for a consideration per share of 3,001, subject to adjustments for Cammon
Stock splits, dividends, and combinations,

(if)  Issue of Securities, Deemed Issue of Additional Shares of Common
Stock. If the Corpuraﬁonntmytim:orﬁumﬁmetoﬁmuﬂuthemginﬂhmbm
shall issue any Options or Convertible Securities (other than (i) the Credit Agreement
Warrants, (ii) SuiesBmearmdSharcsismdudividmdaspmidedinthc Series B
Certificate of Designations or (iii) Series A Preferred Shares issued as a dividend as
provided in Section 2(a) above), or shall fix a record date for the determination of holders
of any class of securities entitled to receive any such Options or Convertible Securities,
then the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the instrument
relating thereto without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent
ndjusunemafmhnmh}imablcupmtbnxmiuofmh%ﬁomm, in the case of
Convertible Sccurities and Options therefor, the conversion or exchange of such
Convertible Securitics, shall be deemed to be Additional Shares of Common Stock issued
asoftheﬁmcofstwhisaueor,inmsuchnmorddmshaﬂhlvcbunﬁnd,oftha
close of business on such record date, provided that in any such case in which Additional
Shares of Common Stock are deemed to be issued:

(A)No further adjustment in the Conversion Price shall be made
upon the subsequent issue of Convertible Securities or shares of Common
Stod:upon(l)uponth.euxmiaeormnvmimofmyOpﬂmnr
ConvcrﬁblcSecmiﬁuwmdingasofOﬁgimlIman;(Z}monﬂu
mrduafmyOpﬁmsbyqnploym,d&m::,nrmumumsmm
to equity incentive plans approved by the board of directors of the
Cotpumionmdndopledhythnhmholdmufﬂx&mmﬁm;ﬁ)upon
the conversion of the Setics B Preferred Shares; (4) upon the conversion
oftthndmAmemedShlm;or(S)inmmﬁmwith!haissmnccur
exercise of the Credit Agreement Warrants;
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(B)If such Options or Convertible Securities by their terms
provide, with the passage of time or otherwise, for any increase or
dccmuinﬁnconaidmﬁmpaynblewmchpomﬁon.upuuﬂn
exercise, wnms!onmu:hangethmmﬂlhsCmmionPﬁcemmd
npmtheoﬁgina}imwﬁ:mof(ormnﬂ:euwmmceufumrddm
withmpec:thcrcto),andanﬂubsequmtadjunnmbmdthm, shall,
wonmymhimmdmbemmingeﬂ'mﬁve,bemmmdto
reflect such increase or decrease insofar as it affects such Options or the
rights of conversion or exchange under such Convertible Securities;

(C)Upon the expiration of any such Options or any rights of
conversion or exchange under such Convertible Securitics which shall not
m:mmm&nmimmumwmmﬂnw
issuc thereof (or upon the occurrence of a record date with respect
thm),mdmymbsequuljmmubmdlhumn,:hnu.mmh
expiration, be recomputed as if:

1) in!hemofConmﬁbicSemnitiuorOpﬁmfanmm
Stock, the only Additional Shares of Common Stock issusd
were the shares of Common Stock, if any, actually issued
upon the exercise of such Options or the conversion or
exchange of such Convertible Securities and the consideretion
reoeiwdlhmforwuﬂ:ecomidmﬁmacnnnymdwdby
ﬂ\eCOTpont[unfort]wimoflllthpﬂom‘whmhaw
not excreised, plus the consideration actually received by the
Corporation upon such exercise, or for the issue of all such
Convertible Securities which werc actually converted or
exchanged, plus the additional consideration, if any, actually
received by the Corporation upon such conversion or
exchange; and

2) inthcmopoﬁamforConwﬁbleSecwtﬁﬁ‘outyﬂm
Convertible Securities, if any, actually issued upon the
exercise thereof were issued at the time of issue of such
Options, and the consideration received by the Corporation
for the Additional Shares of Common Stock deemed to have
beenthminuedmthcm:idmﬁnnumﬂymﬁvedhy
thuCotpomionforthcismofaﬂm.hOpﬁun:,wheﬂmor
not exercised, plus the consideration deemed to have been
received by the Corporation upon the issue of the Convertible
Sacuﬁﬁeswithm@ectmwhichsuch()pﬁmwmmw
exercised,

(D)In the event of any change in the number of shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of any Option or
Convertible Security, the Conversion Price then in effect shall forthwith
be readjusted 1o such Conversion Price as would have obtained had the

10
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adjustment whichmmd:upon&h:immceofmhﬂpﬁmar
Convertible Security not exercised or converted prior to such change been
made upon the basis of such change; and

(E) No readjustment pursuant to clause (B), (C) or (D) above shall
have the effect of increasing the Conversion Price to an amount which
mmdsthehwuof(l)ﬂmmeﬁmPﬂmunmeoﬁgindadjmt
date, or (2) the Canvmionh'ioethmwnldhwemﬂ:ltedﬁmmy
issuances ofAddiﬁmﬂShnuofCommmSchbﬁwmtheoﬂM
edjustment date and such readjustment date.

In the event the Corporation, after the Original Issue Date, amends any Options or
Convertible Securities (whether such Options or Convertible Securities were i
mmwmnmwmmmmowmmmmh
numberofnhamiuunbkﬂnwndaordmﬂnmnddmﬁmmbepaidupm
exercise or conversion thereof, then such Options or Convertible Securities, as so
mmmm&:onmmmmOﬁmmmmm
provisions of this Section 4(d)(iii) shall apply.

(¢)  Determination of Consideration. For purposes of this Section 4, the
consideration received by the Corporation for the issue of eny Additional Shares of Common
Stock shall be computed as follows:

()  Cashand Property, Such consideration shall:

(A)imofu'uitmuisuofmh,bemmpumduﬂ!ammnf
cash received by the Corporation, excluding amounts paid or payable for
accrued interest;

(B)iusofuasitmsistsofmpenyothoﬂhmmhbempmed
atlhefai:muielvatmﬂmmfmheﬁmofmhlsmudetmindiu
gwdfaiﬂabyd:eﬁmdofbimmurifmqumubyth:bquimd
Holders, by agreement of the Board of Directors and the
Holdm,andifﬂuﬁomﬁofbiroctmmdmakequiredﬂoldmdonot
ugmunmmhﬁﬁxmmvaluc,inacwdmeuuiththcpmdwset
forth in the definition of Appraisal Procedure; and

(C)in the event Additional Shares of Common Stock are issued
log«}mwiﬂwthershamormuﬁﬁesormhermﬁﬁu&rpmﬁm
formnﬁdmﬁmndﬁchcmbolh,bethepmporﬁonofmh
consideration so received, computed as provided in clauses (i) and (i)
above, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors,

(ii) Options and Convertible Securities. The consideration per share
nudvedbyﬂleCumomﬁonfoeriﬁomIShmofCommonSMckdmadwhwe
been issued pursuant to Section 4(d)(iii) above, rclating to Options and Convertible
Sccurities, shall be determined by dividing;

1l
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(A)the total amount, if any, received by the Corporation as
consideration for the issue of such Options or Convertible Securities, plus
the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in
the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained
thuufnfotapotmﬁnlmbuqmmﬂjm-nmtofmhmmidmﬁon)
pmbkmmccmmupmmmofmh%mw&
conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the case of
Options for Convertible Securities, the exercise of such Options for
Convertible Securities and the conversion or exchange of such Convertible
Securities, by

(B) the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth
intheinﬂmenlsmlaﬁngtherﬁo.witbomrcgndmmypm\dsion
mmimdthcrctnfmnpotmﬁauuhsqmadjmmmofmﬂmbm
lmnbleuponﬂmumiscofwwhOpﬁomwdummainnorcxchmp
of such Convertible Securities.

()  Adjustmenr for Stock Splits and Combinations, If the Corporation shall at
anyﬁmuwﬁomﬁm:wﬁmuﬁmﬂwOﬁgimlhmcDmcﬂemuubdivis{onofdnmwding
Cmmonsmhmch&nmimmmmhaﬁedhmedindybcfmﬁumbdiﬁdmm
bepmpurﬁunmlydmrmed.Ifd:eCorporuﬁunshqu&tuyﬂmwfrmﬁmcwﬁmaﬂwm
Original Issue Date combine the outstanding shares of Common Stock, each Conversion Price
then in effect immedimlybefomthcmmbimﬁonshallbomporﬂonndymnny
adjustment under this paragraph shall become effective at the close of business on the date the
subdivision or combination becomes effective.

or fix a record date for the determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive, a
dividend or other distribution payable solely in additional shares of Common Stock, then and in
uchmchwmtmcmmﬁutknheﬂmmubcdmma.softhetimeofmh
issuance or, in the event sucharowrddn:nhnllhnwbeenﬁxcd,uofﬁeclmofbuﬂnmon
such record date, by multiplying the applicable Conversion Price then in effect by & fraction:

(i) the numerator of which shall be the total number of shares of
Common Smnkissuedandoutsmadinginmxedinelypﬁorwﬂ:eﬁmeOfMimmm
the close of business on such record date, and

(ii) !hedmmnﬂumrnfwhichd:ullbethetm]mburofshmcof
CommonStuckiuwd&ndcmmdinzhnmdiudypdmmthaﬁrmofsmhinmm
the close of business on such record date plus the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable in payment of such dividend or distribution;

Musmmmmmmm&ﬁmmwkmﬁwm
or if such distribution is not filly made on the date fixed therefor, the applicable Conversion
Pric shall be recomputed accordingly as of the close of business on such record date and
Lherufterthmmim?ﬁmshallbeadjmedpmnanttothilpmwhuofﬁeﬂmof

12
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actual payment of such dividends or distributions.

()  Adustment for Reclassification, Exchange, or Substitution. If the
Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the Series A Preferred Shares shall be changed
inmdumnmadiﬂ'amnmnbwofshnmofmychmwclmuofmnhwmbyupim
reorganization, reclassification, or otherwise (other than a subdivision or combination of shares
or stock dividend provided for above, or a reorganization, merger, consolidation, or sale of assets
provided for below), then and in each such event the holder of each such share of Series A
Preferred Shares shall have the right thereafler to convert such share into the kind and amount of
shares of stock and other securities and property receivable, upon such reorganization,
reclassification, or other change, by holders of the number of shares of Common Stock into
whichmchahnmnfS:deuAmeurmdShammighthuvebmconvMediumedindypﬁmw
mmhmorgminﬁommhsiﬂuﬁomordmgqaﬂmlﬂadmﬁmhuldjummtumﬁdod
herein,

()  Adjustment for Merger or Reorganization, Etc. In case of any
consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into enother company or the sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation to another company, each share of Series A
Preferred Shares, if any, remaining outstanding after such consolidation, merger or sale shall
thereafler be convertible (or shall be converted into a security which shall be convertible) into
the kind and amount of shares of stock or other securities or propesty to which a holder of the
aumber of shares of Common Stock of the Corporation deliverable upon conversion of such
Series A Preferred Shares would have been entitled upon such consolidation, merger or sale; and,
in such case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application of the provisions in this
Section 4 set forth with respect to the rights and interest thereaficr of the holders of the Series A
Preferred Shares, to the end that the provisions set forth in this Section 4 (including provisions
with respect to changes in and other adjustments of the Conversion Price) shall thereafier be
applicable, as nearly equivalent a manner as may be practicable as before the consolidation or
merger, If any event occurs of the type contemplated by the provisions of this Seetion 4 but not
expressly provided for by such provisions (including, without limitation, the granting of stock
appreciation rights, phantom stock rights or other rights with equity features), then the
Corporation's Board of Directors shall make an appropriate reduction in each Conversion Price
50 as to protect the rights of the holders of the Series A Preferred Shares.

()  Certificate as to Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or
readjustment of any Conversion Price pursuant to this Section 4, the Corporation at its expense
shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof and
furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred Shares a certificate setting forth such adjustment or
readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is
based. The Corporation shall, upon the written request at any time of any holder of Series A
Preferred Shares, fornish or cause to be fumnished to such holder a similar certificate setting forth
(i) such adjustments and readjustments, (if) the Conversion Price then in effeet, and (iii) the
number of shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property which then would
be received upon the conversion of Series A Preferred Shares,

(k)  Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued
upon conversion of the Scries A Preferred Shares. In lieu of any fractional shares to which the

13
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bolderwouldolhumdsebemfﬂod.lheCorpomﬁonshnﬂpaycashequalmmeproductohuch
fraction multiplied by the fair market value of a share of Common Stock, as mutually agreed by
the Board of Directors of the Corporation and the Required Holders; provided, however, that if
such mutual agreement cannot be reached, such fair market value shall be determined by
following the Appraisal Procedures. The determination of fractional shares shall be based on the
aggregate number of shares of Series A Preferred Shares surrendered for conversion by any
holder of Series A Preferred Sharcs and not on the individual shares of Series A Preferred Shares
held by such holder.

(1)  Notice of Record Date. In the event:

6)) that the Corporation declares a dividend (or any other distribution)
on its Common Stock payable in Common Stock or other securities of the Corporation:

(i) that the Corporation subdivides or combines its outstanding sharcs
of Common Stock;

(iii)  of eny reclassification of the Common Stock of the Corporation
(other than a subdivision or combination of its outstanding shares of Commeon Stock or a
stock dividend or stock distribution thercon), ot of any consolidation or merger of the
Corpor:ﬁonimom'withmmheroompmy,orofthualoofaﬂor_whmnﬂdlydl of the
assets of the Corparation; or

(iv)  of the involuntary or voluntary dissolution, liquidation or winding
up of the Corporation;

then the Corporation shall cause to be filed a its principal office or at the office of the transfer
agent of the Series A Preferred Shares, and shall cause to be mailed to the holders of the Scries A
memﬁShmmﬂwhlm:ddrmasdnwnonthemordnof&eCmpamiwmm
transfer agent, at least ten (10) days prior to the date specified in (1) below or 20 days before the
date specified in (2) below, a notice stating

(1)  the record date of such dividend, distribution, subdivision or combination,
or, if a record is not 1o be taken, the date as of which the holders of Common Stock of
record 1o be catitled to such dividend, distribution, subdivision or combination are to be
determined, or

(2) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale,
dissolution, liquidation or winding up is expected to become cffective, and the date s of
which it is expected that holders of Common Stock of record shall be entitled to
exchange their shares of Common Stock for securities or other property deliverable upon
such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, dissolution or winding up.

3. Yoting Rights.
(8)  Preferred Shares Voting Together. Exocept as provided in Section 5(d)(),

Section 5(d)(iv), Section 5(d)(v) and Section 5(d)(ix) below, the holders of Praferred Shares shall
vote together on all matters as a single class, with each Preferred Share entitled to cast the

14
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number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which each may be
converted (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Series B Certificates of Designations
(vﬁthmpectmthaSuiuBmemndShm)mdpmumttoSection4hmﬂ{withmpecllo

()  Voting with Common. Except as provided in Section 5(b) and Section 5(¢)
bclowmasoﬁmwis:mbrutfonhhmin,thehnidmofhfmad Shares shall vote
mgemuwimmnCommnnSmckonnumatlmnuing!cdm“ﬁmthmfwedsm
mﬁﬁedmmthnmnhrnfwmequlwtbcnmberoﬁhwomenmonswc.kintowhichit
may be converted (nsndjumdﬁmﬁmctoﬁmepwmtﬂw&m%umnmofﬂummd
date,

()  Common Voting First on Certain Matters. In addition to all other
requirements imposed by Nevada law, and all other voting rights granted under the Corporation's
Arﬁdesofhmmmnﬁon,asuupplmumbythis Certificate, the Corporation shall not
undemkc(i)anyt‘mmiangiﬁngﬁsetoqumdaﬂonEvunor(ii)myredempﬁonaf
Pm&mdShm,udﬂnmthepﬁmspproWofﬂnCnmmonSmkwﬁngmadnglechn If
such transaction referred in clavse (i) or (ii) hereof is first approved by the requisite number of
huldmnfComonSlock,mhmlucrshallthmbepmtothgmoftheholdmhfmud
Shares and Common Stock, voting together as a single class, with each Proferred Share entitled
toustthnnumberufvo-:csaqualtnthenmnberoanmmnStockintowhichitmybt
mnvuwd(asadjustcdﬁomﬁmhﬁ]mpmmmwthn%csBCerﬁﬁmofDuimuim
(withmspecnothesn-icsBPreferrndShm-u}mﬂpmsummtheSecﬁthumf[wilhmpm
10 the Series A Preferred Shares)) as of the record date. For purposes of such joint vote, (A) any
shmsofCommonSmkvowdinf&vmofuiamnmﬁonwhmwﬁnguawoclmshnnbe

with the Preferred Shares,

(d)  Voring as Separate Class. In addition to all other requirements imposed
by Nevada law, and all other voting rights pranted under the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation, as supplemented by the Series B Certificate of Designation and this Certificate,
tbaCorpomtionshnllmgmﬂshannmmmﬁtmycumpmyorm:Stofwiﬁnhtbe
directly or indirectly owns at the time So%ormmofrheommdlngshﬂruﬂmmmdﬂm
50% of the voting power, 50% of the economic power, or coutrol of the board of directors of
such company or trust, other than directors’ qualiﬁringshms(a"Subddhry") to, without the
pﬁmwmmmtofﬁeqﬁmdﬂoldmvodngmgdhauuing!eclus:

(i) amend, modify or repeal the Series B Certificate of Designations
or this Certificate of Designations (whether by reclassification, merger, consolidation,
reorganization or otherwise); provided, hmvmr,thnmymahmﬁnem. modification
or repeal shall also require the prior written consent of holders of & majority of the votes
alm‘bmblctoeanhuflheaulstandingsmmBmecmd Shares and the Series A
Preferred Shares, voﬁngwpmmly.witheaeh?rcfmedﬂhmtnﬁu:dtoumhcnumbu
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of votes equal to the mumber of shares of Common Stock into which each may be
converted (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to the Series B Certificate of
Designations (with respect to the Series B Preferred Shares) and pursuant to Section 4
hereof (with respect to the Series A Preferred Shares));

(i) enfer into amy reclassification, merger, consolidation or
reorganization;

(i)  increase or decrease (whether by amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise)
the number of authorized Preferred Shares;

(iv)  authorize or issuc (by amendment to the Articles of

or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) any class or
serics of capital stock or securities convettible into capital stock with equal or superior
rigbutoﬂmeofﬂchmieaBmeemdShmnﬂhaSeﬁuA?mfmndShlm:
provided, however, that ifauymhdmorsuicaofupimlmckormuiﬁes
convutihleintocapitalmdtismpuiurmtha:ighsofeiﬂmﬂnSuiesBmemﬁ
Shares or the Series A Preferred Shares, but not the other, such authorization and
iasummmtﬂmbeupmwdbyholdmuﬁmjoﬁtyoﬂhe votes attributable to such
junior serics, voting separately, with each Preferred Share entitled to cest the mumber of
votes equal mthsnumbwothnmquommmsmkinInwﬁchmhmybemm
(as ndjusteﬂkomﬁmemﬁmepursumtmlhaneuBCuﬁﬁcauofDﬂimﬁom(wﬂh
mapmmtheSqiuBPrdmeﬂSlmm)mdpursuanthwﬁthuwr(v&thmpmm
the Series A Preferred Shares));

) \mnlhwbyammdmmtolhcmﬁcluof!nmrpmﬁmmby
reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise, (i) alter, amend or
waive any rights, preferences or privileges of the Preferred Shares or (Ii) otherwise alter,
emend of waive any provisions of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or by-laws
hnmmudv:memtheholdmnflhemmsm;pmﬁded however, that if
onlyoneafdemieuAPnfcrr:dShmuoxScriuBmemudShuuinffmmd.bmm
the other, such act must be approved by holders of a majority of the votes attributable to
such affected scrics, voting separately, with cach Preferred Share entitled to cast the
umber of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which each may be
converted (as adjusted from time to time pursuant o the Series B Certificate of
Designations (udthmpectmmcSoriasBPrefemdSham)mdpummmSmﬁoM
hereof (with respect to the Series A Preferred Shares));

(vi) authorize, declare or pay any dividend (other than dividends
payable solely in Common Stock) on any share of the capital stock of the Corporation or
mySubsidimy,withtheexeepﬁmoflhedividmdsontthmimBPreﬁnedShmm
forthhtheSeﬁesBCqﬁﬂmofDeﬁgmﬁonsmmeScﬁﬁAh&mdShuusﬁfonh
in Section 2 hereof:

(vii) mdmm.purchaseorothawiacqurcforvahnmyshmor
shumofthecnp{ulmckof&nCmpmﬁonormySuhddinry;
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(viif)  authorize or issue (by amendment to the Articlas of Incorporation
or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) any additional
Series B Preferred Shares; or

(ix) nnhoduwimm(bymmhnmmmmuofhmrpwﬁm
or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) any additional
Series A Preferred Shares; provided, however, that such and issuance must also be
approved by holders of a majority of the votes attributable to the Series B Preferred
Shares, voting separately, with each Serics B Preferred Share cntitled to cast the number
of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which each may be
converted (as adjusted from time to tme pursuant to the Series B Certificate of
Designations),

6. Notices. The Corporation shall distribute to the holdars of Series A Preferred
Shares copies of all notices, materials, annual and quarterly reports, proxy statements,
hfomaﬁmshtemmﬂmdmuthadmmhdisuihmdgmﬂlymﬂnhnmmofmgf
Common Stock of the Corporation, at such times and by such method as such documents are
distributed to such holders of such Common Stock.

7. Replacement Certificates. The certificate(s) representing the Series A Preferred
ShamhddhymyholduofSﬁuAmemedShmsmybemhmgedbymchholdnutnny
ﬁmmdﬁomﬁmwﬁmeforwﬁﬁmwhhdifmdmomimﬁomwpmmﬁuqu
aggr:guenumbuofScrlmAPrefaradShuu,asmblquuuMbymhholm.upm
surrendering the same. No service charge will be made for such registration or transfer or
exchange.

8.  Atforncys' Fees. In connection with enforcement by a holder of Series A
Preferred Shares of any obligation of the Corporation hereundcr, the preveiling party shall be
mﬁﬂadmmmvnyofmn;blcnumnm'feumdmmlncm

9, HMNQSMMAWSMWMMCMNM
reason of redemption, purchase, conversion or otherwise shall be reissued.

10.  Severability of Provisions. If any right, preference or limitation of the Series A
memudsmmfoﬂhinthuﬁﬁm:cofDulsmﬁom{asthiscmiﬁmcofDmipnim
maybemoudedﬁomﬂmtuﬁme)isfomdtobeinuﬂd.unlmfhlorhupableofbeing
enfomcdbymmnofmynﬂ:orhwmpubﬁcpoﬁoy,dlothcrrighm,pwfﬂmwmd
mnimﬁmsetfozﬂninthisCaﬁﬁuuofneﬁmﬁmwhichmbegivmaﬁ‘mwhhomﬁe
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable right, preference or limitation, shall nevertheless remain in
ﬁﬂlfommdsﬁecumdmﬁxhnpmfumorﬁmiuﬁonhminmfonhbem:d&pmdmt
upon any such other right, preference or limitation unless so expressed herein,

11.  Speelfic_Performance. The Corporation scknowledges and agrees that
hmpmblcdamugcwmﬂdmminthnmﬂmm:Cmpmnﬁﬂedwquommoﬂhe
provisions of this Certificate in accordance with its specific terms. It is accordingly agreed that
each holder ofSariesAmeamdBhamshallbcenﬁl]adtomhjmuﬁonm‘injmcﬁmw
prevmtormrebmachesufﬂleprwisiomofthiscctﬁﬁmudmmfomspmiﬁnllythcmm
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and provisions hereol, this being in addition to any other remedy to which such holder may be
enntlod by law ar cquity,

Signed on September _?_ 2009
FLIGHT SAFETY TECITNOLOGIES, INC,

} ?i:’g"” Nicwied S NestnPees
5 2 Fa
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ROSS MILLER
of State
204 North Carson Streal, Buite 4
Carso Oy, evada BST01 4820 Filed in the Office of Business Number
(fr6) e sT08 C13283-2001
| Website: WY, TVI0S.90v - Filing Number
i ‘e A‘-_ :_iqua_-.rms-sa
! _ Secretary of State Eﬁg&,
State OF Nevada Number of Pages S
-1 T ) L |
Certificate of Designation
(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.1988)
UBE BLAGK INK ONLY - DO NOT MGRUSHT ABOVE SPACE 16 FOm OFYioe LIE OMLY
: 1. Name of gorporation: ;
; FLIGRT EAFETY THCHNOLOGINS, DN,

2. By resolution of the board of directors pursuartto a provislon In the articias of incorporation this
certficate establishes the following refarding the voting powers, dasignations, preferences,

fimitations, restrictions and reiative sights of the following class or series of stock.

and Relativa, Partinipat
Praferred Stock and O

See attached Certifioats Gf Designation of the Povers, ' Preferences

Wn:mﬂnmmm.m,

» Opticnal and Othar Epacial Rights of
cations, Limitations and Restriotions

.

3. Effective date of filng: (optional) [ __
4, Slgnature: (required)

|a'
" Filing Fee: $175.00

This form s b acoamparved by appropriet fes.

(st not be Izior than 90 days efer the certiicals Is Yec)

IMPORTANT: Falra o ckde i f e above iortion a4 sl with e fo0n oy s s g s b eacn,

.ﬁ“i“w
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS OF THE POWERS, PREFERENCES AND
RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL AND OTHER SPECIAL RIGHTS OF
PREFERRED STOCK AND QUALIFICATIONS, LIMITATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
THEREOF

of
SERIES B
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

for

FLIGHT SAFETY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

FLIGHT SAFETY TECHNOLOGIES, INC, a Nevada corporation  (the
“Corporation™), pursuant to the provisions of Section 78,1955 of the General Corporation Law
of the State of Nevada, does hereby make this Certificate of Designations and does hereby state
and certify that pursuant to the authority expressly vested in the Board of Directors of the
Corporation by the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, the Board of Directors duly
adopted the following resolutions, which resolutions remain in full force and effect as of the date
hereof:

RESOLVED, that, pursuant to Article Fourth of the Certificats of Incorporation of the
Corporation, the Board of Directors hereby authorizes the issuance of, and fixes the designation
and preferencos and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and gqualifications,
limitations and restrictions, of a series of preferred stock consisting of 50,000 shares, par value
$.001 per share, to be designated “Scries B Convertiblc Preferred Stock” (the “Series B
Preforred Shares™); and

RESOLVED, that each of the Series B Preferred Shares shall rank equally in all respects
with the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company, par value $.001 per share (the
“Series A Preferred Shares,” and together with the Series B Preferred Shares, the “Preferved
Shares”), and that the Serics B Preferred Shares shall be subject to the following terms and
provisions:

L. Designation. There is hereby created out of the authorized and unissued shares of
preferred stock of the Corporation a series of preferred stock desipnated as the “Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock”, par value §.001 per share. The number of shares constituting such
series shall be 50,000 shares.

2. Dividends.
(@) Dividend Rate. For 50 long as any Series B Preferred Shares are
outstanding, the Corporation shall pay, at its discretion either: (i) a dividend payable in cash at a

per anoum raie of 8% of the Original Purchase Price (as defined below) per share; or (i) a
dividend payablc in additional shares of Series B Preferred Shares at a per annum rate of 10% of

LHUMI9072.8 - 319701
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theUﬁgiml?mhnsePﬁncpastm;prmwﬂadiwm,thuiftheWAP(mmhtmmis
defined below) for the common stock, par value $.001 of the Corporation (“Common Stock”)
nmeomﬂnCmm(SO.ij:uhueu{thmpeclmmﬁmalqm,nod.ividmdsshallba
due with respect to such fiscal quarter. Dividmduhal]b:nalclﬂnwdontlmbuisofaﬁo-duy
month and a 360-day year, For purposes of calculating the mmber of Series B Preferred Shares
tobeissmdundjvidmdunduSecﬁonZ(n)(ii)hwwf,tthuiﬂBPrefmudSh&ubbe
imedshnnbevuhwduaprioepcuhmequﬂtothe&igimlﬁmhmm For purposes of
this Certificate, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

“VWAP” means the quarterly volume-weighted average sale price per share of Common
Stock on the principal mad:amrurypuﬁculuﬁmdqmasmpomd.um&smmh
adjusted for stock splits and combinations of the Common Stock.

(b)  Dividend Pavment Dates. The dividend payment dates for the Series B
Mmsmmﬂnﬁmhpufmm&mbu,mdﬂmhmmchg
Deocmber],lﬂﬂ?;providcdthniftm-mnhpnymmdmehmtaBu:tumDay(udeﬁmd
below)thmmchdividmdahanbepaynblconﬂnmtBuaianny. The initial dividend
peﬁodforanyScﬂuBPnfmedSharmMmmmmmtbeday%mmhd&mm
issued. TBemrm“Bmianaf‘munundayumEﬂmaSamday.Stmdlynrdxymwﬁch
hnldnginﬂiﬂ:ﬁothewakmauthoﬂmdwmuindtomﬂnchm

(c) CmFormlongnmySaquhfemdShmmomﬂing,thc
Curpomﬂmshaﬂmlpaymdividmdsonmyshmnf&mmm%&(mﬁrdhidmds
pnyableinCammanStock)ormyshmofmyclhuupimlmkotbuthmnns«iun
Preferred Sbares in accordance with the provisions of the Centificate of Desiguations of the
thmmmmuruﬁmgopﬁwmmsmﬂmofmfm
Stock and Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock of the Company, as in effect from time to time (the “Serles A Certificate of
Dulanuﬁom').orrcpmmhnsemyshnmofCommnchk(mhuﬂmthenpmmof
ofComonStockimuedpmmmmmp!oymrnorwmumngagrmmwhths
CWMWMMWmmmmofmhmmwm&r

written consent of a majority of the votes attributable to the ing Preferred Shares (the
“Required Holders™), voting separately from the holders of Common Stock.
3. Liquidstion Events.

(@)  Liquidation Preference. Upon (i) any liquidation, dissolution or winding
upoftth(erornﬁm,whctbm'wlunmwhmlmq.or(u)m]mmagmdbﬂh:
Required Holders, (A) a merger or consolidation of the Corporation with of into another entity
(except for & merger or consolidation in which the holders of capital stock of the Corporation
imnedhwlypﬂmmmnhmgumcomoﬁdnﬁonmﬁnuatohuldnlnﬂm%ofthc
omdingvoﬁngpowuurmhmvivingCorpmﬁonL(B)Msdemmmﬁmfannr
subutanﬁnuylllufﬂwmetsofthcCmponﬁan(fortbispurpou“subcmﬁnllyall”ahnnmm
prapmiuormmwithafairm:kewﬂuuqmlto&ﬂ%urmortofﬂ:efairmnrketvﬂmnﬂhc
Corporation’s total properties or assets as of the end of the most recent fiseal quarter and “sale"
shall not include a bona fide pledge of assets), (C) any issusnce of shares of capita] stock by the
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Corporation in one or more related transactions except for (x) an issnance of shares of capital
stock in which the holders of capital stock of the Corporation immediately prior to such issuance
of stock continue to hold at least 50% ofthcmltmndingvoﬁngpowoftthmpomﬁonaﬁw

mpmhmdonotholdmlustSﬂ%ofﬂnoMndinavoﬂngpowofﬂmc after
a@mﬁu(ﬂdmmﬁmamwmm(i)l.nd(ii)(A}-(D)of
ﬂ:isSauﬁonS(u)iamfermdtouu“I._.lquidaﬂonEvml”lmvin).mbhol_dwofo

mmybgwhe&usmhmmmwpimswplmorcapimwnimonlhnnm;pu-lorltyu
other holders of Preferred Shares, bmpﬁutmdinmfmwmypnmmbchgpddw
holders of Common SmckofﬂnCarpomionmothn:m:mkingjuniurmthSeﬂuB
Prufem:dSham,mmomtinmheqmmSlO0.00perahm(ﬂm“OﬁginﬂPunhuoPﬁu")
plus any declared or accrued but unpaid dividends therson (collectively with the Original
Purchase Price per share, the “Preferred Share Liquidation Preference™); provided (hat if,
upon any Liquidation Event, the Preferred Share Liquidation Preference as provided in this
Section 3(a) is not paid in full, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall share ratably in any
distribution of essets in proportion lothcﬁ:ﬂmpecﬁwmfumtinlmomum\dﬁohtheym
entified. For the avoidance of doubt, a sale of shares of capital stock of the Corporation by
anymemie:tlnntheCorpmtion(furexamplusalcofshmsofmpimlsmkmﬂmupm

(b)  Participation. After payment in the full of the Preferred Share Liguidation
Preference, the holders of outstanding Preferred Shares and Common Stock shall share in any
consideration payable to the stockholders of the Corporation (in the case of a stock repurchase,
for example) or of the consideration payable to the Corporation (net of obligations owed by the
Corporation) together with all other available assots of the Corporation (in the case of an asset

(¢)  Sumender of Certificates. On the effective data of any Liquidation Event,
the Corporation shall pay all consideration to which the holders of Series B Preferred Shares
shall be entitled under this Section 3. Upon receipt of such payment, each holder of Sexies B
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powers relating thereto), at the principal executive office of the Corporation or the offices of the
kasfuagmfonheCowsﬁm,mshaﬂmﬁfyﬂqupmﬁonmmmfengmmmh

certificates have been lost, mhnmdummwnmhmﬂmdwﬁﬁmmnba
canceled and retired,

oﬁwofmcmdwﬁmummmbledmmcﬁcbofmcthuiMonEm
su&nginmsombledmﬂthcmm(sJpﬁ'slmofSurimBPrefcmdShamwhholderof
Series B Preferred Shares would receive pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3(a) and 3(b)
hawfmdsmﬁnshmmmblem&eﬁmapmwhidumhammmmmdmd
describing (if applicable) inmuabhdmﬂaumnuiﬂt:mofmmquidaﬁmﬁmmh
mmwmwmmmmmmomummmemmmmumw
hwnnmionwithmhliquidaﬁonEvanLtbevnluaﬁnnnfth:CoxpmﬁMunhcﬁmofmh
Liquidation Event and the identities of the parties to the Liquidation Event.

4. gw.mmwmonmsﬂiunmmsmmmm
conversion rights as follows (the "Conversion Rights™):

dme,mdwithomm:pammofaddiﬁomlcomidemﬁonbylhcholdqﬂ:ﬂwﬂ into such
nmbcroffull}'plidmdmmmsnblenhuuofcommonsmuisdﬁmhodbydiﬁdingﬁ)
tthﬁginalethmPﬁcehy(ii)t}nConmsion?ﬁce(udaﬁmdbehw)heﬁ'ectatlhcﬁm
of conversion; provided, hawaw,ﬂmmhoonvmimﬂmﬂbemmdmryinthcmmc
Required Holders vote 1o convert ell of the Preferred Shares, The “Conversion Price” for the
SuicsBmeurtedShamshalliuiﬁlllybe‘l‘enCmu(SO.lO)onthnOrigimlImcDate(nm
term is defined below). Sthmmlme.mdthﬂmleat\ﬁhiohahmothuB
h&uw&uumhmmdimoﬁmof&mmsmmumbjmwndjmm
es provided in Section 4(d) below.

(b)  Special Definitions. For purposes of this Section 4, the following
definitions shall apply:

()  “Additional Shares of Common Stock" shall mean all shares of
CamwnSmkimmdordmdmbeismbytheCorpmﬂonmerﬂndmupon
whichashmoflhcﬂeﬁnBmeemdSlmmwuﬂmismnd{the“Oﬁﬂndlum
Date™), other than:

(A)shntuquommonSmckismadorismhlehymofl
dividmdorothuﬂim’buﬁmou(x)thnwuahuﬁmadm
pmumtoﬂwSmmACuﬁﬁmeofDuiMMs,@)thSﬁqB
Preferred Sharcs pursuant to Section 2(a) above or (z) shares of Common
Stock that is covered by Section 4(f) or Section 4(g) below;
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(B) shares of Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of
shares of Preferred Shares;

(C)shares of Common Stock actually issued (as opposed to
deemed issued under Section 4(d)(iii)) upon exercise of any Option or
Convertible Security outstanding on the Original Issue Date;

(D)sbares of Common Stock issued or deemed issued upon the
exercise of any warrants (the “Credit Agreement Warrants™) issued or
issuable pursnant to the Credit Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2009 (as in
offect from time to time, the “Credit Agreement™) by and among the
Company, the subsidiaries of the Company from time to time party thereto
and Cummins Family Holdings, LLC;

(E) shares of Common Stock issued or issuable to employees,
directors or consultants pursuant to equity incentive plans approved by the
board of directors of the Corporation and adopted by the shareholders of
the Corporation; or

(F) shares of Common Stock designated as exempt from the
definition of Additional Sheres of Common Stock by the Required
Holders.

(i) “Appraisal Procedure” shall be the procedure to determine fair
muketvntucofmym:rityurothcrpmpmy(maithermc.the“va]unn‘onmmt").lf
the Required Holders and the Board of Dircetors are not able to agree on the valation
amount within a reasonable period of time (not to excced 20 days), the valuation smount
shall be determined by an investment banking firm, which firm shall be unaffiliated with
the Corporation and shall be reasonably acceptable to the Board of Directors and the
Required Holders, If the Board of Directors and the Required Holders are unable to agree
uponmnmptablahvmhnentbmﬁngﬁmwilhinlﬂdayn&nthc%dﬂwpmy
propmdthmombcsclmmainvemmbmhngﬂmvmlbenlmadhym
arbitrator located in New York, New York selected by the American Arbitration
Anwiuﬁm(nrifmhmgmﬂmﬂonmtouisgthcubimmnbechombya
court of competent jurisdiction). The arbitrator shall select the investment banking firm
(within 10 days of his appointraent) from 2 list, jointly prepared by the Required Holders
and the Board of Directors, of not more than four investment banking firms in the United
States, of which no more than two may be named by the Board of Directors and no more
thuntwomybanmdbytthcm.tideoldm.‘l‘hem'bihmmayoomidw,“ﬁthinme
mdaypuiodaﬂommmmu&mnmepmﬁumwdjngwﬁchinvmmmmg
firm to choose, but the selection by the arbitrator shall be made in its sole discretion from
Lhclistoffour.TthomdofDﬁwmnmdthaReqtideoIdemhmitthﬂr
respective valuations and other relevant data to the investment banking firm, and the
inmmmbanﬁmﬁmshaﬂmmuwﬁublemm&eium
determination of the valuation amount, The final valuation amount for purposes hereof
muhthcnmqgeof&ammmmdmmﬁhu.u&mmdhymu
inmmtbmkﬁmﬁm.ﬁumumonglhevﬂuaﬁonmommbmludbym
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Corporation and the Required Holders and the valuation amount calculated by the
investment banking firm. The detcrmination of the final valuation amount by such
invuunembmhngﬁrmshmbeﬁm!mdhindlngmthepm«.Thqupmﬁou
shaﬂpaythefusmdu:penmofﬂminvmcmbuldngﬂrmmdublu‘uw(ifmy)
uudmdmimﬂnvﬂuaﬁmmmvmquﬁedbymysmhhmmmhmkhgﬁm
mubim.mmmmmmﬁdlmmammimmdmwmlmmmﬂm
reasonable terms and conditions, including, without limitation, customary provisions
concerning the rights nfindmjﬁmﬁonmdmnmhlﬁonbythe&momiminfwuof
mhhvmmhnﬁngﬁnnwuﬁmmiuomm,dimmm,mbym.
agmmdaﬁﬁm.lflhevﬂmﬁonmmisformmmmm:kof&ecomnﬁm
mevdmﬁmunomsbnnnmhdududixmmforminoﬁtyownmhiporﬂﬁthym
& control premium.,

(i)  “As-Converted Basis” shall meen, for the purpose of determining
the number of shares ofCommmswckomding,ubnﬁaofmlcullﬁonwﬁd:m
into account (A) the number of shares of Common Stock actually issued and outstanding
at the time of such determination, and (B) the number of shares of Common Stock that is
then issuable upon the conversion of all outstanding Convertible Securities (as defined
below), including without limitation, the Preferred Shares.

(v)  “Convertible Sccurities” shall mean any evidences of
indebtedness, shares (other than Common Stock) or other securities directly or indircctly
convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock.

) “Option” shall mean rights, options or warrants to subscribe for,
purchase or otherwise acquire Common Stock or Convertible Securities.

(¢)  Mechanics of Conversion,

0] In order for & holder of Preforred Shares to convert shares of
mmsmmmmﬁmmsmmmmmnwommr
thetrmsferaaenlforthaSaicsBmeemdShuu(ornthnpr{u:ipaloﬂiuofthc
Comrﬁmﬁmemmuﬁmmummm&rwlwdﬂmmﬁmmm
ho]dcrclectsmwnvmaﬂmmnumbﬂofﬂnﬂmofm&ﬁuﬂhwmm
mpmmdbythccmiﬁcamorcerﬁﬂmmhddbysuchholdmsmmam:m
mch}m]du'smaorﬂnnmoftbcminminwhichmhholduwbhaaﬂu
urﬁﬁwmmurﬁﬁmforshmowommons:mkwbei&md;prmdcd,ﬂmhth
muthcnominwisdiffummmmchholdmthshuldumuﬂwmﬁdcmh
additional dommmmﬁonuthaCmﬁmﬂmﬂmmblyrequmwmhlhhthu
smhhansfc:isinmumﬁanceﬁththe&muiﬂes.&ctofwﬁ.ummdad.'l'badaicof
reoclptnfmhcnﬂﬁmeundnoﬁubylhemferagcnt(orbyﬂm{:orpmtioniflhe
Cmpunﬁmsmesuiumm&rm)ahaﬂbethcmwmimdmr‘cmn
D:to").ThanrpmﬁonshalLusoonumcﬁmquﬁaﬂnCmmﬁmDﬂe,bmin
any event within 3 business days after the later of (A) the Conversion Date of (B) in the
mmcmmmmmmmﬂmmmmmmmafamm
different than such holder, the date on which the holder provides such additional
documentation as the Corporation shall reasonably request to establish that such transfer
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is in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, issue and deliver at such
oﬂiucmmhholdarofSuiesBP::fmadShm,urtohjaorimmuinm,ncﬂﬁﬂm
or certificates for the aumber of shares of Common Stock to which such holder shall be
mtitl:d.mgelhamﬁmmhinlicuormyfmﬁonafamOnthaCanvmiuan.
uchholdﬂofmordofshmofSuimBPmﬁmdShnmwbemdmd for
convmiunﬂnnbedum:dmbetheholiuofm:ordofﬂn&mmmsmimmbla
mmvuﬁmnfmsmuﬂmsmmwmmmm&m
mprmnﬁngmchahmufSeﬁ&sBmeﬁmdShmshallnmhmbomm&n
thcofﬂceofthnCorpomﬂon,thnmﬁmﬁumttharponﬁmshdlmlnwhu
meeivedbymyholdetofremrﬂoflhmsofmnhwswn,n:thﬂﬂt
mﬁﬁmﬁdmﬁngmhshuuof&mmmswckwﬂnmthmbemﬂlydeﬁvm
to such holder,

(ii) Atnl]timeswhmmy?rufamdﬁhummommﬂng,the
Cmpomﬁonshaﬂrmmdkcepwaihblcomoﬁumhnrhmdhwuﬁmmk,fw
mmormmumofmmmmmoﬁum
mmm:bmnfmmmnswckunhﬂlﬁvmﬁmewﬂmebnmﬂldmmuﬁmmc
conversion of all outstanding Preferred Shares, The Corporation promptly will take such
wpm:eucﬁonumaybenmumtoinmiumtbuﬁmbmwmmmof
CommonStocktomhnmnbernfshumauhnﬂbemﬁdunformhmpnm,
imludingu&shmﬁmimﬂmmgnghginbesteﬁ'mmobtﬂnﬁwmquiﬁu stockholder
approval, Beforcmhngmyacﬂonwhimwouldmmadjummeingm
Camm[m?ﬁubehwd::thmpnvﬂucufmushumof&mmmsmtmblwpm

- mmimofﬂnmpﬂuble?mfmdsmmwmﬁmﬁummym

mionwhichmyhenmminordu*thutthorpmﬁonmy validly and legally
issue fully paid and nonassessablc shares of Common Stock at such adjusted Conversion
Price, '

(iii) A]lshlmofSuiaaBmeq'redSlmeswhjl:hahﬂlhvebem
mrendcradforoonvmionuhminpmvidodshllnulongarbedmdmbe
mmdngmdulﬂguuﬁmfnpmwm:mwwnamﬁzhu.ifm,w
mmiwmﬁmmdmmu,shaﬂimmdim{ymmdmmim:ontthWun
Date, meeptonlytherighlofﬂwholdmthmftnmoiwmofmmm Stock in
mwmmmmmofmy,dmmammwmmm
orSuiesBPreremdShmsommmdahaubemﬁmdmdmunedmﬂMnmbe
reissued, and the Corporation (without the need for stockholder action) may from time to
ﬁmcmkcmapmummacﬂonumuybcwmmdumthmhmindmbuof
ahmsofScduB?r:femdShnresammdingly.

(iv) ThaCozpomﬁonslullpayanyandallism,m&r.Mpmd
crmwmﬂmtmaybcpnyableinmwofmyimworddiveryofﬂmof
Common Stock upon conversion of shares of Series B Preferred Sheres pursuant to this
Section4.1'h=0mpomﬂonshaﬂnot,howem.bcmqtﬁredtnmymytnwhinhmybc
payableInmpuctofmyhmf:rinvolwdinl]minummdddimyofwmof
CuumunStockinnmgoth:rthmﬁminwhichtheshwofSaiuBmeundShu
so converted were registered, and no such issuance or delivery shall be made unless and
mtilthepemnurmﬁtywquudngsmhiumubupﬁdmrhc(:mpmﬁouthcmwm
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of any such tax or has established, 1o the satisfaction of the Corporation, that such tax has
been paid.

(6)] No Adjustmens of Conversion Price. No adjustment in the
wasion?ﬁoeofthaSﬁesBPnfwedSbmsshﬂlhemdemlmthemdmﬁm
purshmformAddiﬁmﬂShmoanmnmStockimdordeamdwbchyrhe
Corporation is less than the applicable Conversion Price in effect on the date of, and
ﬁnmedimlypdmto.tbeimmccordmodimmofmchhddiﬁomlsm

() Full Ratchet; Weighted Average.

(A)Full Ratchet. If the Corporation at any time or from time to
ﬁmepﬁorwﬂteom(l)mamivmofdm&iﬁmmmm
imnmyAddiﬁomlShamofCommmSMck(hdudlnﬂMdiﬁom

provided in Section 4(f) below, issued upon a dividend or distribution as
MMMW@MWG:MhManaﬁMOf
SﬂiwAPufmadShamumvi&dintheSuiuACmﬁﬂmof
DosismﬁomoruponadivldmdofSeriuBmemedShnuumﬂded
in Section 2(a) above) without consideration or for consideration per share
lowmmﬂleCmvusidemiueﬁoﬂonmedncnfmdimmadiudy
prior to such issue, the Conversion Price for the Series B Preferred Shares
shallbclowmdmeqmlmhoonsidmﬁunpashm. For purposes of
this Section 4(d)(ii), any Additional Shares of Common Stock issued for
mmmidmﬂmshﬂbcdmndhbcismdﬁ:uwm‘dmﬁmpum
of$.001,mbjecttandjummfur00m5mckspﬁu,diﬁdmds,md
combinations,

(B) Weighted Average. If the Corporation at any time or from time
toﬁmconorlﬂutheom(l)ywmnivmyoﬂhemw Issue Date
shall issue any Additional Shares of Common Stock (including Additional
ShmsofCommonStockdeemdtubeimmdpu:wmttoSecﬁon«d)ﬁii)
bnlowbmemmdingahumismdustockspliturmbhnionas
provided in Section 4(f) below, issued upon a dividend or distribution as
pmvidadinSwﬁond{g)bdowurdmmdmbeismadupmndemdof
SariasAmemtdShnmintthuisACcrﬁﬁmeofDuiguliomor
uponadivid:ndofSeri:sBPxefcmdShnmspwvidediuSeﬁimZ(a)
abovu)whhummnsidmtionorfmmidmﬁmpummmmthe
Convarsionhiceineffcctmmcdateofmdimmdiudymionomh
issw,ﬂwninsuohmtﬁeConvmideufmtheSqiesBmeumd
Shmshdlbelmedmmunmdetmﬁndbymﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂsmc
Convmion?ﬁoeinaffecti:modiml}'pﬁurtomhimnbyaﬁwﬁm
{x)thcnumuorofwhichshaﬂbeth:mof{t)thembuofﬂmof
Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such issue (on an As-

8
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Converted Basis) plus (2) the number of shares of Common Stock which
dauggrcgmamusidmﬁonmdvedormbermivedbytbu Company for
mhAddiﬁonalShmsnfCumonSmkmnﬂdpmchmumh
CnnvmiunPriw,nnd(y)ﬁaedmominﬂorofwﬁnhMbethmof
(1) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior
to such issuc (on an As-Converted Basis) plus (2) the number of such
Addi!iomlShmsofCommonStocksoissuedmd/mdmnedtobc
issued.  For purposes of this Section 4(d)(i), any Additional Shares of
Commmﬂhckismdfnrmconsidmﬁonmﬂbcdamndmbeism
forawnﬂdmﬂmpwahmofi.%l.mldmtoqjmmﬁr&mmn
Stock splits, dividends, and combinations,

(iil)  lssue of Securlties, Deemed Issue of Additional Shares of Common
Stock, If the Cm-pomionumyﬁmcurﬁ'omﬁmcwﬁmatﬁzthnmsimlmm
shall issue any Options or Convertible Securitics (other than (i) the Credit
Wmants,(ﬁ)SmiaBmecrmdShmsissuedupmﬁdediuSecﬁonl{n)lbuﬁ,w(iﬁ)

upon the exercise of such Options or, in the case of Convertible Securities and Options
therefor, the conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities, shall be deemed to
be Additional ShuuofGommonStockimwduoftheﬁmaofmchimor.inm

provided that in any such case in which Additional Shares of Common Stock are deemed
to be issned:

(A)No further adjustment in the Conversion Price shall be made
upon the subsequent issue of Convertible Securiligaouhmsofﬁmmn

mmdmomwmhm;ﬁmwmm
pursuent to equity incentive plans epproved by the board of directors of
thnCo:pmdmmdndopledbyﬁsshrdmldmoﬁhnCmﬂion;(J)
upon the conversion of the Series A Preferred Shares; (4) upon the
conversion of the Serics B Preferred Shares; or (5) in connection with the
inumuorcxﬂdseofthe&vdltmmm\?fm

(BjifmopﬁmuorCouwﬁbleSmiﬁubymdrm
pmvide,v&ththepnmaofﬁmaormhmmc,forwinmm
dawuninme.cmﬁdmﬁmpayab]emunw&mm

uﬁthmwttbmlo),mdanysubscqwmujummbmdthmmshtu.
\pon any such increase ot decrease becoming effective, be recomputed to
mﬂmtmhinmordwinmﬂ:uﬂd&mmhﬂpﬁomwthc
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rights of conversion or exchange under such Convertible Securities;

(C)Upon the expiration of any such Options or any rights of
eonvasiunorexchangamderthmaﬂbleSacudﬂuwhinthm
hxvubommtmimd,thaCmvmimP&iummpmedupmﬂnmidml

1) intbamuofConvuﬁb!eSmmiﬁesorOpﬁons!brCmmnn
Stock,theonlyhddiﬁomlsmmof&monsmm
wemthcsharesofComnunStock.i.fmy,MIyimwd
upon the exercise of such Options or the conversion or
uchugeofmchCmmﬂblcSwwiﬁummmdmﬂon
reuivedﬁmfmmthcmﬁdmﬁmaﬂuﬂymdvdby
thcmnﬁmfwrbhmofaumopﬁmgwhﬂhuw
mtmised,plusmceonsiclmﬁonmwuymuiwdbyﬂn

on upon such exercise, or for the issue of all such
Convertible Securities which were actually converted or
exchanged, plus the additional consideration, if any, actually
moufvedbytheCorpmﬁmuponmmvczﬁonor
exchange; and

2) in the case of Options for Convertible Securities, only the
Convertible Securities, if any, acmally issued upon the
cmciselhu‘eofmimmduthgﬁmofiamofmh

bcenthmiasuedwumcconsideraﬂonncmllymdwdhy
th:CorpomﬁonfoﬂheimeoMlthpﬁmMum
notexminad.plusthecomidmﬁondemdlohmbm
received by the Corporation upon the issue of the Convertible
Smiﬁm%mawwﬁchthpﬁommmuuy
cxercised;

(D)Inthnemtofmynhmgeinmcmhwoﬂhlm of Common
Stmkissmbhuponthaexmin,mvmionwachanpofmyOpﬁmor
ConverdbleSecnrity.theConvmianPﬂmmmineffwuhaﬂfm&vdlh
bemdjmdtothunwﬁonPdmasmuldhnwobuimdhadﬂu
adﬁmh:mﬂwhichmmdouponthcissumaofmn:hOpﬁmor
Convuu‘bleSwmitymtuaﬁsedorconvemdpdwmmmngﬁbm
mede upon the basis of such change; and

(E)Nomdjummptmm:oclmc(ml(c)or(n)nbowﬂuﬂ
hmtheeﬂ’ectofincremngrheCmmsionPﬁnemmmoumwoh
exceeds the lower of (1) the Conversion Price on the original adjustment
dnte,or(i)thaConvcnionPﬁcet}mwomdhwamuhedfrmmy

10
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issuances of Additional Shares of Common Stock between the original
adjustiment date and such readjustment date.

mﬂmcvcnttheCorpomﬁon,aﬂutheOﬁ;imllstm.mdsmyOpﬂmm
Convertible Securities (whether such Options or Convertible Securities were outstanding
mh&iﬁnﬂlﬂwbuﬁcormh&ﬂnﬁuh&iﬁnﬂhuebﬂe)mwm
mmberufshamissmblathummdwmdemm!hewnﬁdmﬂonmhepaidm
mcmiseormnvenionthmﬂthmthpﬁmorOoumﬁhlcSwmﬁu,um
mded.nhﬂlbedemodwhsnbemimadaftuthcmw Issue Date and the
provisions of this Section 4(d)(iii) shall apply.

()  Determination of Consideration. For purposes of this Section 4, the
consideration received by the Corporation for the issue of any Additional Shares of Common
Stock shall be computed as follows:

()  Cashand Property. Such consideration shall:

(A)hmﬁruitmnsimofmh,hawmpumdnﬂ:ewuf
cash received by the Corporation, excluding amounts paid or payable for
accrucd interest;

(B)hmofaruitwn:iﬂsofpmputyothcnhmmh,bompmd
at the fair market value thercof at the time of such issue, as determined in
good faith by the Board of Directors, or if requested by the Required
Holders, by sgreement of the Board of Dircotors and the Required
Holders, and if the Board of Directors and the Required Holders do not
agree on such fair market value, in accordance with the procedures set
forth in the definition of Appraisal Procedure; and

(C)in the event Additional Shares of Common Stock are issued
togeﬂmrwilhomershmmmnﬁeswothumdthecmm
for consideration which covers both, be the proportion of such
midnraﬁoummwivcd,eumpmdnspwﬁdedinclmes(i)md(ii)
above, as determined in good fulth by the Board of Directors,

(i)  Options and Convertible Securities. The consideration per share
received by the Corporation for Additional Shares of Common Stock deemed to have
been issucd pursuant to Section 4(d)(iii) above, relating to Options and Convertible
Securities, shall be determined by dividing:

(A)ﬁntomlmmifmy.mdvedbyﬁeCmpomionas
consideration for the issue of such Options ot Convertible Securities, plug
the minimum aggregate amount of additional considcration (as set forth in
ﬂuiﬂsmmuln:ing&mato,“ﬁﬁmmregﬁrdtnanypmﬁsimmimﬂ
thercin for a potential subsequent adjustment of such consideration)
payable to the Corporation upon the exercise of such Options or the
conversion ot exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the cass of
OpﬁonsforﬂonwﬁhlaSecmiﬁ:s.ﬂnumimofmhowmfm

n
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Convertible Securities and the conversion or exchange of such Convertible
Securities, by

(B)ﬂ:mimmmbuofﬂmwomeonSmk(umfmh
intheimmmnntnmlningﬂmm.vﬁlhommmmyprwiﬁan
muinedthatinforupnmnﬁﬂﬂ:bnqumadjummofmhnmbu}
hmhhuponhumisofmhowomwﬂ:emmﬁmmm
of such Convertible Securities.

() Adjustment for Stock Splits and Combinations. f the Corporation shall at
mﬁmwmmwﬁmmmmﬁmmmmamﬁiﬁﬁmdh i

mmmmmmmmmmw@ym@mﬁﬁmm

®)  Adjustment for Certain Dividends and Distributions. fn the event the
Camomﬁmumyﬁmaw&amﬁmbﬁmoaﬂulheOﬂMMDmshaﬂmhmlm
mﬁxlmddmforthedﬂamﬁnatiunofholdmoftommmsmmﬁtladwmeive,a
dividmdorothu'dhuibuﬁonptyahlcsolalyinadtﬁﬁomshmofCommmStoct,thmmdin
euchmnhwmtmhﬂonvursionhicethmineﬂ'enabnllbedeumduufthcﬁmofmh
isauanceor,inlh:wmmhamwddam:hanhawbmﬁxed,asoftheclouofhmcm
such record date, by multiplying the applicable Conversion Price then in effect by a fraction:

Q) the numerator of which shall be the total mumber of shares of
Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the time of such issuance or
theduscofbmines:unmhmm'ddlh,md

(i) msdmomimnfwhichshallbelhcwm]umberofﬂmesof
CommmSmckissuudmdouulmdingimmedimdypﬁartuthcﬁmofmhinmor

MﬁmmmmmmmﬂNMﬁmthMywd
or if such dhhiblniuniunmﬁlﬂymadcmthedmﬂmdthwﬁur.thnlppﬁmhlaCmvuﬂm
P‘rieeshallbemmmﬁmordhglyuufﬁedouofbwnmmmhMMumd
mmuﬂumhmmmionmﬂﬂlhndjuaedmmwﬁspmmphuofm:ﬁmuf
actual payment of such dividends or distributions,

()  Adjustment for Reclassification, Exchange, or Substitution, If the
CommnSmkhsmblcuponthaummiunortthcﬂuBPmmShmahallbe
m&mmnMnmbnofshmsofmdmordamdmwhﬁhubyuplul

or stock dividend provided for above, or a reorganization, merger, consolidation, or sale of assets
provided forbelaw),thenmdhﬂ:hsuchwamthnholdﬂofmhmchshm of Series B

12




hitps:/iwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1144879/000162828022023816/a04-12x2022appliedamende.htm

7




12/27/22, 11:40 AM

ald-12x2022appliedamende

09/09/2000 16:47 FAX 880 4423489 TCORS Qo1e

Preferred Shares shall have the right thereafter to convert such share into the kind and amount of
shares_of g.cck and other securities and perty receivable, upon such reorganization,

whichm:chﬂ.:msofS:riuBMmdsmmgmmmmvmwmlypﬁmm
such reorganization, teclnsstﬁmion.nrchange,allmbjmtoﬁmbutdjmmupmﬁdod

® mwsm.uomcmm&mnswabaubem
nponcoummmcftpe Series B Preferred Shares, In lieu of any fractional shares to which the
lwldf:rwnddothcmnb:cnﬁﬂad,ﬂn&rpmﬂmshaﬂmmheqwmm:moﬂuch
fmuonmulﬁpl_iadbythsfairmukctvalneofa dmoftummm&ock.umumdlquedby
theBoardofDirchmufth:Cm'pumionmdﬂu an&ﬂl[oldm;mw‘d;&hnwmr,thﬂif
mhq:m:alasrw?mummbemhad,mmrmummshuubadwumjnadby

13
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(1) Notice of Record Date. In the event:

(i) that the Corporation declares a dividend (or any other distribution)
on its Common Stock payable in Common Stock or other securities of the Corporation;

(i) that the Corporation subdivides or combines its outstanding shares
of Common Stock;

(iii)  of any reclassification of the Common Stock of the Corporation
(other than a subdivision or combination of its outstanding shares of Common Stock or a
stock dividend or stock distribution thereon), or of any consolidation or merger of the
Corporation into or with another company, or of the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of the Corporation; or

(iv)  of the involuntary or voluntary dissolution, liquidation or winding
up of the Corporation;

then the Corporation shal) cause to be filed at its principal office or at the office of the transfer
ag:niofm:Su-icuBPr\:ﬁmdShm;nndshaﬂmusetobamilodtolheholdmoﬂthu'MB
Preferred Shares at their last addresses as shown on the records of the Corporation or such
transfer agent, at lcast ten (10) days prior to the date specified in (1) below or 20 days before the
date specified in (2) below, a notice stating

(1) the record date of such dividend, distribution, subdivision or combination,
or.'xfarcumﬂisnonobchk:n.thcdm:sofwhichth:hnldmomemmSlmkof
mmdtobemﬁuadtomhdiﬁdmd.dimibuﬁm,mbdivisimormbiuﬁonmtobe
determined, or

@2 medateonwhichmhreclassiﬁmﬁon.mﬁdnﬁm,mm.ule.
dissolution, liquidation or winding up is expected to become effective, and the date as of
whichhisc:q:cmd!haiboldmofCommunStockofmmrdshmbuentiﬂedtn
exchange their shares of Common Stock for securities or other property deliverable upon
such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, dissolution or winding up,

5. Vatine Rights.

(8)  Preferred Shares Voting Together. Except as provided in Section 5(d)(i),
Section 5(d)(iv), Section 5(d)(v) and Section 5(d)(ix) below, the holders of Preferred Shares shal)
vote together on all matters as a single class, with each Prefermed Share entitled to cast the
numberofvoteanunltot}mnmnhcrofshmnfCommonSlockinmwhinbaachu:aybe
cmvmmd(uudjumdﬁmﬁmwﬁmpmmmtchuieSACmﬁﬁmﬁDeﬁguﬁom
(wiﬁ:mmttotthGﬂuAPufmadShncs}mdpwsmmSecﬁm4hmwf(Mthmpectto
the Series B Preferred Shares)).

(b)  Voting with Common. Except as provided in Section 5(b) and Section 5(c)
bclowaruothuwixexmﬂysctforthherchi,ﬂmholdmofﬁufmud Shares shall vote
wgcthurwiﬂ:theCmonSmkannllmn:tmunsinglcdm.wilhmh?mfmcdsmm
catitled to cast the sumber of votes equal to the sumber of shares of Common Stock into which it

14
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maybcoomemd(asadjustedﬁumtimemﬁmpmuamwSecdondhcrmﬂasnflheremrd
date,

(c) Common Voting First on Certain Matters. In addition to all other
raquimnmuimposadbyNomdahw,mﬁmaﬁuwﬁngﬁmmmdmduﬂnprmﬁm’s
Aﬁduoflnwmonﬁmumplmmhdbyﬁs&ﬁﬁmw&mxmmwlw
underteke (i) any transaction giving rise to a Liquidation Event or (i) any redemption of
Preferred Shares, without the prior approval of the Commeon Stock voting &s a single class, If
mehmmﬁnmfenedinchmﬁ)or(ﬁ)humﬁsﬁmmvdbyﬂmreqﬁaiwnunbuof
Imldmofﬂmunmsmnk,swhmmmmbe;mmthzmof&aholdmm
ShamdeammonSwdgwﬁnshmuaﬁngleclmwiththmfcmdShmmﬂﬂd
tocastth:mmberofwt:seqmlmthenmnbuofmmonsmlntuwh‘.chitmybe
uonvnmd(aaadjum&nmﬁmwﬁmcp:mmltothcm&c:rﬁﬁmﬁwmﬂms
(wmmmmmmnmmmﬁ)mmmﬂmsmawmmm
to the Series B Preferred Shares)) as of the record date. Forpurpounofmhjointm(h)w

clnsuhaiibeconsidmdtuhmmtedagﬁwthetrmmﬁonwhmwﬁngmgtﬂmmhthe
Preferred Shares and (C) myshmofCommonSlockmwmdonmetmmﬁmwhmvoﬁng
asasinglcclshﬂlhewuﬁduudmhawmwwdm&emﬁmwhmvoﬁngmm
with the Preferred Shares.

(@  Voting as Separate Class. In addition to all other requirements imposad
by Nevada law, and all other voting rights granted under the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation, as supplemented by the SuimACuﬁﬁmeochsimﬁonmdthisCﬂﬁﬂcm,
theCo:pumjonslmﬂnot.mdahaﬂnotpermjtmywmpmyormmtofwhichtmmmmﬁon
directly wmﬁmﬂymumﬁszMwmmofmeoan:hmMnmdﬁu
50% of the voting power, S%ofmcmmicpw,wematofmebwdof&mmof
such company or trust, other then directors’ qualifying shares (2 “Subsidiary”™) to, without the
pdorwﬁnmnunuutnthuimdlloldmmlingwgclbmuninghdm:

M amend, modify or repeal the Series A Certificate of Designations
or this Certificate of Designations (whether by reclassification, merger, consolidation,
reorganization or otherwise); provided, however, hat any such amendment, modification
or repeal shallnlsoreqmmthepriarwﬁttmmmtofholdmofunujmityoﬁhevcu
am'bmblammhofthammingsmAmeemdShmmdﬂnsniuB
memedShuu,vuﬂngupmmly,wiﬂmthmfmudSImwmﬁﬂedmmmembn
ofvotescquulmthanumbuofshmofCommmStockhtowhichmhmybe
cmwmd(uadhuwdﬁwﬁmewﬁupmmmmeSuiuACﬂﬁmof
Dﬂignaﬁom(udthmpmtmttheﬁMAPrcfmedShnm)wmmnmSwﬁm4
hereof (with respect to the Series B Preferred Shares));

(ii) enter into any reclassification, merger, consolidation or
reorganization;

(iid) hmuumdemm(whﬂhabymendmﬂnmihcmmsuf

1§
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Incorporation or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise)
the number of authorized Preferred Shares;

provided, hawm,thuifmymhchmormdcsofupiulmkumudﬂu
convertible into capital stock is superior to the rights of either tho Series A Preferred
Shm;wtheﬂ:riuBPm&mdShmhnnotﬂnmhu.mhmhadnﬁonmdim
mmnhobnppmvedbyhnldmsof:majwityﬂfthmamibmbhmmjm!w
suiqwﬁngsepmy,wﬂ:euhhfm&mmﬁﬂedwcmhnmofw
equaltoﬂunmbuofﬁmofﬂmmmﬂtwkm“iﬁchmhmybemw(u
adjmedﬁnmﬁmwthncmmmmunmﬂamﬁﬁcmofnuimmmﬂ:
mmmﬂnSuimAPnfmadShuu)mdpummthSnﬁon4huwf(vdmmmm
the Series B Preferred Shares));

v) whctherbylmmd:nmmthnA:ﬁnlwofhcurpmorby
reclassification, merger, consolidation, rearganization or otherwise; (i) alter, amend or
wﬁvemyﬁghm,prafmnmormivileguofthehefnwdﬁamor(ﬁ}otbu'w:'.lcalw,
amend or waive any provisions of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or by-laws
tnamnnundmbthuholdmohhc?mfmudsm;pmﬂdmm.thuif
nnlyancof!heSuiuBmeumdShmmSeﬂuAht&nﬁShuuthnmt
thzadnr,suchnctmuaibuppmvedbylmldmofnm:jodtyofd:cvnmam'bumblum
mhnffm&dseﬁm,voﬁngwmu&,ﬁlhunhh&&md%mﬁdﬁhuﬁ!h&
mmbarnfvuh:ssqml:othnnnmbuofshamofﬂommonStockintowhid:mhmyhc
mvmud(undjuﬁodﬁnmﬁmhdmcpnwmmthnSuiﬂACuﬁﬁwzof
Dcdmﬁw(vdthmpantmtthuiesAmemedShmu}audpmummSwﬁoM
hereof (with respect to the Series B Preferred Sharcs));

(vi)  muthorize, declare or pay any dividend (other than dividends
paynhlemle.‘lyinCummnnShock)mmyshmofd:ecapimmkorﬂwCorpmﬂonor
mySuhsidiny.wi&thcexupﬁmofﬂxdiﬁdmdnnnthcsmesAPrcMShmm
fonhintheSqieuACerﬁﬁmofDulgmﬂmortheSuiaBPreihnedﬁhamutfmﬂz
in Section 2 hereof:

(vii) mdm,pwcbnsaorothmﬁqulﬂrefurw]mmﬂumor
shamofﬂneapitﬂmkoftbqupomﬁmorwSubaHiuy;

(viii) authorize or issue (by amendment to the Articles of
or by reclassification, merger, consolidation reorganization or otherwise) any additional
Series B Preferred Shares; or

(x)  authorize or issue (by aroendment to the Articles of Incorporation
or by reclassification, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) any edditional
Series A Preferred Shares; provided, however, that such an issuance must also be
Wbyholdmofamajoﬂwofthemarm’buubhwtba%Bmemcd

16
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Shams.voﬁngscpmly.WitheachSmimHmemSharemﬁﬂadtocnsllhember
ofvotasequaltothcnmherofahmomenmmchkintowhiqhmhmybu
converted (as adjusted from time to time pursuant to this Certificate),

6.  Notices. TMCmpwaﬁmshaﬂdbﬁbumtothehnldmnfSeﬁuBPm&md
Shueswpiuofuﬂnoﬂus.mﬂuiﬂgmnuﬂmdqum«lympnm.pmxymm
hﬁmﬁmmmnmandmyomudmmdimwgmuﬂymhbm&mmnf
CommonStoukofﬂmCorpmﬁon,atmhﬁmumdbymhmﬂhodnmkmm
distributed to such holders of such Common Stock.

7. Replacement Certificates. The certificate(s) representing the Series B Preferred
Shares held by any holder of Series B Preferred Shares may be exchanged by such holder at eny
ﬁmamdﬁnmﬁmmdmtformﬁﬁmuwiﬂ:diffqmdmmimﬂmmmﬂngmm
aggregate pumber of Series B Preferred Shares, as reasonably requested by such holder, upon
surrendering the same. No service charge will be made for such registration or transfer or
exchange,

8. Aﬂnmm‘_lm.lnwmecﬁonudthmfommbynholdﬂof&riaB
Preferred Shares of any obligation of the Corporation hereunder, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recovery of reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred.

9. No Reissvance. No Seﬁ.esBPrefmedShmsaeqtﬁmdbyﬂnmemﬁmby
mormmpﬁmmmmummmmmmm

10.  Severability of Provisions. If any right, preference or limitation of the Series B
PrefmmdShuumfmhinmiaCQﬂﬁMOfDuisuﬁms(wtthuﬁﬁmofDﬁsmﬁm
. maybesmendudfmmtimtoﬁme)isfwndtohninvalid.unhwﬁdorimpabhofbdng
anfnmedbyrcmnormymleorlnwmpublicpolicy,anvthurighn,mfummmd
Iimi!xﬁonssetfotﬂ:inthisCaﬁﬂcmeofDuignaﬁmwhichmb!ﬁmeﬁ’mlvdwthe
invalid, unlawful or unenforceable right, preference or limitation, shall nevertheless remain in
funfomemdcﬁmmdmﬂghnpmfmmmlimimﬁonhwﬁnwfmbadmedd@ew
uponmymhoﬂmﬁlht.mfmmorﬁmimimutﬁussoexprmodm

1. Speclfic Performance. The Corporation acknowledges and agrees that
impmblcdmgawuuldocminﬂ:e:vcntthnltheCnrpmﬁnnfniledtnpmfmmyoflhe
mﬁﬂmsoftﬂs&ﬁﬁmhmo:ﬂmmuithimspeniﬁ:m. It is accordingly agreed that
mhhnldarofScﬁcsBPml’mndShnmslhallbemiﬂsdmminjmcﬁonorinim:ﬁomm
mmormmhmhuofthemviﬁmofthis&tﬁﬁm:mdmenforceapeciﬁcilly!hotmm
mdprovisiomhemﬂthisbeingh:nddiﬁontomyotbmmmadytowhichmnhholdumbe
entitled by law or equity,

Signed on September 7 _, 2009

FLIGHT SAFETY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

17
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[See attached.

[Exhibit C]
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
OF THE POWERS, PREFERENCES AND
RELATIVE, PARTICIPATING, OPTIONAL AND OTHER RESTRICTIONS

OF SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK
OF APPLIED BLOCKCHAIN, INC,

Section 1.1 Designation. As of the effective date of this Certificate, there is hereby
created out of the authorized preferred stock of the Corporation a series of preferred stock designated
as “Series C Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock” (the “Series C Preferred Stock”), par value
$0.001 per share. The Series C Preferred Stock shall rank senior in all respects to the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock of the Corporation (the “Series A Preferred Stock”) and the Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock of the Corporation (the “Series B Preferred Stock” and together with
the Serics A Preferred Stock, the “Jumior Preferred Stock”, and together with the Series A
Preferred Stock and the Series C Preferred Stock, the “Preferred Stock”). The following rights,
powers and privileges, and restrictions, qualifications and limitations, shall apply to the Series C
Preferred Stock.

(a)  Liguidation, Dissolution or Winding Up; Certain Mergers, Consolidations
and Asset Sales.

(1) Payments to Holders of Series C Preferred Stock. In the event of any
voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or any Deemed

Liquidation Event (as defined below), before any payment shall be made to the holders of the Junior
Preferred Stock or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, the holders of shares of
Series C Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the funds and assets
available for distribution to the stockholders of the Corporation, an amount per share equal to the
Stated Value (as defined below) for such share of Series C Preferred Stock, plus an amount per
share equal to the Stated Value of any shares of Series C Preferred Stock that are issuable as the
result of accrued, but unpaid, PIK Dividends (as defined below). If upon any such liquidation,
dissolution or winding up or Deemed Liquidation Event of the Corporation, the funds and assets
available for distribution to the stockholders of the Corporation shall be insufficient to pay the
holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock the full amount to which they are entitled under this
Section 1.1(a)(i), the holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any
distribution of the funds and assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts
that would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock held by them
upon such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full,
The “Stated Value” shall mean Twenty-Five United States Dollars and No Cents ($25.00) per share,
subject to an equitable adjustment for stock splits, stock combinations, recapitalizations and similar
transactions,

(i1) f Junior Preferred Stock and Common Stock,
In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up or Deemed
Liquidation Event of the Corporation, after the payment of all preferential amounts required to be
paid to the holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock as provided in Section 1.1(a)(i), the
remaining funds and assets available for distribution to the stockholders of the Corporation shall
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be distributed among the holders of shares of the Junior Preferred Stock according to the terms
thereof and then among the holders of shares of Common Stock, pro rata based on the number of
shares of Common Stock held by each such holder.

(i)  Deemed Liguidation Events.

(A)  Definition. Each of the following events shall be considered
a “Deemed Liquidation Event" unless the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares
of Series C Preferred Stock (voting as a single class on an as-converted basis) (the “Requisite
Holders”) elect otherwise by written notice sent to the Corporation at least five (5) days prior to
the effective date of any such event;

(1) a merger or consolidation in which (I) the
Corporation is a constituent party or (I1) a subsidiary of the Corporation is a constituent party and
the Corporation issues shares of its capital stock pursuant to such merger or consolidation, except
any such merger or consolidation involving the Corporation or a subsidiary in which the shares of
capital stock of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation
continue to represent, or are converted into or exchanged for equity securities that represent,
immediately following such merger or consolidation, at least a majority, by voting power, of the
equity securities of (x) the surviving or resulting party or (y) if the surviving or resulting party is
a wholly owned subsidiary of another party immediately following such merger or consolidation,
the parent of such surviving or resulting party; provided that, for the purpose of this Section
L1(a)(iii)(A), all shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of options outstanding
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation or upon conversion of Convertible Securitics
(as defined below) outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation shall be deemed
to be outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation and, if applicable, deemed to
be converted or exchanged in such merger or consolidation on the same terms as the actual
outstanding shares of Common Stock are converted or exchanged; or

(2)  the sale, lease, transfer or other disposition, in a
single transaction or series of related transactions, by the Corporation or any subsidiary of the
Corporation of all or substantially all the assets of the Corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a
whole, or, if substantially all of the assets of the Corporation and its subsidiaries taken as a whole
are held by such subsidiary or subsidiaries, the sale or disposition (whether by merger or otherwise)
of one or more subsidiaries of the Corporation, except where such sale, lease, transfer or other
disposition is to the Corporation or one or more wholly owned subsidiaries of the Corporation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Significant Transaction Event (as defined below) shall not be
considered a Deemed Liquidation Event.

(B)  Public Offering or Listing Facilitation Transaction. Under
no circumstances shall a public offering of the Corporation’s securities, including a public offering

that results in a change of control of the Corporation, or a merger or other business combination
or issuance of securities of the Corporation designed to increase the number of stockholders of the
Corporation in order to facilitate a listing on a Trading Market (as such term is defined in that
certain Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of [ April 15 ], 2021, by and between the
Corporation and the purchasers of the Series C Preferred Stock (the “Registration Rights
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Agreement”)) be considered a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of
the Corporation or a Deemed Liquidation Event,

(C)  Allocation of Escrow. In the event of a Deemed Liquidation
Event pursuant to Section 1.1(a)(iii)(A)1)(D), if any portion of the consideration payable to the
stockholders of the Corporation is placed into escrow, the definitive agreement for such transaction
shall provide that the portion of such consideration that is placed in escrow shall be allocated
among the holders of capital stock of the Corporation pro rata based on the amount of such
consideration otherwise payable to each stockholder (such that each stockholder has placed in
escrow the same percentage of the total consideration payable to such stockholder as every other
stockholder),

(D)  Amount Deemed Paid or Distributed. The funds and assets
deemed paid or distributed to the holders of capital stock of the Corporation upon any such merger,
consolidation, sale, transfer or other disposition described in this Section 1.1(a)(iii) shall be the
cash or the value of the property, rights or securities paid or distributed to such holders by the
Corporation or the acquiring person, firm or other entity. The value of such property, rights or
securities shall be determined in good faith by the Board.

(b)  Voting. Holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall vote together
with holders of Common Stock on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis on any matters coming
before the stockholders of the Corporation for a vote. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Corporation shall not, either directly or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation,
recapitalization, reclassification, or otherwise, do any of the following without (in addition to any
other vote required by law or this Certificate) the written consent or affirmative vote of the Requisite
Holders given in writing or by vote at a mecting, consenting or voting (as the case may be) separately
as a class, and any such act or transaction entered into without such consent or vote shall be null and
void ab initio, and of no force or effect;

()  materially change the principal business of the Corporation unless
in connection with a Significant Transaction Event; or

(1)  except in connection with a Significant Transaction Event, sell,
lease, transfer, exclusively license or otherwise dispose (in a single transaction or series of related
transactions) of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or permit any direct or
indirect subsidiary to do so; provided, however, that no consent or vote of the Requisite Holders
shall be required in connection with sales of mining equipment in the ordinary course of the
Corporation’s business and in a manner consistent with the principal business of the Corporation,

(¢)  Dividends.

(i)  Dividends Generally. The holders of shares of Series C Preferred
Stock shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation shall pay, dividends on shares of Series C
Preferred Stock equal (on an as if converted to Common Stock basis) to and in the same form as
dividends actually paid on shares of the Common Stock when, as and if such dividends are paid
on shares of the Common Stock. Except as set forth in this Section 1.1(c)(i) and for PIK Dividends
(as defined below), no other dividends shall be paid on shares of Series C Preferred Stock.
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(i)  PIK Dividends. The Corporation shall be required to pay a dividend
in fully paid and non-assessable shares of Series C Preferred Stock (cach a “PIK Dividend™ and,
collectively, the “PIK Dividends”) equal to the percentage of Stated Value set forth below upon
the occurrence of each of the following events:

(A) Failure to File. If the Corporation has not filed or
confidentially submitied a registration statement (the “Registration Statement”) to register the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock (the
“Registrable Securities”) on or before the date that is four (4) months following the date that the
first share of Series C Preferred Stock is issued (the “Original Issue Date”), the Corporation shall
accrue daily a PIK Dividend equal to ten percent (10%) per annum of Stated Value;

(B)  Failure to be Declared Effective and to List. If the
Registration Statement has not been declared effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC™) on or before the date that is eight (8) months after the Original Issue
Date and/or the Registrable Securities are not listed on a Trading Market on or before the date that
is twelve (12) months after Original Issue Date, the Corporation shall accrue daily a PIK Dividend
of twelve percent (12%) per annum of Stated Value, or fifteen percent (15%) per annum of Stated
Value for cach day such failure continues after eighteen (18) months after the Original Issue Date,
Such PIK Dividend shall be instead of, and not in addition to, any PIK Dividend also accruing
under Section 1.1(c){i1)(A); and

(C) Mandato mption Failure, If the Corporation fails to
complete a Mandatory Redemption (as defined below) when required to do so, it shall continue to
pay a PIK Dividend in accordance with Section 1. 1{c)(ii)(B).

The PIK Dividends shall be paid by delivering to each record holder of Series C Preferred Stock a
number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock determined by dividing (x) the total aggregate dollar
amount of dividends accrued and unpaid with respect to Series C Preferred Stock owned by such
record holder (rounded to the nearest whole cent) by (v) the Stated Value.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, PIK Dividends shall cease cumulating and accruing upon the
earliest to occur of (1) the date of the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 1.1(c)(ii)(A),
Section 1. 1(c)(i1)(B) and Section 1.1(c)(ii)(C) that gave rise to such PIK Dividend (any such date,
a "PIK Dividend Satisfaction Date”), and (2) any Conversion Date (as defined below) or Optional
Conversion Date (as defined below). Upon a simultaneous or consecutive occurrence of two or
more events that trigger the accrual of PIK Dividends on one or more days, PIK Dividends shall
accrue on each issued and outstanding share of Series C Preferred Stock as if only one triggering
event had occurred, such that the accrual of PIK Dividends in accordance with this Section
1.1{c)(ii) shall not be doubled, tripled or otherwise multiplied due to the existence of multiple
events causing the accrual of PIK Dividends.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, (I) if within six (6) months of the Original Issue Date, the
Corporation enters into a binding definitive agreement or binding instrument relating to a Significant
Transaction Event (a “Definitive Instrument”), then the Corporation shall have no obligation to pay
any PIK Dividends accrued or payable through such date, and (1) if the Corporation has entered into
a Definitive Instrument within six (6) months of the Original Issue Date and has consummated the
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Significant Transaction Event within ten (10) months of the Original Issue Date, then the Corporation
shall have no obligation to pay any PIK Dividends accrued or payable through such date. A
“Significant Transaction Event" means a merger, share exchange, sale of all or substantially all of
the assets of the Corporation or other business combination, restructuring or change of control
transaction, including any such transaction intended to result in the Corporation becoming subject to
the reporting requirements of Section 13 of 15(d) of the Exchange Act (or becoming a vol untary filer
under the Exchange Act), a business combination intended to increase the number of sharcholders
of the Corporation to facilitate listing on a Trading Market, a business combination with a special
purpose acquisition company, or a business combination with a company that is listed on a Trading
Market.

(d)  Automatic Conversion,

()  Trigger Event. On the Conversion Date (as defined below), each
share of Series C Preferred Stock shall be automatically converted (without the payment of
additional consideration by the holder thereof), into such number of fully paid and non-assessable
shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing the Stated Value by the Conversion Price
in effect on the Conversion Date. The “Conversion Price” shall initially be equal to $0.13. Such
initial Conversion Price, and the rate at which shares of Series C Preferred Stock may be converted
into shares of Common Stock, shall be subject to adjustment as provided below. For purposes
hereof, “Conversion Date” means (A) the date that the Registration Statement is declared effective
by the SEC or (B) the date on which a Significant Transaction Event occurs.

(i)  Mechanics of Conversion. All holders of record of Series C Preferred
Stock shall be sent written notice of the Conversion Date and the place designated for conversion of
all such shares of Series C Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(d). Such notice need not be
sent in advance of the occurrence of the Conversion Date. Upon receipt of such notice, each holder
of Series C Preferred Stock shall, if such holder's shares are certificated, surrender his, her or its
certificate or certificates for all such shares (or, if such holder of Series C Preferred Stock alleges
that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement
reasonably acceptable to the Corporation and its transfer agent to indemnify the Corporation and/or
its transfer agent against any claim that may be made against the Corporation and/or its transfer agent
on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to the Corporation at the place
designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation or its transfer agent, any certificates
surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied by written instrument or instruments
of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation or its transfer agent, duly executed by the
registered holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock or by his, her or its attorney duly authorized
in writing. All rights with respect to the Series C Preferred Stock converted pursuant to this Section
1.1(d) will terminate at the Conversion Date (notwithstanding the failure of the holder or holders of
Series C Preferred Stock to surrender any certificates at or prior to such time), except only for the
rights of the holders of Series C Preferred Stock, upon surrender, if applicable, of their certificate or
certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement), to receive the items provided for in the next
sentence of this Section 1.1(d)(ii). As soon as practicable afler the Conversion Date and, if
applicable, the surrender of the certificate or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement)
for Series C Preferred Stock, the Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder of Series C
Preferred Stock, or to his, her or its nominees, a notice of issuance of uncertificated shares and, may,
upon written request, issue and deliver a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of
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Common Stock issuable on such conversion in accordance with the provisions hereof. Such
converted Series C Preferred Stock shall be retired and cancelled and may not be reissued as shares
of such series, and the Corporation may thereafter take such appropriate action (without the need for
stockholder action) as may be necessary to reduce the authorized number of shares of its Preferred
Stock accordingly.

(ili)  Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation

covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued
shares of Common Stock for the sole purpose of issuance upon conversion of the Series C Preferred
Stock as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or any other actual contingent purchase
rights of persons other than the holders of Series C Preferred Stock, not less than such aggregate
number of shares of the Common Stock as shall be issuable (taking into account the adjustments
and restrictions of Section 1.1(d)) upon the conversion of the then outstanding shares of Series C
Preferred Stock. The Corporation covenants that all shares of Common Stock that shall be so
issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

(iv)  Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional
shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock. As to any fraction of a
share which the holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock would otherwise be entitled to purchase
upon such conversion, the Corporation shall round up to the next whole share.

(v)  Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of shares of Common
Stock on conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock shall be made without charge to any holder of
Series C Preferred Stock for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in respect
of the issue or delivery of such shares of Common Stock, provided that the Corporation shall not be
required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance and
delivery of any such shares of Common Stock upon conversion in a name other than that of the
holders of the Series C Preferred Stock of such shares of Series C Preferred Stock and the
Corporation shall not be required to issue or deliver such shares of Common Stock unless or until
the person or persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Corporation the amount
of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Corporation that such tax has been paid.
The Corporation shall pay all transfer agent fees required for same-day processing and all fees to the
Depository Trust Company (or another established clearing corporation performing similar
functions) required for same-day electronic delivery of the shares of Common Stock.

(vi)  Adjustments to Conversion Price for Diluting Issues.

(A)  Special Definitions. For purposes of this Section 1.1(d), the
following definitions shall apply:

(1)  “Additional Shares of Common Stock” shall mean
all shares of Common Stock issued (or, pursuant to Section 1.1(d)(vi)}(C) below, deemed to be
issued) by the Corporation after the Original Issue Date, other than (x) the following shares of
Common Stock and (y) shares of Common Stock deemed issued pursuant to the following Options
(as defined below) and Convertible Securities (as defined below) (clauses (x) and (y), collectively,
“Exempted Securities”);
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a. as to any series of Preferred Stock, shares of
Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities issued as a dividend or distribution on such
series of Preferred Stock; or

b. shares of Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities issued by reason of a dividend, stock split, split-up or other distribution on
shares of Common Stock that is covered by Section 1.1(d)(vii); or

¢, shares of Common Stock, Options or other
equity-linked securities or awards issued to employees or directors of, or consultants or advisors
1o, the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries pursuant to a plan, agreement or arrangement
approved by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; or

d.  shares of Common Stock or Convertible
Securities actually issued upon the exercise of Options or shares of Common Stock actually issued
upon the conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities, in each case provided such issuance is
pursuant to the terms of such Option or Convertible Security; or

& shares of Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities issued to banks, equipment lessors or other financial institutions, or to real
property lessors, pursuant to a debt financing, equipment leasing or real property leasing
transaction; or

£ shares of Common Stock, Options,
Convertible Securities or other equity or equity-linked securities issued as acquisition
consideration pursuant to the acquisition of another corporation by the Corporation by merger,
purchase of substantially all of the assets or other reorganization or to a joint venture agreement,
or

g shares of Common Stock, Options,
Convertible Securities or other equity or equity-linked issued in connection with a Significant
Transaction Event; or

(2)  “Convertible Securities” shall mean any evidences
of indebtedness, shares or other securities directly or indirectly convertible into or exchangeable
for Common Stock, but excluding Options.

(3)  “Option” shall mean rights, options or warrants to
subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire Common Stock or Convertible Securities.

(B) No Adjustment of Conversion Price. No adjustment in the
Conversion Price shall be made as the result of the issuance or deemed issuance of Additional
Shares of Common Stock if the Corporation receives written notice from the Requisite Holders
agreeing that no such adjustment shall be made as the result of the issuance or deemed issuance of
such Additional Shares of Common Stock.

(C)  Deemed Issue of Additional Shares of Common Stock.
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(1) If the Corporation at any time or from time to time
after the Original Issue Date shall issue any Options or Convertible Securities (excluding Options
or Convertible Securities which are themselves Exempted Securities) or shall fix a record date for
the determination of holders of any class of securities entitled to receive any such Options or
Convertible Securities, then the maximum number of shares of Common Stock (as set forth in the
instrument relating thereto, assuming the satisfaction of any conditions to exercisability,
convertibility or exchangeability but without regard to any provision contained therein for a
subsequent adjustment of such number) issuable upon the exercise of such Options or, in the case
of Convertible Securitics and Options therefor, the conversion or exchange of such Convertible
Securities, shall be deemed to be Additional Shares of Common Stock issued as of the time of such
issue or, in case such a record date shall have been fixed, as of the close of business on such record
date.

(2)  If the terms of any Option or Convertible Security,
the issuance of which resulted in an adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of
Section 1.1(d)(vi)(D), are revised as a result of an amendment to such terms or any other
adjustment pursuant to the provisions of such Option or Convertible Security (but excluding
automatic adjustments to such terms pursuant to anti-dilution or similar provisions of such Option
or Convertible Security) to provide for either (I) any increase or decrease in the number of shares
of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion and/or exchange of any such Option or
Convertible Security or (II) any increase or decrease in the consideration payable to the
Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, then, effective upon such increase
or decrease becoming effective, the Conversion Price computed upon the original issue of such
Option or Convertible Security (or upon the occurrence of a record date with respect thereto) shall
be readjusted to such Conversion Price as would have obtained had such revised terms been in
effect upon the original date of issuance of such Option or Convertible Security. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, no readjustment pursuant to this clause (2) shall have the effect of increasing the
Conversion Price to an amount which exceeds the lower of (x) the Conversion Price in effect
immediately prior to the original adjustment made as a result of the issuance of such Option or
Convertible Security, or (y) the Conversion Price that would have resulted from any issuances of
Additional Shares of Common Stock (other than deemed issuances of Additional Shares of
Common Stock as a result of the issuance of such Option or Convertible Security) between the
original adjustment date and such readjustment date.

(3)  If the terms of any Option or Convertible Security
(excluding Options or Convertible Securities which are themselves Exempted Securities), the
issuance of which did not result in an adjustment to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of
Section 1.1(d)(vi}(D) (either because the consideration per share (determined pursuant to Section
1L1(d)(viXE)) of the Additional Shares of Common Stock subject thereto was equal to or greater
than the Conversion Price then in effect, or because such Option or Convertible Security was issued
before the Original Issue Date), are revised after the Original Issue Date as a result of an
amendment to such terms or any other adjustment pursuant to the provisions of such Option or
Convertible Security (but excluding automatic adjustments to such terms pursuant to anti-dilution
or similar provisions of such Option or Convertible Security) to provide for either (I) any increase
in the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of
any such Option or Convertible Security or (IT) any decrease in the consideration payable to the
Corporation upon such exercise, conversion or exchange, then such Option or Convertible
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Security, as so amended or adjusted, and the Additional Shares of Common Stock subject thereto
(determined in the manner provided in Section 1.1(d)}(vi)(C)(1)) shall be deemed to have been
issued effective upon such increase or decrease becoming effective.

(4)  Upon the expiration or termination of any
unexercised Option or unconverted or unexchanged Convertible Security (or portion thereof)
which resulted (either upon its original issuance or upon a revision of its terms) in an adjustment
to the Conversion Price pursuant to the terms of Section 1.1(d)(vi)(D), the Conversion Price shall
be readjusted to such Conversion Price as would have obtained had such Option or Convertible
Security (or portion thercof) never been issued.

(5)  If the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon the exercise, conversion and/or exchange of any Option or Convertible Security, or the
consideration payable to the Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, is
calculable at the time such Option or Convertible Security is issued or amended but is subject to
adjustment based upon subsequent events, any adjustment to the Conversion Price provided for in
this Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C) shall be effected at the time of such issuance or amendment based on
such number of shares or amount of consideration without regard to any provisions for subsequent
adjustments (and any subscquent adjustments shall be treated as provided in clauses (2) and (3) of
this Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C)). If the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise,
conversion and/or exchange of any Option or Convertible Security, or the consideration payable
to the Corporation upon such exercise, conversion and/or exchange, cannot be calculated at all at
the time such Option or Convertible Security is issued or amended, any adjustment to the
Conversion Price that would result under the terms of this Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C) at the time of such
issuance or amendment shall instead be effected at the time such number of shares and/or amount
of consideration is first calculable (even if subject to subsequent adjustments), assuming for
purposes of calculating such adjustment to the Conversion Price that such issuance or amendment
took place at the time such calculation can first be made.

(D)  Adj t_of Conversion Pri n_Issuance of
Additional Shares of Common Stock. In the event the Corporation shall at any time afier the
Original Issue Date issue Additional Shares of Common Stock (including Additional Shares of
Common Stock deemed to be issued pursuant to Section 1. 1(d)(vi)(C)), without consideration or
for a consideration per share less than the Conversion Price in effect immediately prior to such
issuance or deemed issuance, then the Conversion Price shall be reduced, concurrently with such
1ssue, to a price (calculated to the nearest one-hundredth of a cent) determined in accordance with
the following formula:

CP2=CPi* (A+B)+ (A +C).
For purposes of the foregoing formula, the following definitions shall apply:

(1)  “CP2" shall mean the Conversion Price in effect
immediately after such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of Common Stock;

(2)  “CP)” shall mean the Conversion Price in effect
immediately prior to such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of Common Stock;
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(3)  “A” shall mean the number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding immediately prior to such issuance or deemed issuance of Additional Shares of
Common Stock (treating for this purpose as outstanding all shares of Common Stock, other than
Exempted Securities, issuable upon exercise of Options outstanding immediately prior to such
issuance or deemed issuance or upon conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities (including
the Preferred Stock) outstanding (assuming exercise of any outstanding Options therefor)
immediately prior to such issue);

(4)  “B" shall mean the number of shares of Common
Stock, excluding Exempted Securities, that would have been issued if such Additional Shares of
Common Stock had been issued or deemed issued at a price per share equal to CP1 (determined by
dividing the aggregate consideration received by the Corporation in respect of such issue by CP1);
and

(5)  “C" shall mean the number of such Additional Shares
of Common Stock issued in such transaction.

(E)  Determination of Consideration, For purposes of this
Section 1.1(d)(vi), the consideration received by the Corporation for the issuance or deemed

issuance of any Additional Shares of Common Stock shall be computed as follows:

(1)  Cash and Property. Such consideration shall;

a, insofar as it consists of cash, be computed at
the aggregate amount of cash received by the Corporation, excluding amounts paid or payable for
accrued interest;

b.  insofar as it consists of property other than
cash, be computed at the fair market value thereof at the time of such issue, as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; and

c. in the event Additional Shares of Common
Stock are issued together with other shares or securities, excluding Exempted Securities, or other
assets of the Corporation for consideration which covers both, be the proportion of such
consideration so received, computed as provided in clauses a. and b. above, as determined in good
faith by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

(2) Options _and _Convertible  Securities.  The
consideration per share received by the Corporation for Additional Shares of Common Stock
deemed to have been 1ssued pursuant to Section 1.1(d)(vi)(C), relating to Options and Convertible
Securities, shall be determined by dividing;

a The total amount, if any, received or receivable
by the Corporation as consideration for the issue of such Options or Convertible Securities, plus the
minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration (as set forth in the instruments relating
thereto, without regard to any provision contained therein for a subsequent adjustment of such
consideration) payable to the Corporation upon the exercise of such Options or the conversion or
exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the case of Options for Convertible Securities, the
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exercise of such Options for Convertible Securities and the conversion or exchange of such
Convertible Securities, by

b.  the maximum number of shares of Common
Stock (as set forth in the instruments relating thereto, without regard to any provision contained
therein for a subsequent adjustment of such number), excluding Exempted Securitics, issuable upon
the exercise of such Options or the conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities, or in the
case of Options for Convertible Securities, the exercise of such Options for Convertible Securities
and the conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities,

(F)  Multiple Closing Dates. In the event the Corporation shall

issue on more than one date Additional Shares of Common Stock that are a part of one transaction
or a series of related transactions and that would result in an adjustment to the Conversion Price
pursuant to the terms of Section 1.1(d)(vi)(D) then, upon the final such issuance, the Conversion
Price shall be readjusted to give effect to all such issuances as if they occurred on the date of the
first such issuance (and without giving effect to any additional adjustments as a result of any such
subsequent issuances within such period).

(vii) Certain Other Adjustments.

(A)  Stock Dividends and Stock Splits. If the Corporation, at any
time while the Series C Preferred Stock is outstanding: (1) pays a stock dividend or otherwise

makes a distribution or distributions payable in shares of Common Stock on shares of Common
Stock or any other common stock equivalents (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any
PIK Dividends or shares of Common Stock issued by the Corporation upon conversion of, or
payment of a dividend on, the Series C Preferred Stock), (2) subdivides outstanding shares of
Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (3) combines (including by way of a reverse stock
split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, or (4) issues, in the
event of a reclassification of shares of the Common Stock, any shares of capital stock of the
Corporation, then the Conversion Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator
shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Corporation)
outstanding immediately before such event, and of which the denominator shall be the number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment made pursuant
to this Section 1.1(d)(vii)(A) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become
effective immediately afer the effective date in the case of a subdivision, combination or re-
classification.

(B)  Subsequent Rights Offerings. In addition to any adjustments
pursuant to Section 1.1(d)(vii)(A) above, if at any time the Corporation grants, issues or sells any

common stock equivalents or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro
rata to the record holders of any class of shares of Common Stock (the “Purchase Rights”™), then
the holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock thereof will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms
applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which the holder of shares of
Series C Preferred Stock could have acquired if the holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock
had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of such
holder's Series C Preferred Stock immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the
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grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which
the record holders of shares of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of
such purchase.

(C)  Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while the Series C

Preferred Stock is outstanding, (1) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related
transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into another person,
other than a Significant Transaction Event, (2) the Corporation, dircctly or indirectly, effects any
sale, lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all
of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, other than a Significant Transaction Event, (3)
any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Corporation
or another person) is completed pursuant to which holders of Common Stock are permitted to sell,
tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the
holders of 50% or more of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation, other than a Significant
Transaction Event, (4) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions
effects any reclassification, reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any
compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively converted into or
exchanged for other securities, cash or property, other than a Significant Transaction Event, or (5)
the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock or
share purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a
reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with another person whereby
such other person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not
including any shares of Common Stock held by the other person or other persons making or party
lo, or associated or affiliated with the other persons making or party to, such stock or share purchase
agreement or other business combination), other than a Significant Transaction Event (each a
“Fundamental Transaction”), then, upon any subsequent conversion of the Series C Preferred
Stock, the holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock shall have the right to receive, for each
share of Common Stock that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior
to the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction, the number of shares of Common Stock of the
successor or acquiring corporation or of the Corporation, if it is the surviving corporation, and any
additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration™) reccivable as a result of such
Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which the
Series C Preferred Stock is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction. For
purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the Conversion Price shall be appropriately
adjusted to apply to such Alternate Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration
issuable in respect of one share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the
Corporation shall apportion the Conversion Price among the Alternate Consideration in a
reasonable manner reflecting the relative value of any different components of the Alternate
Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or
property to be received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the holder of shares of Series C
Preferred Stock shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon
any conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock following such Fundamental Transaction. To the
extent necessary to effectuate the foregoing provisions, any successor to the Corporation or
surviving entity in such Fundamental Transaction shall file an amended and restated Articles of
Incorporation or Certificate of Designation with the same terms and conditions and issue to the
holders of shares of Series C Preferred Stock new preferred stock consistent with the foregoing
provisions and evidencing the holders’ right to convert such preferred stock into Alternate
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Consideration, The Corporation shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in
which the Corporation is not the survivor (the “Successor Entity”) to assume in writing all of the
obligations of the Corporation under this Certificate in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 1.1(d)(vii)(C) pursuant to written agreements entered into prior to such Fundamental
Transaction and shall deliver to the holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock in exchange for
the Series C Preferred Stock a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a writfen instrument
substantially similar in form and substance to the Series C Preferred Stock which is convertible
for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such Successor Entity (or its parent entity)
equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion of the Series
C Preferred Stock prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a conversion price which
applies the conversion price hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the
relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the
value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion
price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of the Series C Preferred Stock
immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction). Upon the occurrence
of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be substituted for
(so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Certificate
referring to the “Corporation” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every
right and power of the Corporation and shall assume all of the obligations of the Corporation under
this Certificate with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Corporation
herein.

(viii) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 1.1(d) shall be
made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this
Section 1.1(d), the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of
a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury
shares of the Corporation) issued and outstanding.

(ix)  Notice to the Holders. Whenever the Conversion Price is adjusted
pursuant to any provision of this Section 1,1(d), the Corporation shall promptly deliver to each holder
of shares of Series C Preferred Stock a notice setting forth the Conversion Price after such adjustment
and setting forth a brief statement of the facts requiring such adjustment. If (A) the Corporation shall
declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the Common Stock, (B) the
Corporation shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common
Stock, (C) the Corporation shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights
or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights, (D)
the approval of any stockholders of the Corporation shall be required in connection with any
reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Corporation is a
party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, or any compulsory
share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property or
(E) the Corporation shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding
up of the affairs of the Corporation, then, in each case, the Corporation shall cause to be filed at each
office or agency maintained for the purpose of conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock, and shall
cause to be delivered to each holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock at its last address as it shall
appear upon the stock books of the Corporation, at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the applicable
record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (1) the date on which a record is to be
taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is
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not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to
such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (2) the date on
which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to
become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock
of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other
property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share
exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery
thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice.

(¢)  Optional Conversion.
(i)  Optional Conversion Rights. At any time or limes on or after the

Original Issue Date, each holder of Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert any portion
of the outstanding Series C Preferred Stock held by such holder and any PIK Dividends (without
the payment of additional consideration by the holder thereof) into such number of fully paid and
non-assessable shares of Common Stock as determined for any such holder by dividing (A) the
sum of (I) the aggregate Stated Value of all outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock being
converted by such holder, (IT) the aggregate Stated Value of all shares of Series C Preferred Stock
due and owing to such holder as PIK Dividends which such holder is converting, and (111 the
aggregate amount of cash dividends due and owing to such holder that such holder is converting
by (B) the Conversion Price in effect on the Optional Conversion Date (as defined below), as
adjusted in accordance with Section 1.1(d).

(i)  Fractional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional
shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section
L.1(e). As to any fraction of a share which the holder of shares of Scries C Preferred Stock would
otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Corporation shall round up to the next
whole share.

(i)  Mechanics of Conversion.

(A)  To convert a share of Series C Preferred Stock and/or PIK
Dividends into shares of Common Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(¢) on any date (an “Optional
Conversion Date”), the holder of such shares of Series C Preferred Stock and/or PIK Dividends
shall deliver to the Corporation (whether via facsimile, electronic mail or otherwise), for receipt
on or prior to 11:59 p.m., New York time, on such date, a copy of an executed notice of such
conversion in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Optional Conversion Notice"). Within
three (3) Trading Days (as defined below) of the Optional Conversion Date such holder that
delivered the Optional Conversion Notice shall, if such holder’s shares of Series C Preferred Stock
are certificated, surrender his, her or its certificate or certificates for all such shares (or, if such holder
of Series C Preferred Stock alleges that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost
certificate affidavit and agreement reasonably acceptable to the Corporation and its transfer agent to
indemnify the Corporation and/or its transfer agent against any claim that may be made against the
Corporation and/or its transfer agent on account of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such
certificate) to the Corporation at the place designated in such notice. If so required by the Corporation
or its transfer agent, any certificates surrendered for conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied
by written instrument or instruments of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation or its transfer
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agent, duly executed by the registered holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock or by his, her or
its attorney duly authorized in writing. All rights with respect to the Series C Preferred Stock
converted pursuant to this Section 1.1(¢) will terminate at the Optional Conversion Date
(notwithstanding the failure of the holder or holders of Series C Preferred Stock to surrender any
certificates at or prior to such time), except only for the rights of the holders of Series C Preferred
Stock, upon surrender, if applicable, of their certificate or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and
agreement), to receive the items provided for in the next sentence of this Section |.1(e)(iii). As soon
as practicable after the Optional Conversion Date and, if applicable, the surrender of the certificate
or certificates (or lost certificate affidavit and agreement) for Series C Preferred Stock, the
Corporation shall issue and deliver to such holder of Series C Preferred Stock, or to his, her or its
nominees, a notice of issuance of uncertificated shares and, may, upon written request, issue and
deliver a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of Common Stock issuable on such
conversion in accordance with the provisions hereof. Such converted Series C Preferred Stock shall
be retired and cancelled and may not be reissued as shares of such series, and the Corporation may
thereafier take such appropriate action (without the need for stockholder action) as may be necessary
to reduce the authorized number of shares of its Preferred Stock accordingly.

(B)  On or before the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date
of receipt of a Conversion Notice (or such earlier date as required pursuant to the 1934 Act or other
applicable law, rule or regulation for the settlement of a trade initiated on the applicable
Conversion Date of such shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to such Optional Conversion
Notice) (the “Share Delivery Deadline”), the Corporation shall (1) provided that its then current
transfer agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company's (“DTC”) Fast Automated
Securities Transfer Program, credit such aggregate number of shares of Common Stock to which
such converting holder shall be entitled to such holder’s or its designee’s balance account with
DTC through its Deposit/Withdrawal at Custodian system, or (2) if the Transfer Agent is not
participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and deliver (via
reputable overnight courier) to the address as specified in such Conversion Notice, a certificate,
registered in the name of such holder or its designee, for the number of shares of Common Stock
to which such holder shall be entitled. If the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock
represented by the Series C Preferred Stock Certificate(s) submitted for conversion pursuant to
Section 1.1(¢)(3)(A) 1s greater than the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock being
converted, then the Corporation shall, as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3)
Trading Days after receipt of the Series C Preferred Stock Certificate(s) and at its own expense,
issue and deliver to such holder (or its designee) a new Series C Preferred Stock Certificate
representing the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock not so converted. The person or
entity entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon an optional conversion of
Series C Preferred Stock shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such
shares of Common Stock on the Conversion Date,

(tv)  “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock 1s
traded on the principal securities exchange securities market on which the Common Stock is then
traded, provided that “Trading Day" shall not include any day on which the Common Stock is
scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5 hours or any day that the Common
Stock is suspended from trading during the final hour of trading on such exchange or market (or if
such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing time of trading on such
exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time) unless such day
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is otherwise designated as a Trading Day in writing by the holder converting the relevant shares
of Series C Preferred Stock pursuant to this Section 1.1(e).

(v)  Corporation's Failure to Timely Convert. If the Corporation shall
fail, for any reason or for no reason, on or prior to the applicable Share Delivery Deadline, to issue

to a holder a certificate for the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled
and register such shares of Common Stack on the Corporation’s share register or to credit such
holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC for such number of shares of Common Stock
to which such holder is entitled upon such holder's conversion pursuant to this Section 1.1(e) (a
“Conversion Failure”), and if on or after such Share Delivery Deadline such holder purchases (in
an open market transaction or otherwise) shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a
sale by such holder of all or any portion of the number of shares of Common Stock, or a sale of a
number of shares of Common Stock equal to all or any portion of the number of shares of Common
Stock, issuable upon such conversion that such holder so anticipated receiving from the Company,
then, in addition to all other remedies available to such holder, the Company shall, within three (3)
Trading Days after receipt of such holder's request and in such holder's discretion, cither: (I) pay
cash to such holder in an amount equal to such holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage
commissions and other out-of-pocket expenses, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so
purchased (including, without limitation, by any other individual or entity in respect, or on behalf,
of such holder) (the “Buy-In Price”), at which point the Company’s obligation to so issue and
deliver such certificate or credit such holder’s balance account with DTC for the number of shares
of Common Stock to which such holder would have been entitled upon such holder’s conversion
hereunder (as the case may be) (and to issue such shares of Common Stock) shall terminate, or (I1)
promptly honor its obligation to so issuc and deliver to such holder a certificate or certificates
representing such shares of Common Stock or credit such holder’s balance account with DTC for
the number of shares of Common Stock to which such holder is entitled upon such holder’s
conversion hereunder (as the case may be) and pay cash to such holder in an amount equal to the
excess (if any) of the Buy-In Price over the product of (x) such number of shares of Common
Stock multiplied by (y) the lowest closing sale price of the Common Stock on any Trading Day
during the period commencing on the date of the applicable Conversion Notice and ending on the
date of such issuance and payment under this clause (I1).

()  Redemption.

(1) Mandatory Redemption. Unless prohibited by Nevada law governing
distributions to stockholders of a corporation, the Series C Preferred Stock shall be redeemed (a

“Mandatory Redemption”) by the Corporation at a price equal to the Stated Value for such share of
Series C Preferred Stock, plus an amount per share equal to the Stated Value of any shares of Series
C Preferred Stock that are issuable as the result of accrued, but unpaid, PIK Dividends (the
“Redemption Price”), if the Requisite Holders provide written notice of redemption to the
Corporation on or after the eighteen (18) month anniversary of the Original Issue Date, which notice
may only be so provided if on or after such date the Common Stock of the Corporation is not listed
on a Trading Market (the date selected by the Corporation that is within thirty (30) days following
the date that the Corporation receives such notice is referred to as the “Redemption Date”). If on the
Redemption Date Nevada law goveming distributions to stockholders of a corporation prevents the
Corporation from redeeming all outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock to be redeemed, the
Corporation shall ratably redeem the maximum number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock that
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it may redeem consistent with such law, and shall redeem the remaining shares as soon as it may
lawfully do so under such law. If the Corporation fails to pay the Redemption Price in full and
redeem all outstanding shares of Series C Preferred Stock on the Redemption Date, then PIK
Dividends shall accrue as specified in Section 1.1(c)(ii) hereof.

(i) Redemption Notice. The Corporation shall send written notice of the
Mandatory Redemption (the “Redemption Notice”) to each holder of record of Series C Preferred
Stock not less than ten (10) days prior to the Redemption Date. The Redemption Notice shall
state:

(A)  the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock held by the
holder that the Corporation shall redeem on the Redemption Date specified in the Redemption
Notice;

(B)  the Redemption Date and the Redemption Price; and

(C)  for holders of shares in certificated form, that the holder is
to surrender to the Corporation, in the manner and at the place designated, his, her or its certificate
or certificates representing the shares of Series C Preferred Stock to be redeemed.

(ii) der of Certificates: Payment. On or before the Redemption
Date, each holder of shares of Series C Preferred Stock to be redeemed on the Redemption Date,
shall, i a holder of shares in certificated form, surrender the certificate or certificates representing
such shares (or, if such registered holder alleges that such certificate has been lost, stolen or
destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement reasonably acceptable to the Corporation to
indemnify the Corporation against any claim that may be made against the Corporation on account
of the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate) to the Corporation, in the manner and
at the place designated in the Redemption Notice, and thereupon the Redemption Price for such
shares shall be payable to the order of the person whose name appears on such certificate or
certificates as the owner thereof,

(iv)  Redeemed or Otherwise Acquired Shares. Any shares of Series C

Preferred Stock that are redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any of its
subsidiarics shall be automatically and immediately cancelled and retired and shall not be reissued,
sold or transferred.

()  Waiver; Amendment. Any of the rights, powers, privileges and other terms
of the Series C Preferred Stock set forth herein may be waived or amended on behalf of all holders
of Series C Preferred Stock by the affirmative written consent or vote of the Requisite Holders.

(h)  Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, any notice required or
permitted by the provisions of this Section 1.1 to be given to a holder of shares of Series C
Preferred Stock shall be mailed, postage prepaid, to the post office address last shown on the
records of the Corporation, or given by electronic communication in compliance with Section 78
of the Nevada Revised Statutes, and shall be deemed sent upon such mailing or electronic
transmission.
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Section 1.2 Withholding. The Corporation agrees that, provided that a holder of the
Corporation’s capital stock delivers to the Corporation a properly exccuted IRS Form W-9
certifying as to such holder’s complete exemption from backup withholding (or, if such holder is
a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes, its regarded owner’s complete
exemption from backup withholding), under current law the Corporation (including any paying
agent of the Corporation) shall not be required to, and shall not, withhold on any payments or
deemed payments to any such holder. In the event that any holder of the Corporation’s capital
stock fails to deliver to the Corporation such properly executed IRS Form W-9, the Corporation
reasonably believes that a previously delivered IRS W-9 is no longer accurate and/or valid, or there
is a change in law that affects the withholding obligations of the Corporation, the Corporation and
its paying agent shall be entitled to withhold taxes on all payments made to the relevant holder in
the form of cash or to request that the relevant holder promptly pay the Corporation in cash any
amounts required to satisfy any withholding tax obligations. In the event that the Corporation does
not have sufficient cash with respect to any such holder from withholding on cash payments
otherwise payable to such holder and cash paid to the Corporation by such holder to the
Corporation pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, the Corporation and its paying agent
shall be entitled to withhold taxes on deemed payments, including PIK Dividends and constructive
distributions, on the Series C Preferred Stock to the extent required by law, and the Corporation
and its paying agent shall be entitled to satisfy any required withholding tax on non-cash payments
(including deemed payments) through a sale of a portion of the Series C Preferred Stock received
as a PIK Dividend or from cash dividends or sales proceeds subsequently paid or credited on the
Series C Preferred Stock.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Blank; Signature Page Follows)
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IN WITNESSS WHEREOF, the undersigned officer, for and on behalf of Applied
Blockchain, Inc., has signed this Certificate of Designations this 15th day of April, 2021,

N ot

Wesley Cumm‘ﬁls, CEO

[Signature Page to Certificate of Designations]
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_Ngma of entity as on file with the Nevada Secretary of State:

= : Applied Blockchain, Inc.
Entity or Nevada Business Identification Number (NVID):

NV20011309405

2. Restated or
Amended and
Restated Articles:
(Select one)

(1 amenging ang

[estating only, complata
section 1,2 3, 5and 6)

| Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and Restated Articles

Restated Aticles - No amendments; arficles are restated only and are signed by an
officer of the corporation who has been authorized to execute the certificate by
resolution of the board of directors adopted on: -
The certificate correctly sets forth the text of the articles or cerificate as amended
to the date of the cerificate.
Amended and Restated Articles

* Restated or Amended and Restated Articles must be included with this filing type,

3. Type of

Amendment Filing
Being Completed:
(Selact only ona box)

(If amending, complete
section 1,3, S5and6))

| Certificate of Amendmert to Articles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.380 - Before
Issuance of Stock)
The undersigned declare that they constitute at least two-thirds of the
following:
(Check only one bex) incorporators board of directors

The undersigned affirmatively declare that to the date of this certificate, no stock
of the corporation has been issued

x Certificate of Amendment to Aricles of Incorporation (Pursuant to NRS 78.385 and

~ 78.390 - After |ssuance of Stock)
The vote by which the steckholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise
atleast a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may
be required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions
of the articles of incorporation® have voted in favar of the amendment is 80.8%

Officer's Statement (foreign qualified entities only) -
Name in home state, if using a modified name in Novada_:

e

Jurisdiction of formation: |
Changes lo lakes the following effect;
The entity name has been amended. || Dissolution
The purpose of the entity has been amended. ["1Merger
The authorized shares have been amended Conversion

Other: (specify changes)

* Officer's Statement must be submitted with either a certified copy of or a certificate evidencing the fiing
of any document, amendatory or otherwise, relating to the original articles in the place of the corporations
craation

This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees.

Page 19l 2
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DocuSign Envelope 1D: 38244 D46-47F D-4854-846C-3738C242E86A

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
(775) 684-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

C

Certificate to Accompany Restated Articles or Amended and

Profit Corporation:
ertificate of Amendment (sursuan o nrs 7 3908 7838578 380,

Restated Articles pursusn ronrs 7409
Officer's Statement eursusnr rones o 030)

4, Effective Date and
Time: (Cptional)

Date: Time:

(must not be later than 90 days after the cerbficate is filed)

5. Information Being
Changed: (Domestic
corporations only)

Changes to takes the fallowing effect.

x The entity name has been amended.
The registered agent has been changed. (attach Certificate of Acceptance from new
registered agent)

|_| The purpose of the entity has been amended.

|| The authorized shares have been amended.
The directors, managers or general pariners have been amended,
IRS tax language has been added.

| Articles have been added.
Articles have been deleted.

| Other,

The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article numbers, if available)

FIRST. The name of this corporation is Applied Digital Corporation.
(attach additional page(s) if necessary)

6. Signature: r—-—'-
(Required) X Jand forde CFO and Treasurer
Signature of Ofcer or Authorized Signar Title
X PR
Signature of Officer or Authorized Signer Title
*if any proposed amendment would alter or change any preference o any relative or other right given to
any class or series of outstanding shares, then the amendment must be approved by the vate, in addition to
the affirmative vote otherwise required, of the holders of shares representing a majority of the voting power
of each class or series affected by the amendment regardiess to limitations or restrictions on the voting
power thereof.
Please include any required or optional information in space below:
(attach addtional page(s) if necessary)
This form must be accompanied by appropriate fees. Page 2012

Reveed 1112018
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STATE OF NEVADA
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE

Secretary of State

Commercial Rc:'{ndmg,\' Division
202 X, Carsom Sireei
Carsun City, NV 89701
Telophone (775) 684-3708
Fx (775) 684-7/38
North Las Vepar Ciiy Hadl
2250 Lax Vegas Blvd Novih, Swite 400
North Lax Vegas, NV X801

SECRETARY OF STATE Telephome (703) 486-2850

Fax (700) 458- 2088

KIMBERLEY PERONDI
Deputy Secretary for OFFICE OF THE

Commerclal Recordings

Name Reservation - Filing Acknowledgement

10/19/2022
Work Order Item Number: W2022101900468 - 2457475
Filing Number: 20222698990
Filing Type: Name Reservation
Filing Date/Time: 10/19/2022 09:18:47 AM
Filing Page(s): 1
Entity Number: E26989922022-2

Indexed Entity Information:
Name: Applied Digital Corporation Reservation ID: NR20221019-18633
Name Reservation Expiration Date : 01/17/2023

N/A

The attached document(s) were filed with the Nevada Secretary of State, Commercial
Recording Division. The filing date and time have been affixed to each document,
indicating the date and time of filing. A filing number is also affixed and can be used to

reference this document in the future.
Rcsg:lfutly.

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

Page 10of 1

Commercial Recording Division
202 N. Carson Streel
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
Telephone (T75) 684-5T08
Fax {775) 684-7138
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. GECRETARY OF §T 7,

78 o weN ™

NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE

Applied Digital Corporation

Nevada Business Identification # NV20011309405
Expiration Date: 05/31/2023

In accordance with Title 7 of Nevada Revised Statutes, pursuant to proper application duly filed and
payment of appropriate prescribed fees, the above named is hereby granted a Nevada State Business
License for business activities conducted within the State of Nevada.

Valid until the expiration date listed unless suspended, revoked or cancelled in accordance with the
provisions in Nevada Revised Statutes. License is not transferable and is not in lieu of any local business
license, permit or registration.

License must be cancelled on or before its expiration date if business activity ceases. Failure to do
so will result in late fees or penalties which, by law, cannot be waived.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on 11/14/2022.

MK.C;M

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

Certificate Number: B202211143157511
You may verify this certificate

{)nlinf at hitp://www.nvsos.gov
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Exhibit No. 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Wesley Cummins, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2022 of Applied Digital Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

4879-3802-1663v.1



Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ Wesley Cummins

Wesley Cummins, Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer, Chairperson
of the Board and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

4879-3802-1663v.1



Exhibit No. 31.2
CERTIFICATION
1, David Rench, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2022 of Applied Digital Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

4879-3802-1663v.1



Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ David Rench

David Rench, Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

4879-3802-1663v.1



Exhibit No. 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2022 of Applied Digital Corporation (the “Company”) as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”),Wesley Cummins, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certifies, to the best of his knowledge, pursuant to 18

U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ Wesley Cummins

Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer, Chairperson of the Board and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

4860-3413-5327v.1



Exhibit No. 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2022 of Applied Digital Corporation (the “Company”) as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), David Rench, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certifies, to the best of his knowledge, pursuant to 18

U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: January 10, 2023 By: /s/ David Rench

Chief Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

4860-3413-5327v.1



